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Just as in the physical body of the embodied
being is the process of childhood, youth and

old age; similarly by transmigration from one
body to another, the wise are never deluded.

Bhagavad Gita, Ch. 2.13

shri Pralhad P. Chhabria "l have not gone, just moved on.

(12.03.1930-05.05.2016) Each morning we are born again
to work hard and live another
beautiful journey..."
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ABOUT FINOLEX
INDUSTRIES

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Finolex Industries is the largest and sole backward-integrated manufacturer of PVC
pipes and fittings in India. Our annual production capacity for pipes and fittings is
4,00,000 metric tons, and for PVC resin, it is 2,72,000 metric tons. With our extensive
range of products catering to agriculture, plumbing, and sanitation sectors, we

are the most reliable brand in the country. We have four advanced manufacturing
facilities in Maharashtra and Gujarat, which, along with our wide distribution network,
enables us to ensure the highest standards of quality at every step of the value chain.

OUR PRODUCTS

Plumbing, Sanitation Pipes and Fittings

ASTM Pipes and Fittings CPVC Pipes and Fittings

SWR Pipes and Fittings Sewerage Pipes
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Agricultural Pipes and Fittings

Agricultural PVC-U Pipes and Fittings Column Pipes

Casing Pipes

Solvent Cement & Lubricants
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OUR PRESENCE

4

Manufacturing facilities
(Ratnagiri, Urse, Talegaon
and Masar)

900+

Exclusive dealers

9

Branch offices

21,000+

Retailers

AA+ stable

Upgraded long-term credit
rating from AA to AA+ (Stable)
— CRISIL/India ratings

Branch office

Corporate office at Pune

® \Works

Al+

Maintained short-term credit
rating — CRISIL/ India ratings

FINOLEX IN NUMBERS

1,478 NIL X 22.12 crore

Employees as on Long-term debt as CSR Spend
March 31, 2023 on March 31, 2023
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Zin crores

IND AS IGAAP
PARTICULARS

rlorriFki 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14
PROFIT AND LOSS
ACCOUNT DATA
Revenue from operations 3z, 4 c47 3462 20985 3091 2738 2602 2482 2476 2453
(Excluding Excise duty)
EBITDA* 293 1,024 989 447 604 484 563 404 213 397
EBIT** 203 940 912 374 534 423 508 354 155 334
Profit before tax 297 1,385 977 393 536 439 517 373 81 242
Profit after tax 237 1,053 728 324 350 299 352 254 48 170
Dividend [Proposed
for Fy22.23] 93 248 248 150 150 150 172 149 30 102
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Share capital 124 124 24 124 124 124 124 24 124 124
Net worth 4,825 3864 3073 1930 2,528 2765 2291 1570 787 790
Loan funds 526 278 204 283 91 101 94 N2 587 656
Gross block 2644 2,461 2399 2334 2199 1179 1982 1923 1894 1,850
Operating Capital 1184 1402 1402 1668 1681 1473 1330 113 966 1,009
Employed
KEY RATIOS
EBITDA (%) 6.65% 22.03% 28.57% 14.99% 19.55% 17.68% 21.63% 1630% 8.62% 1617%
Returnonoperating 15499, 6709% 65.03% 22.39% 31.77% 28.75% 3819% 31.78% 16.01%  33.12%
capital employed ( %)
PAT (%) 538% 22.67% 21.03% 10.86% 11.32% 10.90% 13.53% 10.25% 1.93%  6.94%
Earnings per share %) 382 1698 1173 523 564 481 568 410 077 274
Debt to equity o1l 007 007 015 004 004 004 007 075 0.83
Dividend payout (%) 39.34% 23.56% 34.09% 46.15% 42.77% 50.11% 48.77% 58.71% 62.33% 59.73%
Interest coverage(times) 1 73 136 40 49 49 37 9 4 6
Book value per share () 78 62 50 31 41 45 37 25 13 13
Market Capitalisation (Z) 10,585 9,596 7,864 4,848 6,071 8187 7185 4519 3521 2,370

* EBITDA - Earnings before exceptional item, Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (excluding other income)
** EBIT - Earnings before exceptional item and Interest (excluding other income)
** Return on operating capital employed - EBIT/Operating Capital employed
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FROM THE

Annual Report 2022-23

CHAIRMAN'S DESK

Dear Shareholders,

¢¢We are growing. With strong
fundamentals, solid financial
discipline & greater customer focus
we have become a much stronger

force in the market place

Last year, we took significant steps into the
urban market (Plumbing & Sanitation), while
simultaneously strengthening our reputation
in the agricultural sector. With a strong belief
in our capabilities, a strengthened talent force,
and focused initiatives to build our brand, | am
confident that we will turn these steps into
great strides going forward.

All the plans we have put in place, each and
every person on our team, every decision
taken so far, the backward and forward
integration, the customer centric moves -
everything now puts us on the cusp of the
next big shift in our collective fortunes. Yes,
collective. As our beloved founder, Late Shri
Pralhad Chhabria kept reminding us - we
can move forward, only if we carry each and
every member of our large, extended Parivaar
forward along with us, to progress & prosper.

This is exactly the theme for this year's Annual
Report - 'Universal language of prosperity'.

Wherever they may live in India, whatever
their language, Indians have the same word
for reliability - Finolex. Which translates into
prosperity for each of them.

10

29

This is not just true for the present, but also our
vision for the future. We have put plans and
systems in place to ensure that we are a household
name & we earn the confidence of people across
the length and breadth of our great country.

This year's annual report speaks of this, but in
the language of growing numbers.

For us, prosperity goes beyond these numbers. It
includes our contribution towards supporting the
underprivileged & creating social well-being. It is
a combination of dignity, respect, joy, abundance,
good health, and everything else that contributes
to the mental, physical, emotional and spiritual
well-being of an individual, family, community
and their environment.

This is only possible when we take personal
accountability for the success and prosperity
of our customers by relentlessly pushing for
quality in order to ably support their dreams
and ambitions. This happens when we push
for prosperity amongst our family of channel
partners & are fair with vendors, suppliers,
agencies, employees & associates. When one
of our stakeholders moves ahead in life, we
can then honestly claim progress for ourselves.



Warm Regards,

Prakash Pralhad Chhabria
Executive Chairman

Corporate
Overview

Statutory
Reports

Financial
Statements
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BUSINESS MODEL

At Finolex, our business model is centred around providing innovative solutions and
top-quality products to meet the needs of our customers. Our focus on backward
and forward integration, along with our state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities,
ensures that we maintain tighter control over the entire value chain.

INPUTS

The inputs in Finolex Pipes' business model represent the resources and activities that
enable us to manufacture and distribute high-quality pipes and fittings while maintaining
our commitment to collective growth, sustainability and social responsibility.

ROBUST STRONG STAKEHOLDER AND
RESOURCE BASE COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS
< 4,825 Crore X 22.12 Crore

Net worth CSR Spend

< 1,514 Crore 21,900+

Free Cash (net) Number of dealers,

sub-dealers and distributors

OUR MANUFACTURING JUDICIOUS USE OF
FACILITIES NATURAL RESOURCES
Manufacturing facilities Water projects completed
OUR TALENT AND 3’200+

EXPERTISE Trees planted during FY22-23
1,478

Employees

26,680

Training hours

12
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This allows us to deliver products that meet and exceed the expectations of customers
in various sectors including agriculture, plumbing and infrastructure. Furthermore, our
commitment to sustainability and social responsibility underpins our business model, enabling
us to contribute to our nation's growth while positively impacting the world around us.

BUSINESS PROCESS

Finolex is committed to quality and efficiency
which extends beyond its products and its
business process. With a focus on backward
and forward integration, our operations

are streamlined to ensure that each step

of the production process is optimised for
maximum productivity and minimal waste.

Raw material - Ethylene Dichloride
(EDC), Ethylene, and Vinyl Chloride
Monomer (VCM) — are imported
through the Finolex jetty located in
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra

Raw materials —
Pipeline — Storage tanks

<ﬂ <ﬁw

PVC manufacturing

W=
o)

plant

< LD
L]

PVC resin

¢ 1<
O

AAA )
43 MW captive

power plant

~h

oo

PVC pipes plant at Ratnagiri,
Pune and Masar and Fittings
plant at Pune

Warehouses

Dealers

Agriculture @ Construction

%(%%@<@( ED%(

OUTPUTS

We take immense pride in
our commitment to deliver
a diverse range of durable
and high-quality products
including pipes, fittings,
resin, solvent cement,
lubricant and primer.

< 237 Crore

Profit after tax

< 4,397 Crore

Revenue from operations

] 3.82

Earnings per share

2,72,000 MT
ANNUM

Total production capacity
of PVC resin

4,00,000 MT
ANNUM

Total production capacity of
PVC pipes and fittings

13
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BRAND AWARENESS AND
MARKETING INITIATIVES

Over decades, Finolex Pipes has been a trusted and loved brand by
farmers, plumbers and users across the length and breadth of the
country. The Company has launched extensive and comprehensive
marketing campaigns with a 360-degree omnichannel approach.

Our primary goal is to create a very strong brand farmers and bore-well technicians, ensuring
recognition and further cement a dominant that the programmes precisely meet their
position in the minds and hearts of our specific needs. By focusing on the grassroots
target audience. We went above and beyond level we have successfully ingrained ourselves
traditional approaches with our 360 degrees as the trusted and preferred brand among
marketing blitzkrieg that has driven positive professionals and experts in the field.

impact and growth in awareness and demand
generation. Moving aggressively on all fronts,
we went that extra mile to reach out to our
stakeholders to engage and excite them with
new ways of storytelling and communicating
the brand narrative.

In this relentless pursuit of excellence,

we have become an integral part of every
Indian household. This achievement is a
testament to our loyal customer base, who
trust us implicitly. We listen intently to our
customers, actively considering their feedback

Recognising the importance of growing and integrating it into our approach to the
construction and infrastructure demand marketing and communication strategies
in the country today, we have forged plans. This approach has allowed us to

close partnerships with contractors, MEP continuously improve and evolve, solidifying
consultants, builders, and plumbers in our bond with our customers and ensuring
the plumbing and sanitation sector. We their strong loyalty.

did extensive meets and workshops to
communicate about the product and brand
highlights, participated in various events
and exhibitions across the country, and
strengthened relationships with channels,

We have gone beyond traditional channels
and fully embraced digital and social media
platforms. With unwavering determination,
we have captivated our target audience
through compelling content, leaving a lasting
impression on them. Leveraging the power of
these platforms, we have amplified our brand
visibility, connected with a vast audience and
Our custom-tailored programmes are created an industry-wide buzz.

meticulously crafted in collaboration with

influencers, end users and communities
paving the way for strong brand consideration
in the marketplace.

TV AND IN-FILM INTEGRATION

Finolex Pipes dominated on-Air media with in our priority markets. With a rich mix of

a strong presence comprising extensive TV brand spots, reality shows, integrations and
campaigns on top regional and national sponsorships, the brand was consistantly
channels. With meticulous precision, these present across peak buying periods of the year
campaigns reached the screens of a vast on TV and other shows.

audience in the regions that mattered most

14
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REALITY SHOW INTEGRATION - BIG BOSS

IN-FILM INTEGRATION

Movie-Vikram Movie-Varisu

15
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SHORT FILMS AND FESTIVE FILMS CAMPAIGNS

India loves films and this craze is seen quite highly within our stakeholder groups, especially
in Southern India. Short films and festive films serve as powerful weapons during the year.
Through in-film integrations and cinema screening activity, the brand connected with movie
loving audiences especially in South India to boost recall and salience for the brand.

Baitullah Film Launch November 22 Women's Day video on women empowerment March 23

Pralhad short Film Launch August 22

Diwali Brand Film- October 22

16
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PRINT MEDIA CAMPAIGN

Print media helped the
brand connect in the rural
heartland of India with
unique tactical campaigns.
Regional print camypaigns
were executed during key
festivals, celebrating and
forging deep emotional
connections with millions
of plumbers, farmers, and
members of Finolex Parivaar.

PARTICIPATION IN POPULAR
ON-GROUND EVENTS AND EXHIBITIONS

Trade events and exhibitions are important occasions to showcase our dependable product
range, talk about our differentiation and portray the brand in all its glory. Finolex Pipes
leveraged these occasions to meet various influencers in the trade, cement relationships with
channel partners and showcase our product offerings. We received encouraging responses both
in terms of leads and love for the brand.

17



Finolex Industries Limited Annual Report 2022-23

RETAIL BRANDING AND
OUTDOOR MARKETING ACTIVITIES

Visibility is the key driver for the brand in our category and retail counters are the key point of
on-ground contact for the brand. Last year, extensive retail branding in new and old counters across
the country helped generate massive visibility. Our retail footprint has increased significantly in metros
and deeper interiors and this has been in sync with the growing demand for the brand in the country.

PAN INDIA RETAIL BRANDING

Retail Branding

OUTDOOR MARKETING ACTIVITIES

18
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Creating visibility across
focused markets through Bus
stop branding, Wall paintings,
Umbrella branding, Auto back
branding and other activities

19
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CHANNEL PARTNER MEETS

Dealers and retailers are at the frontline and create very powerful
conversion moments for the brand. Beyond sales, they help us understand
the pulse of the market and hence it's important to constantly interact with
them and have a meaningful dialogue to push and promote the brand
ahead. These channel partner meets happen at various locations in the
country and abroad marking the celebration of collective achievement,
charting the future course for the growth of the brand (volume and value)
and discuss new nuances for building a stronger future together.

To support these channel partners, the Company organised several meets touching key influencers -
plumbers and bore-well mechanics across cities. These events provided updates on top-class products,
technology, and industry trends, intensive upskilling sessions and building last mile assurance by
making them become part of our growing Finolex Parivaar. We also collaborated with our CSR partner,
the Mukul Madhav Foundation to provide plumbing training to women as part of our unwavering
commitment to the society.

Salem Mega Retailer Meet — Tamil Nadu - February, 2023 Mega Plumber Meet - Mumbai , March 2023

UNIQUE 020 EXPERIENCE THROUGH DIGITAL INTERVENTION

Search online, buy offline has been catching up with almost everyone and hence our unique

020 (online to offline) strategy helped us reach the masses with coherent experience creation
and interesting content generation throughout the year. Today, we see an increasing number

of customers and influencers embracing multiple online platforms to search, scroll and support
their daily requirements. At Finolex Pipes, we leveraged this power of social commerce and
engaged consistently with users through a myriad of content and information. Our objective was
to enable better discovery of the brand and products, get widespread assurance and seek positive
recommendations for our brand in the marketplace. Through targeted promotions for award
winning content, we were excited to engage with various audiences — users, influencers, channel
partners and even communities associated with our brand.

GROWING BY SERVING THE COMMUNITY

Finolex Pipes believes in a people-centric strategy that forges partnerships with individuals,
groups, festivals, and events and celebrates with customers and communities. As a leading brand,
we believe in supporting our communities by providing them with an equal chance to grow and
prosper. Hence we participated in sponsorships and collaborations through our CSR partner, the
Mukul Madhav Foundation. Much more can be learned by accessing the website - www.mmpc.in.

20
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Our work was not just seen in the marketplace but also loved by the trade and media who went
ahead to recognise our contribution in vivid areas of marketing and excellence. This humbly
inspires us to consistently create the right voice and visibility for the brand, improve the customer
experience, strengthen love, and build the image and reputation of the brand. We express our

deep gratitude to everyone who supported us in our brand journey and those who recognised us
amidst the plethora of brands in the country.

Iconic Brands Of India 2022

Great Place To Work Certification
-By Economic Times

Best Financial Performance

Factory of Future 22
Entrepreneur Awards 2022

-By Economic Times

'Best Brand Integration On TV' at 'Entrepreneur of the Year’ award at

Global Marketing Excellence Award-2022 |IEBF, London

21
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CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY

At Finolex Pipes, we understand that social responsibility is
not just a duty, but a way of life. Our belief that every person
has the power to make a positive difference has inspired us to
partner with the Mukul Madhav Foundation, our CSR partner,
to work closely with communities and empower them to

create a brighter future.

From education to healthcare, social

welfare to skill development, our focus

areas have been carefully chosen to
address the pressing needs of the

communities we serve. Our unwavering

commitment to making a meaningful
impact has led us to achieve 15 of the

16 CSR mandates, including promoting

gender equality and reducing
inequalities and social injustice.

Furthermore, we are proud to align
ourselves with the United Nations'
sustainable development goals, with
a commitment to creating a better
tomorrow for all. We believe that our
efforts today will lay the foundation
for a brighter and more sustainable
future for generations to come.

22

MUKUL MADHAV
FOUNDATION

Mukul Madhav
Foundation (MMF) is more
than just a charitable
trust, it's a beacon of
hope and happiness

for those in need. Since
its inception in 1999,

MMF has been tirelessly
working at the grassroots
level to empower and
uplift marginalised
communities and
individuals. With an
overseas office in London,
UK, established in 2018,
MMF's mission is to give
access to necessary
resources to help
individuals flourish has
only grown stronger.
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MMF's wide range of initiatives, which includes healthcare, education, social welfare,
water and environmental conservation, sanitation, women’'s empowerment, disaster
relief, promotion of sports, and skill development, fulfills 17 out of 17 of the UN
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) and 15 of the 16 CSR Mandates introduced by the
Indian Government in 2014. This means that the foundation is continuously making a
difference in the lives of underprivileged individuals across India by building stronger
foundations for them to reach their full potential and uplift their communities. MMF is
credited with working on several transformational projects such as:

e Mukul Madhav Vidyalaya imparts urban education and facilities to rural children
in Maharashtra

e [nitiating Mission Cerebral Palsy since 2015

e Undertaking water conservation projects since 2016

e Assisting in the Swachh Bharat Initiative since 2017

e Supporting farmers and farming communities in rural and tribal areas since 2017

e Reducing inequalities for women and children — rescued and rehabilitated 900+
children in Bihar and Madhya Pradesh

e For detailed information on MMF's full scope of activities, visit www.mmpc.in and
www.mmpc.org.uk

23
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25 YEARS OF IMPACT

Annual Report 2022-23

The road has been long, rewarding and steep, but we have promises to keep and miles to go before we sleep.

Entering its 25" year of positive impact on lives and the world, MMF continues to ‘be proactive’, ‘act
unconditionally’, and ‘keep it sustained’.

20

Sectors MMF works in

1,000

Farmers trained in
mechanisation in
Sinnar, Nashik

800+

Cataract surgeries
in 2022

500+

5+ lakhs

Lives impacted

3,200+

Trees planted in
Maharashtra and Gujarat

1,000+

Students provided access to
safe drinking water

Women supported with tailoring skills in Ratnagiri and Pune
in Maharashtra, Masar in Gujarat and Varanasi in Uttar Pradesh

1,100+

Children, slum dwellers, homeless, senior citizens provided
daily meals in Pune, Mumbai and Varanasi

4,000+

Students involved in river
and beach cleaning Pune
and Ratnagiri

1+ lakh

700+

Senior citizens supported
with health camps and other
needs

Individuals supported during floods across India since 2015.
1000 families supported in Assam in 2022

24

24

States across India

216

Students provided with
scholarships across India

75+

Cerebral Palsy surgeries
completed

600+

celebrated Rakhi with jawans
at the borders in 2022

4

Sports personalities
supported during the year

250+

Abandoned cows supported
with daily feed in Pune
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OUR MISSION...

To help the most vulnerable communities with quality healthcare,
education, equality, empowerment, clean water, and sanitation

To support individuals with disabilities to live with dignity, to thrive,
and to succeed

To help the earth heal by initiating water conservation, planting
trees, and driving sustainable environmental initiatives

OUR FOCUS AREAS

AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

At Finolex, we strive to enhance the agricultural and non-agricultural
pursuits of farmer communities. We lay a special emphasis on
empowering those who have been historically marginalised, including
returning migrants, women farmers, and widows. Our efforts include
providing them with high-quality seeds, saplings, and bee boxes to
support their farming endeavours. Additionally, we offer training on

a range of topics, such as advanced farming techniques, soil science,
mechanisation, and marketing strategies, to help them increase their
yields and optimise their profits.

100+ 370

Farmers supported with mushroom Solar lights installed in tribal villages of
cultivation in Silvassa, Gujarat Palghar, Maharashtra

424 1,000

Widowed women farmers supported in Farmers trained in mechanisation in Sinnar,
Osmanabad, Maharashtra Nashik, Maharashtra

MMF has been working on a multi-faceted approach to supporting numerous projects and
initiatives aimed at promoting growth in agriculture and rural development, with a focus on
eradicating poverty. By increasing the support for agricultural raw materials, we have been able
to empower women and widows with social assistance, enabling them to create more livelihood
opportunities and support their families. Additionally, our efforts in rural development have
resulted in the provision of solar streetlights, training, and other essential needs, providing access
to urban facilities in rural areas.
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Some of the major projects inaugurated in FY23 include the Central Agriculture Testing Laboratory

in Solapur in partnership with MMF and the Madha Welfare Foundation. This initiative would help
fortify the farmers of the locality by enabling them to test their soil and water for better yields.
Additionally, the project helped provide training and discounted agricultural services and products to
approximately 4,000 farmers.

Another major project for the year involved Finolex, MMF and the Kherwadi Social Welfare
Association where 3 villages were adopted in Thiruvallur district, Tamil Nadu enabling sustainable
livelihoods and community well-being. This was accomplished in partnership with ward members,
village panchayat presidents and vice presidents.

Dignitaries at the opening of the Agriculture Testing 100 Champion farmers training 1000 women

Lab in Madha, Solapur Maharashtra farmers - Nasik, Maharashtra

Discussion with participants on benefits of Inauguration pooja by villagers and FIL members
Mushroom cultivation, Silvassa, Gujarat for solar lights — Palghar, Maharashtra

Widowed farmers complete training, Osmanabad, Maharashtra
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ENSURING ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Water is a crucial factor in the path of progress. Numerous entities,
both governmental and non-governmental, pour in significant funds
every year to provide necessities like irrigation and drinking water.
However, despite this, a staggering number of people in Maharashtra
still suffer from acute water shortages and droughts. The situation is
only set to worsen, with predictions suggesting that 70% of cultivable
land will remain rain-fed by 2030. Decentralised approaches in water
management hold the key to meeting the present and future water
needs of rain-fed areas.

To alleviate the acute water shortage plaguing rural Maharashtra

and Gujarat, we have taken the initiative to implement several 3,600"'
water schemes, enriching the lives of countless villagers. Our Trees planted in
water conservation projects, rainwater harvesting, construction Maharashtra and
and maintenance of bunds, and planting of 18,678+ trees till date Gujarat

are aimed at enhancing the ecologies of drought-prone regions

and improving the livelihoods of rural communities. 5

In one of our recent projects, Finolex in collaboration with MMF and
SEWA (Geneva, Switzerland) supported Katfal, Maharashtra village
with a water conservation project that included the construction of
a new cement nala bund (CNB) and repairing an old one.

Water projects completed
in drought prone areas of
Maharashtra

Desilting and widening of a percolation tank at Yashwant Tree Plantation at Mukul Madhav Vidyalaya by the

Rao Mahavidyalaya, Karmala, Solapur Maharashtra students
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ERADICATING EXTREME HUNGER AND POVERTY

At Finolex, with the support of our CSR partners MMF, we lend support to different organisations
on a regular basis, ranging from schools for the visually impaired to homes for the elderly, as well
as those affected by leprosy and mental health issues. We strive to assist them in whatever way we
can, be it by supplying them with essential groceries, physiotherapy equipment, warm clothing,
kitchenware, milk, fruits, grains, or personal hygiene items. Recently, we also donated diapers to
senior citizen homes. Additionally, we also extend our support to individuals impacted by AIDS or
with disabilities through various initiatives.

250+

Slum dwellers, homeless
and senior citizens fed daily

1,100+

Children being fed daily

60+

Institutes supported with
monthly rations, diapers
and medicines

Ration Kits delivered to Narayan Parushram-Abhiyankar remand home,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra

Meals provided to Sadhus in Varanasi Midday meals at Poona Women's Council
School, Pune, Maharashtra
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PROMOTION OF EDUCATION

216 385 80+

Students provided Tribal girls provided with Engineering students are
with scholarships educational support supported financially

150 90+ 76

Children with special needs Educational institutes Agriculture college students
in Bangalore provided supported with supported with scholarships
rehabilitation services infrastructure and facilities across Maharashtra

At Finolex, we firmly believe in the power of education to
transcend all odds. To ensure that every child has access to
quality education, we work along with MMF, towards upgrading
educational infrastructure. From providing safe drinking water
and sanitation facilities, equipping schools with computers and
sports gear, and offering scholarships to deserving students — we
are committed to the UN SDG 4 of ‘Quality Education’ for all

We take special pride in

our support to the Mukul
Madhav Vidyalaya which is a
dream project that provides
high-quality education in
Golap, Ratnagiri. Sitting on 10
acres of land, identified and
leased by us, this institution
aims to provide urban
education and facilities

School Transformation Project in Mukul Madhav Vidyalaya, Gholap,

. Bangalore, Karnataka Maharashtra
in rural Maharashtra.

Launched in 2010 with 150
students, MMV has grown
over the years and now
hosts 650+ students from
nursery to class 12. In 2020
MMV launched a junior
college offering science and
commerce as options to
students.

Graduation Ceremony of Girls who graduated in Plumbing Course from ITI
Girls College, Aundh Pune
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PROMOTION OF VOCATIONAL SKILLS AND LIVELIHOODS

7

Students trained in
radiology technology

1,000+

Farmers trained
PAN India

Science and Technology Park trainers reaching out to
Panwadi village for dairy training, Pune Maharashtra

S0+

Women provided tailoring skills in Ratnagiri
and Pune in Maharashtra, Masar in Gujarat
and Varanasi in UP

S00+

Women trained in honey bee box-keeping in
Palghar and Bhimashankar in Maharashtra

India is poised to be the workforce of the

world, and whether within the country or
outside, our people need to be prepared and
skilled accordingly. Our commitment lies in
empowering individuals to be self-sufficient and
equipped with industry-ready skills. To achieve
this, we have conducted skill development
programmes in Ratnagiri, Maharashtra and
Masar, Gujarat covering computer literacy and
tailoring. We have joined hands with MMF and
other partner organisations in various initiatives
aimed at imparting training to women and
youth in diverse trades.

ITI plumbing course girls and Finolex team at Plant
Urse, Maharashtra

Betel Nut Cultivation Training, Tripura

Sheep donation to empower women of
Jammu and Kashmir

30

82 Women received training at the skill development
centre in Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh
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PROMOTING GENDER EQUALITY AND EMPOWERING WOMEN

'Isth

Period Positive Holiday Home opened in
Gadchiroli, Maharashtra

770+

Senior citizens supported in Maharashtra

Women being trained in tailoring in Madhya Pradesh

Project Muktee- Bal Panchayat workshop

370+

Individual toilets built in Palghar and
Gadchiroli, Maharashtra

600+

Widows supported with essentials in
Maharashtra

Promoting gender equality is pivotal to uplifting
communities. At Finolex, with the active
support of MMF, we strive to empower women
by enabling their basic rights to healthcare,
education, self-esteem, and financial
independence. We achieve this through various
initiatives that focus on education, vocational
and agricultural training, and providing
healthcare and welfare assistance.

Our initiatives have had a significant impact
on the lives of thousands of women. Through
our programmes, we have assisted over
30,000 women in various areas such as
education, healthcare, and vocational training.
Additionally, we have provided 200 bicycles to
girls who faced challenges getting to school,
and more than 600 widows have received
support through donations of groceries and
essential items.

Two very notable projects that have been
done over the last 2 years and continued

in 2023 are anti-child trafficking and child
abuse through British Asian Trust in Bihar and
Madhya Pradesh, and the other to support
women who were abused, through Action

Aid via a project called Gauravi — One Stop
Crisis Center. Alongside we have also enabled
skilling and livelihood opportunities for
vulnerable communities in Gujarat.
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PROMOTING PREVENTIVE HEALTHCARE

Our continuous efforts are directed towards
800+ enhancing and improving the standard of
Cataract surgeries completed healthcare services in India. Our objective is
in Pune to make world-class healthcare accessible

and affordable to all sections of society.
In association with several hospitals and

25+ medical institutes, we aim to provide better
Cochlear implants provided infrastructure and impart training to medical
in Pune professionals. We also organise preventive
diagnostic camps and awareness programmes
and extend financial assistance to individuals
600+ and institutions in need of funds.

Patients supported financially We collaborate with a network of hospitals,

non-governmental organisations, and
international groups to provide assistance

260 and aid to individuals struggling with serious

) . illnesses like thalassemia, diabetes, cancer,
Patients screened in 3 mammography

. .. and other critical ailments. We also work
camps in Ratnagiri and Pune

with volunteers to ensure that marginalised
communities have access to medical services
and provide support for emergency cases,

2 OOO + especially for those who are differently abled,
?

A . . women, children, and the elderly. Our efforts
Patients with thalassemia supported

. . . have enabled us to fund critical procedures
with filters and blood transfusions ) i P )
like cardiac surgery, cataract surgeries, and

blood tests, while also distributing insulin and
organising diabetic camps throughout the year.

S50+

Paediatric heart surgeries supported
in Pune, AP and Karnataka

160+

Patients with thalassemia
supported with filters, medicines,
blood transfusions in Maharashtra
and Gujarat

Inauguration of Palliative Care Unit at Sreeram Cancer
Trust in Kanyakumari, Tamil Nadu
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PROMOTING SPORTS

4

Sports personalities
supported during the year

Yash Aradhya, a prodigy from Finolex Pipes, the recipient of Pradhan
Manthri Bal Shakthi Puraskar for his exceptional achievement in sports

We encourage the spirit of teamwork and gamesmanship and
support athletes and sportspersons to pursue sports full-time.
Finolex and MMF provide infrastructure for mountaineering, skating,
para-badminton, badminton, shooting, weightlifting and many more.
Further, we encourage competitive sports in neighbouring schools
by providing amenities and facilities in addition to promoting sports
at the Mukul Madhav Vidyalaya in Ratnagiri, Maharashtra. We also
support and sponsor marathons in Pune and Ratnagiri to ensure
healthy habits for friends, families, corporates, and beyond.

Rachna Patel Team at 1st place in Fazza Dubai Para Hruitvik Ambekar, an international badminton player
Badminton Championship on completion of his match
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SAFE DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION

2 10,000+

Tribal villages declared individuals have access to safe
open defecation free drinking water PAN India

370

Toilets built in tribal villages in Palghar
and Gadchiroli, Maharashtra

Despite being one of the most rapidly developing economies, India still confronts a
multitude of public health issues. Lack of toilets and inadequate sanitation facilities
pose a significant threat to public health, particularly among young girls. Our efforts
are directed towards establishing sanitation infrastructure and restroom facilities in
numerous villages, with a specific focus on Maharashtra. We are also committed to
promoting clean drinking water sources, such as RO filters, in schools and villages.

Provided RO water cooler and gardening spray pump
to ITI Tarasali, Gujarat

RO water cooler at Trimbakeshwar,

Maharashtra
Inauguration of toilets at Palghar, Inaugurating toilet at Government High School,
Maharashtra Namakkal, Tamil Nadu
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SUPPORT TO DIFFERENTLY ABLED

75+ 400

Annual Report 2022-23

Successful Cerebral Palsy surgeries Visually challenged individuals supported
completed in Maharashtra monthly in Gujarat and Maharashtra

130 9

Children supported with artificial limbs Finolex Rehabilitation Centres established in
and callipers in Kheda, Gujarat Gujarat and Maharashtra

1,000+

Cerebral Palsy children identified and
supported in Maharashtra and Gujarat.

We are committed to enabling the unique abilities of people
with disabilities by creating opportunities for them to learn,
work, and succeed through our programmes. Our initiatives
have impacted over 250 people with prosthetic surgeries,
while Finolex's call centre provides employment to the
visually impaired. One of our major projects, Mission Cerebral
Palsy, offers support in the form of surgeries, physiotherapy,
and wheelchairs, benefiting over 1,000 children.

We have also extended our support to institutions for the
visually impaired and differently-abled in Maharashtra,
providing groceries, educational aid, and infrastructure
development. On World Disability Day in 2018, we
contributed to Bal Kalyan Sanstha and donated a CCTV
system and a water tank. Additionally, we have facilitated
the provision of wheelchairs, prosthetics, and other forms of
assistance to individuals with disabilities.

Physiotherapy is given to children with
Cerebral Palsy at out rehab centers across
Satara, Ratnagiri in Maharashtra and
Gujarat

Children supported with prosthetics in Gujarat Beneficiary supported with cataract and medicines
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TECHNOLOGY INCUBATORS

35+ 79+

lon generators donated to Ventilators provided to
hospitals and police stations hospitals in 2020
in 2020

1 start-up supported through Science and Technology Park who provided
"High-Temperature Multi Jet Updraft Gasifier Unit" at Gulmarg Gondola

We are firm believers that innovation and technological advancements hold the potential to unlock
India's future. We have taken up the initiative to incubate and support tech startups, with plans to
expand our aid and assistance to more startups in the near future.

Gassifier at Gulmarg, Srinagar Gondola site for plastic waste management

ARMED FORCES/VETERANS

It is a great privilege to be able to serve the armed forces

and veterans who have put their lives at risk to safeguard our Celebrated Rakhi with
nation. Since 2017, Finolex and MMF have been committed

to enhancing the quality of life of soldiers, veterans, and their 600

families through various programmes aimed at providing jawans at the borders
financial and occupational support for widows and disabled in 2022

veterans, as well as upgrading their health and sanitation

facilities.
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CONTRIBUTION TO SWACHH BHARAT KOSH CLEAN GANGA FUND

Our team has taken an active role in the Swachh Bharat

initiative, the world’'s largest sanitation programme, 4,0oo+

working alongside volunteers, students, and government Students and volunteers
officials to improve the cleanliness of rivers, riverbanks, participated in beach and river
and beaches, with a primary focus on Maharashtra. We cleaning in Pune and Ratnagiri

believe that restoring the natural balance and cleaning up
our life-sustaining rivers and stunning beaches along the
Maharashtrian coastline is crucial.

Students and teachers cleaning Bhatye beach, Individuals from My River MY valentine cleaning drive
Maharashtra. in Pune

ANIMAL WELFARE

We are committed to building a more compassionate world that values and respects the well-being
of animals. Through our initiatives, we strive to create safe and nurturing environments for animals,
ensuring they have access to proper nutrition and are treated with empathy and care.

250+

Abandoned cows
supported with daily
feed in Pune

Renovation of a cow shed in Pune Inauguration of bird rescue cage in Padra,
Gujarat

38



Corporate Statutory Financial
Overview Reports Statements

CSR AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

Awarded at the “Global CSR Excellence & G100 and Denim Club presented an award
Leadership Awards” on March 24, 2022 at Taj of Exceptional Women of Excellence to Mrs.
Lands’' End, Mumbai. Ritu Prakash Chhabria at the House of Lords,

London on March 29, 2022

Finolex Industries and MMF received Mrs. Ritu Prakash Chhabria honoured at the
appreciation from the Society of Jivrakshak for NRI World Summit 2022 held in the UK by the
Animals, Padra (SJAP) - An animal rescue NGO. esteemed Shiromani Award in recognition of

her philanthropic initiatives
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CSR TIMES AWARD IN EDUCATION AND HEALTHCARE

December 8, 2022

We are delighted to share that our project has been honored

with the prestigious 9th National CSR Times Award. This
recognition reflects the significant impact our project has made
on society and acknowledges our commitment to corporate
social responsibility. The 'CSR TIMES Award' is a testament to

the meaningful efforts we've undertaken in making a positive
difference in the community. We extend our heartfelt thanks to all
those who contributed to the success of this initiative. Together,
we will continue to strive for a better and more sustainable

future for everyone.

Peacock Awards by IOD November 2022

The Managing Trustee of Mukul Madhav
Foundation (CSR Partner of Finolex
Industries Ltd), Mrs. Ritu Prakash Chhabria,
is honoured to have received the esteemed
Golden Peacock Award in November

2022 for Outstanding Leadership on

Social Empowerment & Building Resilient
Communities, at the hands of The Lord
Johnson of Lainston CBE, Department for
International Trade UK, and The Baroness
Verma, Global Chair, Advisory Council, Institute
of Directors (IOD). This award is globally
recognised as a benchmark for corporate
excellence amongst impact-driven leaders
working in the space of social responsibility.

Vivekananda Sustainability Awards 20th
April 2022

Mukul Madhav Foundation is proud to be the
recipient of the Vivekananda Sustainability
Awards 2022 for improvement of Clean Water
and Sanitation in Communities.

This was at the august hands of Swami
Chidanand Saraswati, Acharya Dr. Lokesh
Muni and Former Chief Justice of India -
Mr. K. G. Balkrishnan.

We are grateful and thankful to Mr. Vinay Saini,
AGM, North and Mr. Arun Ojha, GM, Delhi from
Finolex Industries for receiving this award on
our behalf on April 20, 2022 at Delhi.
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DRIVING HOLISTIC ESG
GROWTH AT FINOLEX

We are committed to driving sustainable
practices and creating a positive impact on
various environmental, society, and governance
(ESQ) aspects. As a leading player in the

pipes and fittings industry, we recognise the
importance of integrating sustainability into our
business operations and making a meaningful
contribution to a more sustainable future.

We are dedicated to integrating sustainability
into all aspects of our business operations. We
strive to be a responsible corporate citizen,
minimising our environmental impact,
promoting social progress, and upholding the
highest standards of governance. Through
product innovation, social initiatives, strong
governance practices, and collaborative
partnerships, we are working towards a more
sustainable future.

We started our ESG reporting journey in FY21-
22, where we not only published our first

ever Sustainability Report but also set ESG

goals and targets and defined a roadmap to
achieving the defined goals and targets. As we
conclude the second year of our ESG journey,
we have embraced the principles of ESG as a
guiding framework and have made significant
progress along the way. We also established and
published an overarching organisation-wide

Corporate  Statutory
Overview Reports
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ESG policy highlighting our key material topics
and our approach towards these topics.

We strive to make well-rounded progress across
our organisation. In 2021-22, we were conferred
permission to use the Responsible Care® logo
for our Ratnagiri plant in Maharashtra. After
being audited, we became the 77th company
in India to be given this privilege by the Indian
Chemical Council, an apex industry body
representing the chemical industry. In FY22-23,
we have initiated implementation of similar
practices at our Urse and Masar plants with a
view of integrating sustainability into all aspects
of our business operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

At Finolex Industries, environmental
stewardship is a top priority. We strive to
minimise our environmental footprint and
promote resource efficiency across our
operations. We have implemented sustainable
manufacturing practices that prioritise energy
conservation, water management, and waste
reduction. Our focus on energy efficiency has
led to significant reductions in greenhouse

gas emissions, contributing to climate change
mitigation. By adopting the principles of the
circular economy, we promote waste reduction,
recycling, and responsible disposal. We also
strive to minimise the environmental impact of
our supply chain, collaborating with suppliers
to ensure sustainable sourcing practices.

The key highlights of our environmental performance for FY22-23 are as follows:

33%

of diesel forklifts were replaced with electric
forklifts

8500+ tCO_e

energy saved by conservation initiatives

1MW

solar roof top system commissioned at Masar

260,000+ m?

effluent recycled

Initiated a Biodiversity study for our
Ratnagiri plant - Finalised the scope of the
study and the exercise will be carried out in
depth in the upcoming months

Prepared a comprehensive afforestation plan
for next two years to enhance the green cover
in the vicinity of our manufacturing plants
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ROBUST PEOPLE AND SOCIAL
PRACTICES

Our employees are at the heart of our success.
We prioritise their well-being, professional
growth, and work-life balance. We foster a
culture of inclusivity, diversity, and equal
opportunities, ensuring a respectful and
supportive work environment. Our employee
practices focus on nurturing talent through
training programmes, skill development
initiatives, and career advancement
opportunities. We encourage open
communication, collaboration, and teamwork,
promoting a sense of belonging and
empowerment. We also prioritise employee
health and safety, providing a safe workplace

Annual Report 2022-23

and adhering to strict safety standards. We
encourage a culture of safety and empower
our employees to actively participate in the
identification and reporting of potential risks
or hazards. Open communication channels are
in place for employees to share their concerns,
suggestions, and near-miss incidents. Our
employee practices reflect our commitment to
attracting, retaining, and developing a highly
skilled and engaged workforce.

We believe in fostering strong and long-term
relationships with our value chain partners.
However, we also ensure that our value chain
partners adhere to stringent and robust ESG
practices by screening them on various ESG-
criteria and assessing their performance on
various environmental, social and legal aspects.

The key highlights of our social performance for FY22-23 are as follows:

100%

employees trained on health and safety

~75%

got training towards ESG awareness (covering
topics such as EHS, CoC, POSH, Skill development)

LTIFR - 0.13

(Tinjury recorded amongst workers)

100%

return to work rate for employees who
availed parental leave

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Growing together is at the core of our business
philosophy. We are committed to making a
positive impact on the communities where

we operate. Our social initiatives focus on
healthcare, education, social welfare, water
and environmental conservation, sanitation,
women empowerment, disaster relief,
promotion of sports, and skill development.
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Training on Information security is provided
to all the new joiners during induction

Training on Code of Conduct (CoC) session
is done for all the new joiners starting from
January, 2023.

Mandatory e-Learning course being
introduced for all the employees in FY23-24,
covering topics such as ESG, Information
security and Code of Conduct

Zero cases of high consequence work-related
injury or fatalities

Awareness programmes conducted for 69%
value chain partners on various practices
related to product use, quality, health, safety,
environment, working conditions, operation
and maintenance

We believe in the transformative power

of education and its ability to create
opportunities and improve lives. Working in
partnership with Mukul Madhav Foundation,
we have contributed to 17 out of 17 SDGs
through our community development
initiatives meeting 15 out of 16 CSR mandates
put forth by the Government of India. Please
refer to our Corporate Responsibility activities
section for more details annexed to this report.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

At Finolex Industries, we uphold the highest
standards of corporate governance. We have
established strong governance practices

that ensure transparency, accountability, and
ethical conduct in all our operations. Our
Board of Directors provides strategic oversight,
ensuring that the interests of all stakeholders
are safeguarded. We have a comprehensive

Financial
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Code of Conduct that sets out clear guidelines
for ethical behaviour and responsible business
practices. Compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations is a non-negotiable principle
within our organisation. We regularly evaluate
our governance practices, benchmarking
them against global standards and best
practices. Our commitment to corporate
governance is fundamental to maintaining the
trust and confidence of our stakeholders.

The key highlights of our governance practices for FY22-23 are as follows:

100%

employees trained on health and safety

Zero cases of breach of Code of Conduct

DISCLOSURE OF ESG PERFORMANCE

We published our first Sustainability

Report in FY21-22. We endeavour to ensure
transparent communication of our ESG
performance through our Sustainability
Report. We aim to align our communication
of sustainability performance with

Training on Code of Conduct and ethical
business conduct integrated into new joiners
induction programme

Zero cases of data breach, cyber security and
information security-related incidents

internationally recognised standards and
frameworks such as the UN Sustainable
Development Goals and the GRI Standards.
Additionally, we participate in the DJSI rating
conducted by S&P Global, which will serve as
a demonstration of our ESG capabilities in
comparison to our peers in the sector.

ESG ROADMAP
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

1. ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

1.1 INDIAN ECONOMY

The world continues to reel from multiple
successive events such as the protracted
war in Ukraine, high inflation in Western
democracies including the United Kingdom
teetering on a cost-of-living crisis, a fresh wave
of COVID-19 cases hitting China etc. These
events have impacted all countries; however,
India has revealed itself to be a bright spot in
an otherwise gloomy global economic outlook.

Real GDP growth
9.1%

7.2%
6.5%

FY22 FY23

Est-Estimated

FY24 Est

Today, ranked amongst the fastest-growing major
economies in the world, India is also set to be the
2nd fastest growing economy in the G20 while
holding the presidency of the forum for 2023. The
Ministry of Finance announced that the Indian
economy’s real GDP grew at 7.2% in FY23. In its
75t year of Independence, India is the 5™ largest
economy in the world and poised to reach a
nominal GDP of $ 3.5 trillion? by March 31,2023, as
per the economic survey tabled in Parliament.

India’'sagriculture sector hasseen arobustaverage
annual growth rate of 4.6% over the last six years
and is expected to grow at a rate of 3.5% in FY23,
as per the Press Information Bureau. India has
become a net exporter of agricultural products

Sources

1 The Economic Times

2 The Economic Times
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in recent years, touching $ 50.2 billion in FY23,
while allied sectors - animal husbandry, dairy, and
fisheries - are increasingly being recognised as
emerging sectors.

The industrial sector is a significant contributor
to the Indian economy providing about 30% of
the total gross value added in the country. In
FY23, the sector faced exceptional challenges
as the Russia-Ukraine conflict began in early
2022 and with no end in sight. The conflict
directly contributed to a sharp rise in the prices
of many commodities including edible oil, crude
oil, fertilisers and food grains that remained at
elevated levels for many months.

However, the Indian industrial sector acquitted
itself quite well despite difficult circumstances
with the first half of FY23 showing a 3.7% increase
in overall Gross Value Added (GVA), which is higher
than the average growth achieved in H1 of the last
decade. Overall, the industrial sector is expected to
witness a modest growth of 4.1% in FY23 compared
t0 10.3% in the previous fiscal year.

The services sector is expected to act as the
driver of growth for the economy by rebounding
to a y-o-y growth of 9.1% in FY23 as compared to
8.4% in the previous fiscal. After the world’s largest
vaccination programme, private consumption has
seen continuous Momentum and grew at 7.5% in
FY23% compared to 7.9% in the previous fiscal.

The Gross Fixed Capital Formation, as a measure
of investment, grew by 11.4% in FY23*® against
15.8% in the previous fiscal year. Over the last few
years, the government has continued to push
capital expenditure and infrastructure spending
while private investment is showing signs of
improvement thanks to better balance sheets in
banks and companies.

3 The Economic Times
4 Money Control



https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/newsblogs/india-gdp-q4-fy23-growth-news-live-latest-updates-31-may-2023/liveblog/100634542.cms
https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/economy/finance/indias-nominal-gdp-to-be-usd-3-5-trillion-by-end-march-economic-survey/articleshow/97498963.cms
https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/economy/indicators/q4-gdp-numbers-spring-a-surprise-lift-fy23-growth-to-7-2-india-stays-fastest-growing-major-economy/articleshow/100663192.cms
https://www.moneycontrol.com/news/business/indias-consumption-to-remain-under-pressure-if-inflation-persists-10733731.html

Despite supply chain disruptions and an erratic
geopolitical environment, Indian exports grew
by 14% in FY23°. Following the pattern of previous
post-pandemic fiscal years, the share of exports
to GDP increased to 22.7% in FY23 and will
ensure that India continues to have fiscal space
to manoeuvre and remain resilient compared to
other emerging market economies.

111 OUTLOOK

In line with multilateral agencies such as the
World Bank, IMF, ADB, and the RBI, domestically
— the Economic Survey 2022-2023 has projected a
baseline GDP growth of 6.5% in real terms in FY24.
The actual outcome for real GDP growth is likely to
be in the range of 6% to 6.8%°.

While external exigencies can impact growth, a
domestic-driven economy like India’'s would make
it less exposed than export-driven economies
like China, South Korea or Japan. Additionally,
the Government of India in the Union Budget
for FY24 has increased capital investment outlay
on infrastructure for the third year in a row by
33% to X 10 trillion, a steep increase reflecting
the government’s focus on sustained domestic
demand and the generation of jobs.

Finally, the Russia - Ukraine war created
heightened uncertainty geopolitically and led to a
drastic increase in commodity prices. While these
prices have moderated, many of them still hover
above pre-war levels.

All these factors have led to a deterioration of the
global outlook, impacting trade numbers for the
Indian economy with export demand expected to
slow down internationally, while domestic demand
continues to increase imports, thereby leading to a
widening of current account deficits (CAD), which
may then,inturn, bring the currency under pressure.

While entrenched high inflation can risk low global
growth even leading into FY24, the positives for the
Indian economy are that oil prices would stay low

5 Times of India

6 Press Release
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and CAD will be better than projected. Additionally
recessionary tendencies in advanced economies
may result in a return of capital flow to India if
inflation in the country is stable below 6%.

Domestically, India remainsin a robust position and
government measures have set up the economy
for growth over the medium and long term.
Higher governmental CAPEX and highly improved
corporate and bank balance sheets are expected
to result in higher private investments that will
take the onus going forward and reduce the need
for the government to do the heavy lifting.

The strong focus on urban infrastructure will be
especially important for the construction industry,
with the budget including necessary allocations
for rural programmes as well. A coordinated
monetary and fiscal policy will eventually lead to
lower borrowing costs later in the year and further
consolidate demand.

The agriculture and allied sectors have been
forecasted to grow at 3.6% in FY24. Further, the
industry and services sectors are expected to grow
by 5.8% and 7.6%’, respectively.

2. PIPING INDUSTRY
OVERVIEW

The government has allocated X 70,000 crore®
in the Union Budget 2023 - 2024 on its flagship
scheme under the Jal Jeevan Mission (JIM), to
provide potable drinking water to every rural
household which is a jump from X 60,000 crore

7 The World Bank
8 The Print
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in the previous fiscal year. This translates to a
nearly 17% increase in budget allocation under
this scheme and will continue to have positive
impacts on dependent industries such as the
organised pipe manufacturing sector.

By the end of March 2023, the government was
estimated to have provided 1.66 crore® rural
households with tap water connections, achieving
a 60% coverage milestone. Statesthat have a higher
number of households for tap connections include
Rajasthan, Kerala, Manipur, Tripura, Maharashtra,
Madhya Pradesh, Mizoram and Sikkim.

It is crucial to note that the organised piping
manufacturers will benefit the most from
the government outlay on water connections
and their existing strong presence in the rural
market. Although unorganised players have the
chance to participate in government projects,
they are expected to upgrade facilities and get
ISI certifications.

Similarly, the PM Awas Yojana which is on the
mission to provide housing for all got a massive
boost of nearly 68% by being allocated X 79,000
crore® in the Union Budget 2023-2024. The
existing inventory of housing has been reduced
and this combined with the huge allocation
of funds will translate to a huge demand for
affordable housing. Last year the scheme
allocated X 48,000 crore to complete 8 million
houses for eligible beneficiaries. This allocation
will help boost the housing sector which would
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also directly benefit the piping industry to meet
plumbing requirements.

Other relevant government initiatives and
schemes include AMRUT - Atal Mission for
Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation,
Swachh Bharat Mission, and Pradhan Mantri
Krishi Sinchai Yojana (PMKSY) would further
help boost demand in the piping industry
within the country.

These initiatives and schemes combined
with strategic planning to target market with
relatively low penetration would further ensure
that the piping industry has the environment
for sustained high growth moving forward.

A significant share of the market remains
unorganised although the share of organised
players Currently,
approximately 65% of the Indian piping industry
is organised with the UPVC segment being
57-58% organised and 80% of the CPVC market
segment being organised. India is the fastest-
growing consumer of PVC and there remains
a large scope for sustained growth. Pipes and
fittings form 73% of the end consumer market
for PVC in India with the top 5 players expected
to consolidate in market share.

continues to rise.

The biggest drivers of growth in the Indian
piping industry are the rising demand from the
irrigation, water supply and sanitation sectors in
addition to the demand for the replacement of
metal pipes in the residential real estate market.

These growth estimates are influenced by factors such as:

The government’s
focus on improving
irrigation facilities
and infrastructure
to increase farmer
income

Improving
water supply
and sanitation
infrastructure

Sources

9 Press Information Bureau

10 The Business Standard
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Raw material cost fluctuations combined with
increasing customer awareness about quality of
products and tax compliance becoming more
stringent has led to an increasing capture of
market share by large organised players. This is
expected to continue with the largest organised
players gaining more market share even
when compared to other regional organised
companies who have struggled with growth.

The piping market is being driven by rapid
urbanisation,demandforlargeandcost-effective
sewage lines, increasing public and private
initiatives, and infrastructure developments, in
addition to the factors mentioned earlier. The
growing usage of PVC in flooring applications
across private, commercial, and industrial
premises is expected to contribute to the
growing demand for PVC Resin.

3. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Finolex Industries Limited, also known as
Finolex, FIL, or Finolex Pipes, is a prominent
producer of PVC resin in India, as well as a
top brand in pipes and fittings, with a strong
reputation for trustworthiness. In fact, Finolex is
the largest backward integrated pipes company
in the country. We offer a wide range of PVC
pipes and fittings suitable for applications in
agriculture, plumbing and sanitation. With
four state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities in
Maharashtra and Gujarat, we have a pipes and
fittings production capacity of 4,00,000 MT per
annum and a PVC resin manufacturing capacity
of 2,72,000 MT per annum. During the financial
year 2022-23, we have commenced commercial
production of PVC fittings at a new state of art
manufacturing facility in Talegaon near Pune,
Maharashtra with annual capacity of 12,000 MT.

4,00,000 MT PER ANNUM

Pipes and fittings production capacity

2,72,000 MT PER ANNUM

PVC Resin manufacturing capacity
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3. FINOLEX PIPES - OUR COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE
Strong
Brand
Legacy
4+
Decades of Solid
Leadership Financials
Competitive )
Class Advantages
Leading Trusted by
Quality Stakeholders

—'

Nationwide Dependable

Footprint Supplier
Base

While factors such as rising input costs and
disruptions to supply chain logistics could have
temporary impacts, our company has been able
to innovate and adapt to expand our presence.
Over the years, we have consistently expanded
our product range and distribution network,
bolstering our position in the plumbing and
sanitation market. Additionally, we have adeptly
embraced the opportunities presented by
growing markets like CPVC pipes and fittings.
With these strategic moves, our company stands
well-prepared for the future, fully equipped
to cater to the evolving needs of the housing,
construction, and infrastructure segments.

3.1.1 LONG-LASTING AND DURABLE PIPES

Four decades of product excellence -
superior quality, strong and durable pipes

For the last eour decades, Finolex has
persisted in improving and perfecting its
product range by using the highest quality
raw materials combined with state-of-the-art
technology and manufacturing processes.

Our approach to creating strong and durable
pipes and fittings has seen us steadily add
depth to our products and we have never
compromised on our quality standards.

This constant drive to build quality into every
aspect of our business has also seen our
network of dealers and retail touchpoints grow
by leaps and bounds.
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Backward Integration in PVC Resin -

One of our biggest advantages in producing
quality products is our backward integration into
PVC resin production. This ability makes us the
only company in India with this capability.

The advantages of backward integration are
numerous starting with consistent quality,
cost optimisation and uninterrupted raw
material availability for production. This has
been achieved thanks to the foresight of our
leaders. The captive jetty in Ratnagiri allows
Finolex to import raw material that is used in
manufacturing PVC resin. This steady supply
of raw materials allows Finolex to control and
maintain the quality of our products. In addition,
the Ratnagiri facility includes a power station
ensuring a steady power supply and further
reducing manufacturing costs.

All these factors ensure our company can
maintain the quality of raw materials and
finished products, optimise costs, and remain at
the top of our industry.

Robust manufacturing plants —

Finolex has four manufacturing plants. Three in
Maharashtra (Ratnagiri, Urse and Talegaon) and a
fourth in Gujarat (Masar). Our insistence on quality
is reflected by the ISO 9001:2015 certification that
all our manufacturing facilities hold.

Our flagship facility in Ratnagiri includes its
own open sea cryogenic jetty to receive raw
materials, storage facilities to stock them, a
PVC pipe manufacturing plant, and a PVC resin

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Suppliers

&

End Users

&
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manufacturing facility in technical collaboration
with Uhde GmbH, Germany with Hoechst
Technology. In-house resin manufacturing
ensures that all our pipe manufacturing plants,
across locations, receive a dedicated supply of
consistent and superior-quality resin.

The keyword is quality. Finolex ensures
quality across its four facilities by using the
latest technologies and most up-to-date
manufacturing processes, which all lead to the
further enhancement of value and the brand.

3.1.2 LONG-LASTING RELATIONSHIPS

Our company values the support of its
stakeholders and takes proactive measures
to interact with them. It is of paramount
importance to our leadership to ensure that
thereisregularinteractionwithourstakeholders
to understand their concerns and interests.
Through our diverse range of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives, we actively
engagewithand upliftunderprivileged sections
of society, ensuring inclusivity and making a
positive impact in the communities we serve.
Our CSR programmes encompass various areas
such as education, healthcare, environmental
sustainability, and social welfare. We are
committed to fostering inclusivity by extending
support and opportunities to the marginalised
and underprivileged, empowering them to
lead better lives and contribute to the overall
development of society. Our various modes of
engagement ensure longer-lasting relations
with stakeholders and society.

Dealers/
Retailers

sy
=0

Plumbers

&

Farmers

=4




3.1.3 EMPOWERED COMMUNITIES

Our company's commitment extends beyond
providing products and services for the
development of our nation. Rather, it is intertwined
with our fundamental philosophy of empowering
the people of India. Through our collaboration with

the Mukul Madhav Foundation, we continuously

MUKUL MADHAV FOUNDATION
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strive to improve the lives of the communities we
serve. Our goal is to create a network that fosters
people's aspirations and equips them with the
necessary skills to enhance their standard of living.
Our efforts span across education, healthcare,
sanitation, environment, and social welfare
programmes. We do not merely donate funds, but
also empower individuals with dignity.

Our CSR partner, the Mukul Madhav Foundation (MMF) is a charitable trust founded in 1999,
with an overseas office in London, U.K. Registered under the Bombay Charitable Act 1950, MMF's
mission is to help the most vulnerable communities with quality healthcare, education, equality,
clean water, and sanitation thereby uplifting their standard of living and empowering people to
rise above their circumstances. Together, our Company and MMF are building a legacy that inspires

and unites.

These are our focus areas:

Agriculture & rural development projects
Ensuring environmental sustainability
Eradicating extreme hunger and poverty
Promotion of education

Promotion of vocational skills and
livelihoods

Promoting gender equality and

empowering women

Promoting preventive healthcare
Promoting sports

Safe drinking water and sanitation
Support differently-abled

Technology incubators

Support for Armed forces/veterans
Contribution to Swachh Bharat Kosh Clean
Ganga Fund

Animal welfare

4. OVERVIEW OF THE PLUMBING

AND SANITATION SECTOR

When it comes to constructing either
residential or commercial properties, it is
imperative to have a robust plumbing and
sanitation system in place to guarantee
cleanliness and safe drinking water. With the
need for future houses and smart cities on the
rise, PVC pipes present an ideal solution. These
pipes are crafted with precision and quality,

ensuring excellent hygiene standards and safe
disposal of wastewater. Capable of transporting
a wide range of substances such as liquids,
gases, and waste, PVC Pipes are the present and
future of the plumbing and sanitation industry
in the country, all while creating millions of
employment opportunities.
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4.1 OVERVIEW OF FINOLEX PIPES USED IN THE PLUMBING
AND SANITATION SECTOR

ASTM PIPES AND FITTINGS: CPVC PIPES AND FITTINGS:

Designed for potable water distribution and Finolex Pipes’ premium offering which is ideal for
plumbing applications as it is lead-free and hot and cold-water applications and are suitable
corrosion resistant. for indoor and outdoor distribution systems.
Applications: Applications

e Sugar Industry, Paper Industry, e Hospitals

Distillery lines . .
Y e Academic Institutes

e Cold water plumbing

Hotels & Resorts

® Piping systems for swimming pools O BiETInG Feels

* Pipes forhand pumps e Manufacturing Plants

s iclenclstibotioniyaigs e High-rise and independent houses

e Industrial process lines .
Features and Benefits

Features & Benefits: e [ead free and Environment & health
e | ead-free and Environment and health- friendly
friendly

e UV stabilised
* UY Stabllls?d Shctuinsipiote St e |deal for hot and cold-water applications
direct sunlight

. ® Fire resistant
e |deal for potable water transportation

. e High Impact Strength
e Meet global standards for housing and

industry application ® |Leak proof joints
e Tough, Durable, and Immune to termites e Corrosion-free
e Corrosion-free and chemical resistant For more information, refer to our website
here

For more information, refer to our

website here
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SWR PIPES AND FITTINGS:

These pipes are designed using high grade

raw materials and are ideal for the efficient

removal of waste in the drainage system.

Applications

Waste discharge system in residences,
commercial complexes, resorts,
hospital etc.

Venting of gases and odour in domestic
plumbing

Rainwater transportation and harvesting for
residential and commercial buildings

Features and Benefits

UV Stabilised
Corrosion and rust proof
Lightweight

Non-reactive to acids, alkalis, effluents, salts,
and minerals

Good resistance to combustion
Stringent quality control

Leak Proof

For more information, refer to our website

here
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SEWERAGE PIPES:

These underground and sewerage pipes are
designed to carry night soil and waste from
buildings to the drainage system and in turn
to treatment plants. This is ideal for buildings
where hygiene is a priority.

Applications

Gravity Drainage

Transportation and discharge of industrial
effluents

Drainage of surface water

Sewer flow for transportation of night soil
and water discharge

Features and Benefits

Corrosion and rust proof
Good resistance to combustion

Non-reactive to acids, alkalis, effluents, salts,
and minerals

Easy Installation, Low frictional losses and
scale formation

Non-conductor of electricity

For more information, refer to our website

here
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4.2 KEY GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES IN THE AREA OF CLEAN
DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION

The Jal Jeevan Mission led by the Government of India aspires to provide safe and adequate drinking
water through individual household tap connections by 2024 to all households in rural India.

;::v:laar: With a focus on the implementation of source sustainability, the Jal Jeevan Mission will mandate
Missi greywater management, water conservation, and rainwater harvesting. The functions under this
S mission include providing Funtional Household Tap Connection (FHTC), In-village water supply
infrastructure, and retrofitting of completed and ongoing piped water supply schemes to provide
FHTC and improve services.
Swachh o e . - !
The Swachh Bharat Mission and the National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) will propel
Bharat ; ] - N A . 1
.. investments in Water Supply and Sanitation (WSS) and therefore impact plumbing and sanitation
LA d he Swachh Bharat Mission f h ion of household iti
National pro ucts: T e Swac r arat Ission focuses on the coqstructlon of households, cfommunl.tles,
Mission for and public toilets, including conversion to pour-flush latrines. All of these factors will help drive the

plumbing and sanitation sectors.

Clean Ganga

Atal Mission for
Rejuvenation

& Urban
Transformation

Atal Mission for Rejuvenation & Urban Transformation (AMRUT) initiative by the government
is focused on providing basic infrastructure services such as water supply, sewerage, stormwater
drains, and the development of green spaces.

The objective of the Smart Cities Mission is to promote cities to provide core infrastructure with,
Smart Cities a clean and sustainable environment and therefore, create a respectable quality of life for citizens
Mission through the application of smart solutions. Infrastructure elements include adequate water
supply, sanitation and affordable housing.

4.3 OUTLOOK 5. OVERVIEW OF THE
In India, it is estimated that up to 40% of water is AGRICU LTURE SECTOR

lostin transmission due to ageing pipe networks
which makes the pipes and fittings business
crucial in assuring the safe and clean use of
water. From January 2023 to March 2023, the Jal
Jeevan Mission has achieved the remarkable feat
of providing 86,894 new tap water connections.
So far, a total of 58 Crore people have access to
clean drinking water through taps.

The domestic plastic pipes industry is estimated
to be X 315 billion" with organised players sharing
nearly 65% of market. The pipes and plastic fittings
industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of 14%
between FY18 — FY26. The drivers of this growth
are a combination of demand in the market
and government initiatives that are focused on
infrastructure in urban and rural areas.

Sources

11 Times of India
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The agriculture sector serves as the main 51 OVERVIEW OF FINOLEX PIPES
source of livelihood for approximately 58% of USED IN THE AGRICULTURE SECTOR

India's population. At present, India holds the
distinction of being the largest producer of an
array of commodities, including spices, pulses,
milk, tea, cashew, and jute. Additionally, the
country is also the second-largest producer
of wheat, rice, fruits, vegetables, sugarcane,
cotton, and oilseeds.

Over the last few years, the agriculture sector
has demonstrated resilience and witnessed
growth. With the distinction of being the largest
employer of the workforce, the Gross Value
Added (GVA) for agriculture and allied sector
grew by 3.3%"? in constant price terms in FY23.
This increase is largely due to a rise in prices
of almost all major agricultural commodities,
especially cereals such as wheat and rice. PVC-U PIPES (SELFIT AND RINGFIT)
As per the first advance estimates for 2022-
2023 (kharif only), total foodgrain production in

India is estimated at 149.92 million tonnes with
rice production at 104.99 million tonnes.

These pipes and fittings are specifically
manufactured and designed for varied
pressure and gravity flow applications in
agriculture, irrigation, swimming pools and

India’sagriculturaland processed food products domestic water supply.
exports in FY23, were up by 9% compared to

the same period last year and reached $26.3 Applications

billion™. Moreover, growth in the allied sectors ® |rrigation Schemes

including livestock, dairying and fisheries have .
] . o e Potable water supply lines
experienced high growth and seen big jumps

in export numbers. e Biogas plants

Government initiatives include promoting * Rising main and distribution lines
micro-irrigation via dry and sprinkler systems e Main lines for sprinkler and drip irrigation
under the ‘Per Drop More Crop’ component

of Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchayee Yojana * Household applications

(PMKSY-PDMC). Other schemes and initiatives
such as enhancing allocation to the rural

infrastructure development fund, SWAMTIVA e Non-reactive to acids, alkalis, effluents, salts,
and minerals

Features and Benefits

Scheme, and pushing crop diversification
with Minimum Support Price (MSP) are all e All weather jointing

suggestive of the agriculture and allied sectors o . . ) o
e Quick installation with Ringfit pipelines

experiencing sustainable growth.
e | ow frictional losses and scaling
® |ncreased product life

For information, refer to our website here

Sources

12 Press Information Bureau

13 The Financial Express
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CASING PIPES

Manufactured using a special Lead-Free
PVC-U compound, these casing pipes are ideal
for the transportation of hard, salty, sandy

or chemical aggressive water and so protect
water lines from soil conditions.

Applications

e Domestic

® |rrigation

e Bore-well casing
e |ndustrial Mining

Features and Benefits

e | ead-free

e Excellent stiffness helps pipes withstand
external pressure

e Horizontal slots enable laminar flow into the
borewell reducing losses at the entrance of
the borewell

e Non-conductors of electricity
e Maintenance-free and economical

e Manufactured from a special PVC-U
compound with extra toughness

® |ncreased permeability due to
continuous ribs

e Easy and quick installation

For more information, refer to our

website here
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COLUMN PIPES

These pipes are suitable for water extraction
from bore wells as they are uniquely
designed and manufactured using lead-free
compounds which allows them to withstand
system load such as the weight of the pump,
water and pipes for additional safety.

Applications

e |deal for both urban and rural extraction of

water from borewells
Features and Benefits
e Lightweight

e Easy to install

High tensile strength

High torque resistance

Lead-free
e Anti-abrasion and anti-corrosion

For more information, refer to our welbsite
here


https://www.finolexpipes.com/agriculture-products/casing-pipes/
https://www.finolexpipes.com/agriculture-products/column-pipes/

SOLVENT CEMENT

Our solvents are manufactured under license
from Invogue Labs Inc. New York, U.S.A. with
strict in-house quality standards to guarantee
superior quality. This range of solvent cements
facilitate strong joints between pipe to pipe,

fitting to fitting or pipe to fitting combinations.

Applications

e To facilitate strong and consistent joints
between pipes, fittings, or pipe-to-fitting
combinations

Features and Benefits

e High-quality applicator for user-friendly and
smooth application

e Colour-coded solvent packaging for ease of
identification

e Non-toxic and non-flammable

e Environmentally friendly due to Low VOC
emission

For more information, refer to our website here

5.2 KEY GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES
TO BOOST THE AGRICULTURE SECTOR

e Kisan Drones — Use of drones to spray farms
with pesticides and nutrients to double
farmers’ income. The drones will then also
be used to carry produce from the farms
to the markets directly and/or for crop
assessment
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e The government raised the farm credit
target to X 20 lakhs crore for FY24 with
a focus on the development of animal
husbandry, dairy and fisheries sector

e Promoting natural farming — assistance will
be provided over a period of three years to 1
crore farmers and 10,000 bio input resource
centres will be established

e X 6,000 crore investment in a subsidiary of
Pradhan Mantri Matsya Sampada Yojana
to promote endeavours of fishermen, fish
vendors, and micro and small enterprises
to enhance the value chain and reach
markets

e T 70,000 crore allocated ‘Har Ghar, Nal Se
Jal’ for FY24

e Funds allocated to promote micro irrigation
in drought-prone areas of the country

e Government to launch ‘Atmanirbhar Clean
Plant Programme’ to boost the availability
of disease-free, quality planting material for
high-value horticulture crops with X 2,200
crore budget allocation

e RBI to raise the credit limit for collateral-
free agriculture loans to X 1.6 lakhs

e Agriculture Accelerator Fund’ to be set up
to promote startups in rural India

5.3 oUTLOOK

The agriculture and allied sectors in India
are expected to continue to grow boosted by
government initiatives including improving
productivity and enhancing the efficiency of
resource utilisation. Additional measures such
as digitalisation via platforms like e-NAM which
integrated 1260 APMC mandis across 22 states
and 3 union territories have helped facilitate
online trading of 203 agriculture and horticulture
commodities that enable farmers to realise
better remunerative prices for their produce.

Initiatives for logistics support such as
transportation, cargo centres, and cold
storage facilities has set the industry up to
take advantage of growth opportunities,
maximise revenue and reduce wastage. Some
of the supply-side drivers such as hybrid and
genetically modified seeds will further enhance
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productivity. India is also at the forefront
of agricultural research and development
which have a public-private partnership
with innovative funding resulting in better
productivity.

All of this is complemented by the policy
support from the Government and increasing
agriculture exports which sets the industry up
for sustainable growth in the years to come.

6. THREATS

Our Company continues to remain vigilant
to any threats that the business may face
and we are committed to being prepared
for unforeseen circumstances through good
governance, forethought and planning.

Re-occurrence of COVID-19 pandemic-like
conditions

A potential reoccurrence of the COVID-19
pandemic could have a significant impact
on businesses and industries, as it remains a
persistent threat worldwide. Although some
regions have entered a post-pandemic phase,
the rising number of COVID-19 cases in other
countries suggests that the threat is not yet
over. The construction industry, for example,
could experience strain again as workers are
required on construction sites and cannot work
remotely. Therefore, it is essential to maintain
vigilance and prioritise employee safety
to mitigate potential impacts on business
and industry.

Low consumer spending

Although trends suggest that consumer
spending is on the rise, potential economic
downturns abroad and an increase in inflation
could put a damper on spending. The lingering
effects of the pandemic and rising inflation
globally, may continue to weigh on consumers'
minds and impact their spending decisions.
Additionally, geopolitical tensions could further
exacerbate economic uncertainties.

Rise in costs

While there has been some moderation in oil
prices recently, any escalation in the Ukraine
conflict or energy supply disruptions could
potentially impact commodity prices, including
industries such as construction and agriculture.
The conflict hasalready led to inflation in several
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economies due to supply chain disruptions,
which has affected not only agriculture-related
products like fertilisers and potassium but also
other sectors such as housing.

7. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Revenue (X Crore)

4,647 4397

3,462

FYy21 FYy22 FY23

PAT/PAT margin (X Crore)/(%)

1,053
2267
728
.03
7
538
FY21 Fv22 Fv23

EBITDA/EBITDA margin (X Crore)/(%)

989 1,024
28.57
22.03
293
6.65
FY21 FY22 FY23
ROCE (%)
6503 ©7:09
1717
FY21 FY22 FY23



Interest coverage ratio (times)

136.08
72.66
l 10.74
|
Fy21 Fv22 FY23

Inventory turnover ratio (times)

3.64
2.95
217
FY21 Fv22 Fv23
EV/EBITDA (times)
36.18
795 9.37
FY21 FYy22 Fv23
Current ratio (times)
1.26 12
0.94
FY21 FY22 FY23

Return on net worth (%)

23.69

|

27.27
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Debt-equity ratio (times)

omn
0.07 0.07 I
FY21 FY22 FY23

Debtors turnover ratio (times)

31.31
19.27
I 13.91
FY21 Fv22 FY23

Market capitalisation (X Crore)

10,585
9,596
7,864 I
FY21 FY22 FY23
EPS (X / per share)
16.98
11.73
3.82
FY21 FY22 FY23

I 4.90

FYy21

FY22

FY23
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Particulars Unit FY22 Variance

Revenue Cr 4,397 4,647 -5%

EBITDA Cr 293 1,024 -71% Reduction in EBITDA is primarily
attributable to sharp correction in PVC
prices during the year.

EBITDA % 6.65% 22.03% -15%

margin

PAT Cr 237 1053 -78% Reduction in net profit ratio is in line
with reductionin profitsduring theyear
which, in turn, is primarily attributable
to sharp correction in PVC prices.

PAT margin % 5.38% 22.67% -17%

RoCE % 17.17% 67.09% -50% The reduction in return on capital
employed ratio is in line with reduction
in profits during the year which, in
turn, is primarily attributable to sharp
correction in PVC prices.

Interest Times 10.74 72.66 -85% Reduction in interest coverage

coverage ratio is due to reduction in net profits
and increase in the interest
rate regime.

Debt-equity Times 0.1 0.07 52% The increase in debt equity ratio is due

ratio to higher buyers'credit outstanding as at
March 31, 2023, compared with March 3],
2022. On a net debt basis, the Company
is debt free as at March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022.

Inventory Times 3.64 2.95 23%

turnover ratio

Debtors Times 13.91 19.27 -28% Debtors Turnover Ratio decreased due to

turnover ratio increase in average Trade Receivable in
FY23 in line with increase in revenue from
plumbing and sanitation.

EV/EBITDA Times 36.18 9.37 286% Attibutable to reduction in net profits
during the year.

Market Cr 10,585 9,596 10%

capitalisation

Current ratio Times 0.94 1.2 -21%

EPS T Per 3.82 16.98 -78% Reduction in profits during the year

share which, in turn, is primarily attributable
to sharp correction in PVC prices during
the year.

Return on net % 4.90% 27.27% -22%

worth
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT AND MITIGATION

We place a high value on transparency in information sharing, which involves providing accurate
information and being open to scrutiny and judgement. We believe that transparency isimportant for
building communication and promoting authenticity and competency. Finolex Pipes is committed
to upholding transparency in all its business operations and considers it a responsibility to disclose
relevant information to stakeholders. We also aim to provide comprehensive information in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section of our Annual Report.

Risk Mitigation

Economic Risk

A repeat of major events such as a recurrence
of COVID-19 pandemic lockdown along
with other geopolitical crises may impact
economic growth

India’s economic growth is still expected to
become the fastest-growing major economy
in the world, due to progressive initiatives by
the Central Government including regulatory
reforms, investment plan propositions, and
budgetary support. Our Company has proven
to be resilient, consistent, and sustainable in
providing growth and delivering robust results.

Competition Risk

New players entering the market in addition
to other organised players looking to increase
market share with a rise in opportunities
does pose a risk to our predicted margins and
market share

Our Company has worked tirelessly to
maintain its competitive advantage. This has
been achieved by differentiating its value
proposition and we believe taking such actions
continuously will ensure we remain relevant
and at an advantage over the competition.
Some of the actions taken to achieve
this include:

-Focus on the plumbing and sanitation
business through enhanced credit to dealers,
the addition of new SKUs, and entering new
markets like the North East of India

- Maintain the highest product quality standards

- Increase our network of dealers and deepen
our relationship with them

- Regular and important branding exercises

-lmproved logistics networks to increase
our reach

- Increased participation of on-field influencers
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Risk Mitigation

Input Risk

An increase in the prices of raw materials may
impact the Company’s margins and affect our
profitability

Within the Pipes and Fittings segment, any
adverse impact of an increase in raw material
prices is generally passed on to its customers,
thereby protecting the Company from price
fluctuations.

In the PVC Resin segment, our Company is
affected by the volatility of prices of certain
commodity chemicals (Ethylene and PVC) and
intermediates (EDC and VCM). Our operations
require a continuous purchase and supply
of materials such as Vinyl Chloride Monomer
(VCM), Ethylene and Ethylene Dichloride (EDC)
for the manufacturing of PVC Resin. The prices
of PVC Resin manufactured by usare monitored
by Company Management and adjusted to
respond to a change in the import parity price
of PVC in the market. The market price of input
and output are generally adjusted over a period
of time and therefore, the Company is exposed
to price variations only for a limited period.

Geographic Concentration Risk

There remains the risk of concentration of
the business in only a few geographies which
may limit our Company’s customer reach and
engagement. Additionally, this may impact
marketability and consumer familiarity which
may impact our profitability.

This risk has been mitigated by the fact that
the Company has established 4 separate plants
in Ratnagiri, Pune, Masar and Talegoan along
with a wide distribution network of dealers
and retailers that cater to customers across
the country including less penetrated market
regions such as the North East of India.
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9. HUMAN RESOURCES

We put our people at the center of what we do
and consider them critical for our success. We
have outlined our HR Strategy which has three
pillars — Culture, Career and Compensation &
benefits. Our HR Strategy helps us in building
better organisation capabilities, hire and retain
best talent and create a culture that delivers
long term value and sustained competiveness
in the market place.

Our employee value proposition, clearly
“We strive to be best
at what we do, both in eyes of our customers

defines our priorities —

and our co-workers. We believe in healthy
work-life balance. We are truly one team with
complementary strengths so that everyone is
adding value. We bring meaning to everyone’s
life by wholeheartedly giving back to our
society. We are Finolex Parivaar !I". We have
implemented several initiatives to help skill our
employeestofurtherenhancetheir productivity
and increase employee engagement. We
continue to dedicate our resources towards
the development of leadership skills and
competencies to ensure employee growth
within the organisation.

These initiatives have also helped in retaining
our best talent while also establishing the
organisation as an attractive workplace with
an engaged and productive workforce. As of
March 31, 2023, our employee strength stood at
1,478 and we invested 26,680 hours in Learning
and Development of our employees.

10. INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

Our has positioned adequate internal control
procedures, proportionate to the nature of
the business and size of operations for the
smooth conduct of business. Internal audits are
conducted at regular intervals at all the plants
and cover key areas of operations. These audits
are independent, objective and responsible
for evaluating and improving the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance
processes. An Audit Committee, consisting
of five independent directors and one non-
independent & non-executive director, monitors
the performance of the internal audits. This is
conducted periodically through audit plans, audit
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findings and the promptness of issue resolution
through follow-ups.

11. INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROL

The Company has well-established and well-
documented internal financial controls, which
are commensurate with the nature of our
business and the size and complexity of its
operations. These controls form the basis of
the overall framework of governance under
which the Company operates. Moreover, these
controls ensure the adequate safeguarding of
our assets, adherence to the Company’s policies,
prevention and detection of errors, accuracy and
completeness of financial records along with
the necessary checks and balances to ensure
the smooth functioning of the organisation.
The internal financial controls are reviewed
periodically to ensure their effectiveness and
sustenance are maintained.

12. CAUTIONARY
STATEMENT

In this Annual Report, we may have disclosed
information to enable investors to comprehend
our prospects and take informed investment
decisions. This report and other statements -
written and oral - that we periodically make,
may contain statements that set out anticipated
results based on the management’s plans and
assumptions. We have tried wherever possible
to identify such statements by using words such
as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects),
‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar
substance in connection with any discussion
of future performance. We cannot guarantee
that these statements will be realised, although
we believe we have been prudent in these
assumptions. The achievement of results is
subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or
uncertainties materialise, or should underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results
could vary materially fromm those anticipated,
estimated or projected. Readers should bear this
in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update any statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, except as
may be required by law.
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Board of Directors’ Report

To the Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the forty-second annual report together with the audited financial
statements (standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

State of the Company’s affairs:

Financial Results

(R in Crore)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 m 2022-23 2021-22
Profit before depreciation, exceptional items & finance 41392 106.90 43772 1104.50
charges
Less: Finance charges 2723 14.09 27.23 14.09
Profit before depreciation, exceptional items and taxation 386.69 1,092.81 410.49 1,090.41
Less: i. Depreciation 89.20 83.40 89.20 83.40
ii. Exceptional items (gain)/loss - (376.06) - (376.06)
iii. Provision for taxation 60.90 332.00 70.59 331.72
Profit after depreciation, exceptional items and taxation 236.59 1,053.47 250.70 1,051.35
Add/(Less) :
i. Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 2,972.33 2,160.17 30.36.38 2,226.25
ii. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans and income (0.26) (0.24) (0.24) (0.15)
tax effect
iii. Dividend (248.19) (248.19) (248.19) (248.19)
Retained earnings at the end of the year 2,960.47 2,965.21 3,038.65 3,029.26
Earning per equity share: 3.82 16.98 4.04 16.94
Operations
The operational performance is summarized below:
(X in Crore)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 L] 202223 B RS
Revenue from Operations 4,397.05 4.647.32 4,397.05 4,647.32
Other Income 121.38 83.16 120.92 82.23
Total Income 4. 518.43 4,730.48 451797 472955
Profit before tax (before exceptional item) 297.49 1,009.41 297.03 1,008.48
Exceptional item gain/(loss) - 376.06 - 376.06
Profit before tax (after exceptional item) 297.49 1,385.47 297.03 1,384.54
Share of profit of associate before tax - - 24.26 (1.47)
Profit after tax 236.59 1,053.47 250.70 1,051.35
PVC Pipes and Fittings
Production —in MTs 301,830 230,847 301,830 230,847
Sale —in MTs 303,026 236,895 303,026 236,895
Sale —in ¥ Crores 4113.28 3,852.67 411328 3,852.67
PVC Resin
Production - in MTs 232,463 214,186 232,463 214,186
Sale —in MTs (including inter divisional): 239,638 224924 239,638 224,924
Sale —in % Crores (including inter divisional): 2,271.02 2,962.10 2,271.02 2,962.10
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The total capacity of PVC pipes & fittings stands at
4,00,000 MT p.a. The sales volume for PVC pipes
& fittings was 303,026 MT for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 as against 2,36,895 MT for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022. Total standalone
income was at %4,518.43 Crore for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 against %4,730.48 Crore for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022. Profit after
tax was at 3236.59 Crore for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 as against %1,053.47 Crore for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022.

During the period under review, your Company has
commenced commercial operations of PVC fittings at a
new state-of-the-art manufacturing facility at Talegaon,
Pune (Maharashtra) with effect from March 12, 2023.
The annual capacity of the said facility is 12,000 MT and
the CAPEX is approximately ¥100 Crore, which has been
funded entirely through internal accruals.

Dividend

The Board of Directors has recommended dividend of
71.50/- (i.e. 75%) per equity share (subject to deduction
of tax at source). The dividend on equity shares, if
approved by the Members, will absorb ¥93.07 Crore.

According, to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is
taxable in the hands of the Members w.e.f. April 1, 2020
and the Company is required to deduct tax at source
(TDS) from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed
rates as per the Income-tax Act, 1961.

According to Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (the ‘Listing Regulations’) the top 1000 listed
entities based on market capitalization, calculated
as on March 31, of every financial year are required to
formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy which shall
be disclosed on the website of the listed entity and a
web-link shall also be provided in the Annual Report.
Accordingly, the Dividend Distribution Policy of the
Company can be accessed using the following link
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12927/
dividend_distribution_policy.pdf.

Transfer to Reserves

The Board does not propose to transfer any amount to
the General Reserve, during the financial year ended
March 31, 2023. During the previous financial year, no
amount was transferred to General Reserve. The total
comprehensive Income for the year is 1,202.64 Crore
(Previous year 1,039.07 Crores) was transferred to
Reserves and Surplus of Balance Sheet.

Deposits

During the financial year, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public described under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and as
such no amount on account of principal or interest on
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deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of
the balance sheet.

The Company had no unpaid /unclaimed deposit(s) as
on March 31, 2023.

Management discussion and analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis, as required
in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is annexed
and forms an integral part of this report.

Consolidation of financial statements

As at the end of the financial year 2022-2023, your
Company does not have any subsidiary Company.
However, it does have two associate companies
namely ‘Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited’ and
‘Pawas Port Limited".

YourCompany hasconsolidated the financialsof Finolex
Plasson Industries Private Limited. The Company has
not consolidated financials of an immaterial associate
viz. ‘Pawas Port Limited’, in which your Company holds
49.99% equity shares (R0.05 Crore) and it has also not
started operations.

The consolidated financial statements prepared as per
the provisions of Section 129 of the Act and Schedule
[Il of the Act, are annexed and forms an integral part
of this report.

Revision in financial statements

There has been no revision in the financial statements
of the Company during the financial year 2022-23.

Subsidiary and Associate Companies

In terms of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement
containing salient features of the financial statements
of the associate or joint venture company(ies) in
Form AOC-1and forms an integral part of this report.

Pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the performance and financial position of
the associate or joint venture companies is included in
the consolidated financial statements which forms an
integral part of this report.

During the financial year 2022-23, there is no change in
associate company(ies) of the Company.

The Company has formulated the policy on material
subsidiaries in consonance with the provisions of
Regulation 16(i)(c) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, As
required under Regulation 46(2)(h) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Material Subsidiary Policy has been
uploaded on the Company's website and can be
accessed through https:/www.finolexpipes.com/site/
assets/files/12930/policy_on_material_subsidiary-1.pdf.
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Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related party disclosures as specified in Para A of

Schedule V are given below:

Sr. Inthe Disclosure of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of loans/ Remarks
No. accounts of advances/investments outstanding during the year
1. Holding Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiary by name and No Holding
Company amount. Company.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and
amount.
Loan and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and amount.
2. Subsidiary Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company in the accounts of No
subsidiary company. Subsidiary
Company
3. Holding Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary No Holding
Company company, when the company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan. Company

There are no transactions made by the Company
with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/
promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more
shareholding in the Company.

Contracts or arrangements with related
parties

The particulars of related party transactions are stated
in the note no. 37 in the financial statements and
Annexure-1which forms an integral part of this report.

The related party transactions that were entered into
during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business of the
Company and prior omnibus approval is obtained for
related party transactions which are of repetitive nature.

No material related party transactions, i.e. transaction
with a related party exceeding Rupees One Thousand
Crore or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, as
per the last audited Financial Statements of your
Company whichever is lower, had been entered
with any related party. There are no materially
significant related party transactions entered by
the Company with its Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons
which may have a potential conflict of interest with
the Company at large.

Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions
as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable and hence
does not form part of this report. All related party
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
for its approval. The Company has developed a related
party transactions Manual, Standard Operating
Procedures for the purpose of identifying and
monitoring such transactions.
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Your Company has formulated a policy on related
party transactions and on dealing with related party
transactions (‘RPT Policy’). The Policy is available on
Company's website and can be accessed through
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12932/
related_party_transactions_policy.pdf

Corporate Governance

A separate report on corporate governance in
compliance with corporate governance requirements
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to
(i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and
para C, D and E of Schedule V and Regulation 34 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations along with compliance
certificate dated May 22, 2023 obtained from
M/s. SVD & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
is annexed and forms an integral part of this report

Material changes and commitments

Your directors confirm that there are no material
change(s) and commitment(s) affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company
and the date of this report.

Risk management

The Risk Management Committee wasduly constituted
by the Board and the details of the Committee along
with term of reference are provided in the Corporate
Governance forming an integral part of this report.

The Company has a robust risk management policy
and framework to identify, evaluate business risks
and opportunities. This framework seeks to create
transparency, minimize adverseimpactonthe business
objectives and enhance the Company's competitive
advantage. The business risk framework defines the
risk management approach across the enterprise at
various levels including documentation and reporting.
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The framework has different risk models which help
in identifying risks trend, exposure and potential
impact analysis at a Company level as also separately
for business segments. Risk management forms an
integral part of the business planning and forecasting.
The key business risks identified by the Company and
its mitigation plans are included in the management
discussion and analysis report.

Internal financial controls

Your Directors had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and such policies and
procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors,the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information. The Audit Committee evaluates the
internal financial controls systems periodically.

The scope and authority of the internal auditors are
defined by the Audit Committee from time to time.
To maintain its objectivity and independence, the
internal auditor’'s M/s. Ernst & Young, LLP report their
observations to the Audit Committee of the Board. The
internal auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control system in the Company,
its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies at all locations of the
Company. Based on the report of the internal auditors,
process owners undertake corrective action in their
respective areas which then strengthens the controls.
Audit observations and corrective actions thereon are
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. Based
on the work performed by the internal, statutory and
secretarial auditors and external consultants, including
the audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews
performed by management, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and effective during FY 2022-23.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

The Board of your Company is duly constituted with
a proper balance of executive, non-executive and
independent directors.

Pursuant to Section 149 (1) and 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (5) (iii) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details relating to directors
and key managerial personnel who were appointed /
re-appointed or resigned / retired are reported as under:

1. Appointment and re-appointment of Directors:

During the financial year 2022-23, the members
at the forty-first (41%) Annual General Meeting
held on August 30, 2022, approved the following
resolutions with regard to appointment /
re-appointment of Directors:
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Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria (DIN: 00016017)
Chairman of the Company was re-appointed
as the Whole-time Director designated as
Executive Director of the Company for a
period of five years from December 1, 2021 to
November 30, 2026.

ii. Mr. Sanjay S. Math (DIN: 01874086) was
re-appointed as a Managing Director of the
Company, for a period of six months from
December 1, 2021 to May 31, 2022.

iii.  Mr. Anil V. Whabi (DIN: 00142052), was
appointed as a Director and as a Whole-
time Director of the Company designated as
Director — Finance for a period of six months
from December1,2021to May 31,2022. He was
re-designated and appointed as Managing
Director for a period of one year from June T,
2022 to May 31, 2023.

iv.  Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti (DIN: 09594036)
was appointed as a Director and Whole-
time Director of the Company designated as
Director - Technical for a period of five years
from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2027

V.  Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria (DIN 00062144), was
re-appointed as Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director liable to retire by
rotation.

Retirement of Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing
Director

During the financial year 2022-23, Mr. Sanjay S.
Math was superannuated as Managing Director
on close of business hours of May 31, 2022. Your
Board places on record its sincere appreciation
for valuable contribution and timely guidance of
Mr. Math to the Company during his tenure.

Re-appointment of Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar,
Director

Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar (DIN: 00011322), Non-
Executive & Non-Independent Director will retire
by rotation as Director at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. The Board recommends his
re-appointment.

Re-appointment of Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale
Independent Director

Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale (DIN: 00007267), Non-
Executive & Independent Director, is proposed to
be re-appointed for the second consecutive term
of five years w.e.f. April 1, 2024 and she will not be
liable toretire by rotation. The Board recormmends
her re-appointment.
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Retirement of Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Managing
Director

Mr. Anil V. Whabi will retire as Managing Director
of the Company with effect from close of business
hours of May 31, 2023, after rendering close to
nine years of dedicated service to the Company.
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on
May 22, 2023 has considered and approved
the retirement of Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Managing
Director and also Key Managerial Personnel with
effect from close of business hours of May 31, 2023.
Mr. Anil V. Whabi will cease to be Director of the
Company with effect from end of business hours
of May 31, 2023.

Your Board placeson record itssincere appreciation
for the valuable contribution of Mr. Whabi and
timely guidance made by him during his tenure.

Appointment of Mr. Ajit Venkataraman,
Additional Director & Managing Director

Consequent to the retirement of Mr. Anil V.
Whabi, Managing Director on close of business
hours of May 31, 2023, the Board recommends
the appointment of Mr. Ajit Venkataraman
(DIN:  07289950), currently Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, as Additional Director
& designated him as Managing Director (Key
Managerial Personnel) for period of five years
w.e.fJunel,2023.

The resolutions for the aforesaid respective
appointment(s) / re-appointment(s) including
payment of their remuneration and details of
their brief resume, nature of expertise in specific
functional areas, disclosure of relationship
between directors inter-se, names of the listed
entities in which the person holds the directorship
and the membership of the Committee of the
Board of directors and shareholding in the
Company and other details as required pursuant
to SEBI Listing Regulations and the Secretarial
Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) are
contained in the notice of the 42" Annual General
Meeting.

The Board recommends the appointment and
re-appointment of Director, Managing Director
and Independent Director as stated above and
payment of their remuneration.

Independent Directors

Ms. Bhumika L. Batra (DIN: 03502004), Mrs.
Kanchan U. Chitale (DIN: 00007267), Dr. Deepak
R. Parikh (DIN: 06504537), Mr. Pradeep R.
Rathi (DIN: 00018577) and Mr. Anami N. Roy
(DIN: 01361110) are Non-Executive Independent
Directors of the Company. Pursuant to Section
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149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all Independent
Directors have submitted declaration that:

a) Each of them meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section
149 (6) of the Act along with Rules framed
thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations

b) They are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which exist or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with
an objective independent judgment and
without any external influence pursuant
to Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and there has been no change
in the circumstances affecting their status as
independent directors of the Company;

c) They have complied with the requirement
of inclusion of their name in the data bank
maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs as envisaged under Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019, as applicable
and they hold valid registration certificate
with Data Bank of Independent Directors;

Based on the confirmations/ disclosures
received from the Independent Non-
Executive Directors in terms of Regulation 25
of the SEBI Listing Regulations along-with a
certificate issued by M/s. SVD & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries, (Peer Review
No: P2013MHQO75200) Secretarial Auditors of
the Company, the Board of Directors is of the
opinion that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are of integrity and possess the
requisite expertise and experience (including
the proficiency).

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Managing
Director, Mr. Ajit Venkataraman, Chief Executive
Officer (w.ef. August 1, 2022) Mr. Niraj Kedia,
Chief Financial Officer (w.ef. May 20, 2022) and
Mr. Ashutosh B. Kulkarni, Company Secretary are
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as
on March 31, 2023.

The Board of Directors on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, at its meeting held on July 22,
2022 appointed Mr. Ajit Venkataraman, as Chief
Executive Officer and Key Managerial Personnel
with effect from August 1, 2022.



Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Managing Director of the
Company will superannuate on close of business
hours of May 31,2023 and accordingly he will cease
to be Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

The Board of Directors on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
at its meeting held on May 22, 2023 appointed
Mr. Ajit Venkataraman, as Managing Director and
Key Managerial Personnel with effect from June
1,2023.

Training and familiarization programme for
directors

The Company has adopted the familiarization
programme for independent directors in compliance
of the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
and with an aim to provide them with an insight into
their roles, rights, responsibilities within the Company,
the nature of the business of the Company and the
business model of the Company. The Board members
are provided with necessary documents, reports
and internal policies to enable them to familiarize
themselves with the Company's procedures and
practices.

Periodic presentations were made at the Board and its
Committee Meetings, on business and performance
updates of the Company, the global business
environment, business strategy and various risks
involved.

The updates on relevant statutory changes and
landmark judicial pronouncements encompassing
important laws are regularly presented to the Directors.

The details of the familiarization programme for
independent directors are available on the website
of the Company and can be accessed through
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/21854/
familiarization_programmes_for_independent_
directors_fy_2022-23.pdf

Policy on directors’ appointment and
remuneration

The Company has adopted a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy (NRC Policy) for nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP), Senior Management (SM), Functional Heads
(FH) and other employees, pursuant to the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time.

The salient features of the NRC Policy

i Appointment and remuneration of Directors,
KMP, SM and FH;

ii. Determination of qualifications,
positive attributes and independence
for appointment of a Director
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(Executive/Non-Executive/Independent)
and recommendation to the Board matters
relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, KMP, SM and FH;

iii. Formulating the criteria for performance
evaluation of all Directors;

iv. Board Diversity;

The Board at its meeting held on February 4,
2023, revised the policy by revising the definition
of ‘Senior Management’, by including ‘Functional
Heads' as the Senior Management, pursuant to SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023.

The policy of Nomination and Remuneration is
available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed through https:/www.finolexpipes.com/site/
assets/files/18437/nomination_and_remunaration_
policy.pdf

Annual performance evaluation of the Board, its
committees and individual directors

The Company has devised a nomination and
remuneration policy for performance evaluation of
independent, non-executive and executive directors.
The basis for this evaluation include fulfillment of
the independence criteria, independence from
the management, qualification, positive attributes,
area of expertise and the number of directorships &
memberships held in various committees of other
companies.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performance, its committees and
the directors individually as per the requirements of
the Act, and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

In a separate meeting of independent directors,
performance of non-independent directors, the
Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was
evaluated, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors. The above
criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note
on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee reviewed the performance of individual
directorsonthe basis of criteria such asthe contribution
of the individual director to the board and committee
meetings. At the board meeting, the performance of
the Board, its Committees, and individual directors
was also discussed. Performance evaluation of
independent directors was done by the entire Board,
excluding the independent director being evaluated.
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Remuneration of directors and key managerial
personnel

The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is annexed as Annexure - 1and forms an integral
part of this report.

Particulars of employees

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the names and other particulars
of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the
limits set out in the aforesaid Rules, forms part of this
Report. Further,the Report and the Accounts are being
sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure.
In terms of Section 136(1) of the Act, any Member, who
is interested in obtaining the details, may write to the
Company Secretary at investors@finolexind.com.The
same is also open for inspection during working hours
at the Registered Office of the Company.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report
Statutory Auditors

At the forty-first (41%) Annual General Meeting held
on August 30, 2022 the members of the Company
approved the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok
& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration
No. 001076N/N500013), as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for period of five (5) consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of the forty-
first (415') Annual General Meeting until the conclusion
of the forty-sixth (46") AGM of the Company.

Your Company's standalone and the consolidated
financial statements have been preparedinaccordance
with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the Act.

The report of the Statutory Auditors on the Standalone
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed and
forms an integral part of this report and does not
contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse
remarks, disclaimers requiring any comments by the
Board of Directors.

Cost Auditors

Your Company has maintained cost accounting
records as specified by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Board at its meeting held on May 22, 2023 has and on
recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. S. R. Bhargave & Co. as Cost Auditors to conduct
an audit of cost accounting records of the Company
for the financial year ending March 31, 2024. Your
Company has received their written consent that the

68

Annual Report 2022-23

appointment is in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. The
Cost Auditors have confirmed they are not disqualified
to be appointed as the Cost Auditors of your Company
for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act,
and Rules made thereunder, the ratification by the
Membersis necessary for the payment of remuneration
to cost auditors. Your directors recommmend the same.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22,
issued by M/s. S. R. Bhargave & Co., Cost Auditors, in
respect of the various products prescribed under
Cost Audit Rules, does not contain any qualifications,
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers and the
same was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
on September 30, 2022.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuanttothe provisionsof Section 204 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Board has
appointed M/s. SVD & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Pune (Peer Review No: P2013MH075200) to
undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the
ffinancial year 2022-23. The secretarial audit report for
the financial year 2022-23, is annexed as Annexure-2
and forms an integral part of this report.

The secretarial auditor’s report does not contain any
qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or
disclaimer.

Secretarial Standards

Your Company has devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

Disclosures:

Your directors are pleased to furnish the following
details which are required to be reported by the
Company in the Director's Report pursuant to Section
134(3) (a) to (q) of the Act.

Annual return

In terms of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023
is available on the website of the Company and can
be accessed through https:;/Mmww.finolexpipes.com/
investors/compliance-report/.
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Number of meetings of the Board

During the year under review, five (5) meetings of the
Board of Directors were held. The details of the meetings
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Commiittees of directors

The details of the committees of the directors pursuant
to the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, are
described in the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee has been duly constituted
as required under the provisions of the Act, and the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

The required details pertaining to the composition of
the Audit Commmittee, pursuant to Section 177 (8) of the
Act, are provided in the corporate governance report.
There were no instances of not having accepted the
recommendation of the Audit Committee during the
financial year 2022-23, by the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, your directors,
on the basis of information and documents made
available to them, confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual financial
statements for the year ended on March 31, 2023,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b) the directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that period;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

e) the directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively; and
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f)  the directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Details in respect of fraud reported by Auditors

During the year under review, the statutory auditors or
the cost auditors or the secretarial auditors have not
reported any instances of fraud committed against
the Company by its officers or employees to the
audit committee/ Board and/or Central Government,
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, and Rules framed
thereunder, the details of which would need to be
mentioned in the Board's report.

Vigil mechanism / Whistle blower policy

The Company has established a vigil mechanism
Whistle Blower Policy (the “WBP"), pursuant to Section
177(9) and (10) of the Act and Regulation 22 to SEBI
Listing Regulations. Avigil mechanism was established
for directors, employees and by any other person(s)
to report to the management instances of unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the
Company'’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Vigil
Mechanism provides a mechanism for employees of
the Company to approach the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Directors of the Company for redressal.
No person has been denied access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee of Directors.

The Company affirms that no director or employee
or other person(s) has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no
complaint was received during the year.

Prevention of Sexual harassment policy

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual
harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy
on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at the Workplace, to provide protection
to employees at the workplace and for the prevention
and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and
for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the
objective of providing a safe working environment,
where employees feel secure. An Internal Complaints’
Committee has been constituted by the Company
to redress any complaints received regarding sexual
harassment.

Your directors state that during the year under review,
there was no complaint received / case filed pursuant
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 have been provided in the Report
on Corporate Governance.
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Prohibition of Insider trading

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and
to preserve the confidentiality and prevent misuse of
unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI), the
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to Regulate,
Monitorand Report Trading by Insiders (‘Insider Trading
Code’) and a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
(‘Code of Fair Disclosure’). The Company has in place
the digital structured database to monitor the insider
trading activities.

The said Code of Conduct is intended to prevent the
misuse of UPSI by insiders and connected persons and
ensure that the Directors and designated persons of
the Company and their immediate relatives shall not
derive any benefit or assist others to derive any benefit
from having access to and possession of such UPSI
about the Company which is not in the public domain,
that is to say, insider information.

The Code of Fair Disclosure ensures that the affairs of
the Company are managed in a fair, transparent and
ethical manner keeping in view the needs and interest
of all the stakeholders.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

The details, as applicable, of loans given, investments
made or guarantees given pursuant to Section 186 of
the Act, are disclosed in note no. 04 to the financial
statements for the financial year 2022-23.

It is clarified that the Company has no loans/ advances
and investments in its own shares.

Significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals

In terms of Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, it is reported that no significant and
material orders have been passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and the Company's operations
in future.

Further no application neither against the Company
has been filed or is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016), nor the Company
has done any one-time settlement with any Bank or
Financial institutions.

Employee stock option scheme

During the year under review, your directors confirm
that no shares were issued by the Company under the
Finolex Industries Limited — Employee Stock Option
Scheme/ Plan (ESOP) of the Company.
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A statement giving complete details, as at
March 31, 2023, pursuant to Regulation 14 of the SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021
is available on the Company's website and can be
accessed through  https://www.finolexpipes.com/
investors/compliance-report/

The Company has obtained certificate from SVD
& Associates, secretarial auditors of the Company
pursuant to Regulation 13 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

Sweat equity shares and equity shares with
differential voting rights

Your directors confirm that neither sweat equity shares
nor equity shares with differential voting rights have
been issued by the Company during the year under
review.

The conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Your Company is committed to achieve the highest
standards of environmental excellence by adopting
environmentally sustainable and effective operating
systems and processes. Your Company has put in
place the internationally acclaimed Environment
Management System under ISO 14001 certification
at Ratnagiri. Your Company, is in compliance with all
applicable environmental regulations in respect of air,
water, noise, hazardous waste, e-waste etc. to mitigate
the potential environmental impact on society.

Information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
required to be given under Section 134(3) of the Act,
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure-3, and
forms an integral part of this report.

Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report (BRSR)

Your Company does business that delivers
long-term stakeholders value and benefits the society
and continue to focus on its commitments which are
aligned with national priorities.

As per the SEBI Circulars, effective from the financial
year 2022-23, the BRSR reporting is mandatory for top
1000 listed companies by market capitalisation as on
March 31, 2023. Your Company falls under the aforesaid
category, hence in compliance of the same the BRSR
report is annexed as Annexure-4 and forms an integral
part of the report.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Board has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and framed the
corporate social responsibility policy pursuant to
Section 135 of the Act. The required details pertaining
to the composition of the CSR Committee are given in
the corporate governance report.

The corporate social responsibility policy is available on
the Company’s website and can be accessed through
https://mwww.finolexpipes.com/investors/policies-code-
of-conduct/.

As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company
conducts CSR activities in education, healthcare,
sanitation, skill developments, social welfare, water
conservation and women empowerment with its CSR
partner, Mukul Madhav Foundation (“MMF"). Your
Company has been actively contributing to the social
and economic development of the underprivileged
mainly in and around the Company's plants situated
at Ratnagiri and Urse in the state of Maharashtra and
at Masar in the state of Gujarat.

The CSR activities carried out by your Company
through MMF is headed by Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria,
Managing Trustee of Mukul Madhav Foundation, and
a driving force in accomplishing the activities on day-
to-day basis.

During the financial year 2022-23, your Company in
association with MMF has incurred expenditure on
various CSR activities amounting to 32212 Crore as
against the mandatory CSR expenditure of ¥15.55 Crore.

The Annual report on the CSR activities is annexed
Annexure-5 and forms an integral part of this report.

Corporate  Statutory
Overview Reports

Financial
Statements

Cautionary statement

Statements in the Board of Directors’ Report and the
Management Discussion & Analysis describing the
Company's objectives, expectations or forecasts may
be within the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations. Actual results may differ materially
from those expressed in the statement. Important
factors that could influence the Company’s operations
include global and domestic demand and supply
conditions affecting the selling prices of finished goods,
input availability and prices, changes in government
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within
the country and other factors such as litigation and
industrial relations.
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Annexure-1 to the Directors’ Report

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are given below:

i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company

Secretary or manager, if any, in the financial year 2022-23, the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 and the comparison of

remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under:

Sr. Name of Director/KMP and Remuneration of Percentage increase/ Ratio of remuneration
No. Designation Director/KMP for (decrease) in of each Director to the
Financial year 2022-23 remuneration in the median/ remuneration
in % Crore Financial Year 2022-23 of employees (times)

1. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria N.44 (49.09%) 149.92
Executive Chairman

2. Ms. Bhumika L. Batra 0.33 (48.44%) 4.32
Non-Executive Director

3. Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria 0.30 (50.00%) 393
Non- Executive Director

4. Mr.Saumya Chakrabarti' 1.54 Not Applicable * 20.18
Director — Technical

5. Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale 0.39 (43.48%) 51
Non-Executive Director

6. Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar 0.39 (42.65%) 51
Non- Executive Director

7. Mr. Sanjay S. Math 2 0.72 Not Applicable * 9.44
Managing Director (KMP)

8. Dr. Deepak R.Parikh 0.31 (50.79%) 4.06
Non-Executive Director

9. Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi 0.43 (42.67%) 5.64
Non-Executive Director

10.  Mr. Anami N. Roy 0.32 (50.00%) 419
Non-Executive Director

1. Mr. Anil V. Whabi 3 4.57 (29.37%) 59.89
Managing Director (KMP)

12.  Mr. Ajit Venkataraman # 1.96 Not Applicable * 25.69
Chief Executive Officer (KMP)

13. Mr. Niraj Kedia ® 0.95 Not Applicable * 12.45
Chief Financial Officer (KMP)

14.  Mr. Ashutosh B. Kulkarni 0.27 9.00% 354
Company Secretary (KMP)

* Not applicable since remuneration was paid for the part of the previous year / current year.

T Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti was appointed as Director — Technical of the Company w.e.f. June 1, 2022

2 Mr. Sanjay Math was superannuated as Managing Director of the Company from close of business hours on May 31, 2022, consequently
remuneration details are given upto May 31, 2022, including retirement benefits.

3 Mr. Anil Whabi was appointed as Managing Director w.ef. June 1,2022

4 Mr. Ajit Venkataraman was appointed as Chief Executive officer of the Company w.ef. August 1,2022

5 Mr. Niraj Kedia was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. May 20, 2022

ii)  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees for the financial year was 3.6%.

iii)  There were 1,478 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2023.

iv) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year 2022-23 was 10.26% and increase of 6.00% in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year.

v) Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company for directors and key managerial personnel.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prakash P. Chhabria
Date: May 22,2023 Executive Chairman
Place: London DIN: 00016017
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Annexure-2 to the Directors’ Report

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members,
Finolex Industries Limited,

Gat No.399, Village Urse, Taluka Maval,
District Pune — 410506.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Finolex
Industries Limited, CIN L40108PN1981PLC024153
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also
the information provided and explanation provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with
the statutory provisions listed here under and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31,2023 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder as amended from time to time
respectively;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas
Direct Investment, wherever applicable;

Vi

The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 20T7;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2018 (not
applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations 2021 (not applicable
to the Company during the audit period);

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client (not
applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulation 2021,
(not applicable to the Company during the
audit period); and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(not applicable to the Company during the
audit period).

We further report that having regards to the
compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents
and records in pursuance thereof, no other law
was applicable specifically to the Company.
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We have also examined compliance with
the applicable clauses and regulations of the
following:

i Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with Stock Exchange(s) pursuant
to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were generally sent at least seven days in advance
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. Further meetings which were convened
at a shorter notice, at least one independent director
was present in such meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings are carried out with requisite majority as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board
of Directors or Commmittees of the Board, as the case
may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period,
there were no specific events / actions having a major
bearing on the company'’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. except following:

1. The shareholders at the 41s* AGM have approved
the re-appointment of Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria
(DIN 00016017) Chairman of the Company as the
Whole-time Director designated as Executive
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Director of the Company, for a period of 5 years
from December 01, 2021 to November 30, 2026.

2. The shareholders at the 41t ACM, have passed
a special resolution authorizing the Board to
issue offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to debt
securities as per the Securities and Exchange
Board ofIndia (Issueand Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, including Non-
Convertible Debentures (“NCDs") for a sum not
exceeding ¥2,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees two hundred
fifty crore only) on a private placement basis.

3. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on
May 18, 2022, re-designated Mr. Anil Whabi (DIN
00142052) as Managing Director of the Company
with effect from June 01, 2022 for a period of one
year which was approved by the members in the
41t Annual General Meeting held on August 30,
2022 (41t AGM).

4. Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director
(DIN 01874086) completed his tenure as
Managing Director of the Company from close of
business hours of May 31, 2022. Further he also
ceased to be the Director and Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company with effect
from close of business hours of May 31, 2022.

5. The Company has commenced commercial
operations of PVC fittings at a new state of art
manufacturing facility at Pune (Maharashtra) with
effect from March 12, 2023. The annual capacity of
the said facility is 12,000 MT and the capex towards
the same is approximately 3100 Crore, which has
been funded entirely through internal accruals.

For SVD & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sridhar Mudaliar
Partner

FCS No: 6156

CP No: 2664

Peer Review No: P2013MH075200
UDIN: FOO6156E000341359

Place: Pune
Date: May 22,2023

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even
date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.



‘ANNEXURE A’

To,
The Members,
Finolex Industries Limited,

Gat No0.399, Village Urse, Taluka Maval,
District Pune — 410506.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1. Itis the responsibility of the management of the
Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and regulations
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to
secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information
obtained from the Company's management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis
for our opinion.

4. We have relied on the documents and evidences
provided physically and by electronic mode.

Corporate  Statutory Financial
Overview Reports Statements

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the
management's  representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

7. We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

For SVD & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sridhar Mudaliar
Partner

FCS No: 6156

CP No: 2664

Peer Review No: P2013MH075200
UDIN: FOO6156E000341359

Place: Pune
Date: May 22,2023
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Annexure-3 to the Directors’ Report

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
[Pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014]

A. Conservation of energy

a) Energy conservation measures taken:

The Company has undertaken various energy
conservation measures at its various plants
to reduce energy utilization and increase in
energy savings during the FY 2022-23

. Urse, Masar and Ratnagiri - Pipe Plants

Vi.

Vii.

viii.
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VFD (Variable-frequency Drive) of 22
KWH installed for the cooling tower
pump resulting in energy saving of
1,04,040 KWH / annum and for 130 TR
Chiller and 50 HP Chilled water feed
pump to save 2,24,640 KWH/ annum.

Cooling tower installed and piping
modified in plant, which resulted in
saving of 2,700 KWH /annum.

Thermal Jacket installed along with
Jacketin 5 Extruder Machines, to achieve
the saving of 316.8 KWH / annum and
1, 86,300 KWH/annum, respectively.

Day light harvesting system installed to
save 518.4 KWH /annum.

Motion Sensor lights installed in
washrooms to save 691.2 KWH/Annum.

Solar streetlights were installed for the
yard boundary and pipe bay area to save
4,680 KWH/annum.

Rooftop solar panels were installed
to reduce energy consumption by
14,40,000 KWH/annum.

Vacuum tank Automation (Close loop
system) installed for controlling the
speed of the vacuum pump through
VFD and digital vacuum pressure
controller resulted in saving of 38,016
KWH/Annum

By Installation of Pulverizer in Ratnagiri
pipe plant, total 945 MT plastic was
recycled and processed, resulted in
reduction of 1607 MT CO, emission.

Implementation of digital transfor-
mation in reliability management,
which will boost the processes to make
it faster and efficient, particularly in
prediction of maintenance at the plant.

Ratnagiri — Resin Plant

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

LPG optimization in VCM (Vinyl Chloride
Monomer) plant resulted in saving of 60
MT of LPG, equivalent to energy saving
of 7,32,669 KWH.

Heat integration in VCM and PVC plants
to realize total energy savings of 4405
MT steam, equivalent to energy saving
of 41,39,280 KWH.

Power savings by Finfan cooler stoppage
during winter in VCM and PVC plants
and by replacing low efficiency cooling
water pumps with higher efficiency
pumps in ETF/VCM plant, resulted in
energy saving of 2,27,344 KWH.

Auxiliary power reduction in Captive
Power Plant by optimizing boiler
operation which resulted in energy
saving of 16,17,333 KWH.

Use of transparent sheets in air
compressor shed and gravity flow in
reverse osmosis plant resulted in power
saving of 55,420 KWH.

Replacement of conventional lights by
LED lamps resulted in power saving of
1,05,556 KWH.

65,000 trees were planted in the
Ratnagiri plant so far which resulted in
reduction of 1,430 MT of CO, per annum.

Solar heaters were installed in the guest
house which resulted in power saving of
39,222 KWH.

Recycling of Jumbo bag in PVC Bagging,
reduced consumption of new bags, and
resulted in reduction of carbon footprint
by 481 MT of CO, emissions.



x.  Use of electric forklift in place of diesel
forklift to reduce the Carbon footprint by
5.4 MT of CO, emissions.

Additional investments proposals, if any,
are being planned for a reduction in the
consumption of energy:

Urse, Masar and Ratnagiri - Pipe Plants

i Plan to purchase Third-party Hybrid
solar and wind power.

ii. Replacement of existing Atlas Copco
make Air compressor 750 CFM by the
Kaeser air compressor 1,000 CFM with
VSD (variable speed drive) operation.

ii. Plan to install Barrel zone jacket in
the Extruder TTS 108, through this
3,80,160 KWH/Annum will be achieved
and daylight harvesting fitting in Fusible
Area which will result in energy saving of
64,512 KWH/annum.

iv. Plan to install motion sensors and lux
sensors to auto-switch the lighting
which is expected to save 54,801 KWH/
annum and to take Solar Captive Power
which will save approx. of ¥4 crore/
annum

V.  Plan to replace existing PHE evaporator
shell and Tube Evaporator to achieve
savings of 113,363.62 KWH/annum.

vi. Automation of shop floor lighting in
pipe plant to save 65,000 KWH power.

vii. Installation of VFD (Variable-frequency
Drive) in chilled water pump of pipe
plant to save 71,410 KWH power.

Badhalawadi, Talegaon - Fittings Plant

i Plan to install VFD (Variable-frequency
Drive) for water circulation pump.

ii. Plan to install motion sensors and lux
sensors to auto-switch the lighting to
achieve energy saving of 1,000 KWH/
annum

Financial
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ii. Plan to install solar captive power,
which will result in saving of approx.
¥4 crore/annum.

Ratnagiri - Resin Plant

i. De-staging of high pressure pump in
Captive Power plant will result in saving
of 5,00,000 KWH power.

ii. Plan to improve Boiler operations
through re-engineering, which will
result in saving of 18,000 KWH of power
and 491 MT coal.

ii.  Plan to install Compressed
Air integration system within the
plants, which will result in saving of
8,88,889 KWH.

iv.  Plan to improve waste heat recovery in
VCM plant will save steam of 1,500 MT.

v. Plan to install solar heaters in plant
canteen will result in saving of 480 Kg
LPG and 14,600 KWH power.

vi. Plan to install LED lamps in place of
exiting conventional lights will result in
saving 1,66,667 KWH power.

vii. Hydrogen plant to be transformed in
order to fully operate by solar power.

Technology absorption

Research and Development (R&D)

Specific areas in which R&D efforts have been
put in by company are:

1

Your Company has collaborated with
National Chemical Laboratory-NCL Pune
for the EPVC quality improvement. This
includes studies on the Emulsion grade resin
such as physicochemical analysis of resin to
understand the structure through various
analytical techniques and then suggest
further improvements in quality to meet the
international quality standard.

Future plans

Process optimisation - Automation of CPVC
pipe counting, weighing and strapping to
avoid mistakes in manual process. This will
reduce the skill requirement for job.
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3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year):

The details of technology imported No technology imported during last
The year of import three years.

Whether the technology has been fully absorbed

oo |o|o

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof

4. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

a. Capital The development work is carried out
b. Recurring by the concerned departments on an
ongoing basis. The expenses and the
c. Total
cost of assets are grouped under the
d. Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover

respective heads.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year 2022-23 was as under:

Foreign Exchange earnings T Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo 31,542.25 Crore
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Prakash P. Chhabria
Date: May 22,2023 Executive Chairman
Place: London DIN: 00016017
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Annexure-4 to the Directors’ Report

Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report (BRSR) 2022-23

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(2) (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(“SEBI Listing Regulations”)]

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
I. Details of listed entity

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity  L40108PN1981PLC024153
2 Name of the Listed Entity: Finolex Industries Limited
3. Year of incorporation 1981
4 Registered office address Gat No.399, Village Urse, Taluka Maval, District Pune
MH 410506
Corporate address D-1/10, M.1.D.C, Chinchwad, Pune — 411 019
E-mail investors@finolexind.com
Telephone 020-27408200/27408572
02114 237251/ 237253
8. Website www.finolexpipes.com
9. Financial year for which reporting is being done 2022-2023
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares BSE Limited
are listed National Stock Exchange of India Limited
. Paid-up Capital 312410 Crores

12.  Name and contact details (telephone, email address) Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni
of the person who may be contacted in case of any Tel: 020-27408200/27408572
gueries on the BRSR report Email: abkl@finolexind.com

13.  Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this This report is prepared on a standalone basis
report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the
entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and
all the entities which form a part of its consolidated
financial statements, taken together).

Il. Products/services
14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

S. Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of
No. the entity*
1. Manufacturing Pipes & Fittings 94%

*Turnover excludes inter-segment revenue

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover
No. contributed
1. Pipes and Fittings 222 94%

lll. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices

Total

National 04 09

13

International - -
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17.

Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Locations Number

National (No. of States) 25*

International (No. of Countries) -

Note - * The Company serves its customers pan India across all states except Manipur, Mizoram & Sikkim

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
Nil

c. A brief on types of customers:

Finolex Industries Limited (Finolex / FIL/ the Company) is one of India’s most trusted brands in pipes and
fittings and a leading producer of PVC resin, making it the largest backward integrated pipes company in
India. We offer a wide range of PVC pipes and fittings suitable for applications in agriculture, plumbing and
sanitation. Our main customers are Farmers, Plumbers, Plumbing Contractors, and Builders.

IV. Employees

18.
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Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. Particulars Male Female

No. Total (A)  No.(B)  %(B/A) No.(C)  %(C/A)
EMPLOYEES

1. Permanent (D) 1,270 1,229 96.77% 4] 3.23%
2. Other than Permanent (E) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Total employees (D + E) 1,270 1,229 96.77% 41 3.23%
WORKERS

4, Permanent (F) 203 203 100% Nil Nil
5. Other than Permanent (G) 2,858 2,840 99.37% 18 0.63%
6.  Total workers (F + G) 3,061 3,043 99.41% 18 0.59%

b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

S. Particulars Male Female

No Total (A) No. (B) %(B/A) No. (C) %(C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

1. Permanent (D) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Other than Permanent (E) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Total differently abled Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

employees (D + E)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS

4, Permanent (F) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Other than permanent (G) 5 5 100% Nil Nil
6. Total differently abled 5 5 100% Nil Nil

workers (F + G)
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19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
No. and percentage of
Females
Total (A) No. (B) %(B / A)
Board of Directors 10 3 30%
Key Management Personnel* Nil Nil
Senior Management Personnel 8 2 25%
*(Excluding Key Management Personnel covered under Board of Directors)
20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Permanent Employees

Male Female Total

19.20% 20.78%

FY 2022-23
(Turnover rate

in current FY)

(Turnover rate
in previous FY)

(Turnover rate in
the year prior
to the previous FY)

Male Female Total

Male Female Total

19.25%

31.58%  1215%  6.59%

1579%  6.90%

Permanent Workers 4.38% Nil 4.38%

Nil  2.40% 1.45% Nil 1.45%

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

21.

VL.
22,

(@) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

S. Name of the holding
No. /subsidiary/ associate
companies/ joint

Indicate whether
holding/ Subsidiary/
Associate/ Joint

% of shares
held by listed at column A, participate in

Does the entity indicated

the Business Responsibility

ventures (A) Venture initiatives of the listed entity?
(Yes/No)
1 Finolex Plasson Industries Associate 46.35% No
Private Limited
2 Pawas Port Limited Associate 49.99% No

CSR Details

() Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes

() Turnover: 34,397.05 crore
(ii) Net worth:34,824.90 crore
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VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
Responsible Business Conduct:

FY 21-22

Stakeholder Grievance Redressal Mechanism FY 22-23

group from in Place (Yes/No) (If Yes,

Number of Number of Number of Number of Remarks
whom thenprovide web-link for . complaints complaints complaints
complaintis grievance redress policy) complaints pending filed pending

i filed Remarks
received . resolution during the resolution
during the
at close of year at close of
year
the year the year
Communities  Yes Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
https://Mww.finolexpipes.com/
investors/regulation-46/
Investors Yes Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
(other than  htps:/Avww finolexpipes.com/
shareholders)  jnyestors/investors-relations-centre/
https://Aww.finolexpipes.com/
investors/regulation-46/
Shareholders  Yes 68 Nil - 42 Nil
https:/mww.finolexpipes.com/
investors/investors-relations-centre/
Employees and Yes Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
workers https://Aww.finolexpipes.com/
sustainability/esg/
Customers Yes 1,553 Nil - 600 Nil -
https://Mmww.finolexpipes.com/
sustainability/esg/
Value Chain Yes Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Partners https://Mww.finolexpipes.com/
sustainability/esg/
Other - Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

(please specify)

Note: The policies guide the Company's conduct with all its stakeholders including grievance mechanism and the said policies are available

on the Company website.

24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental
and social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same,
approach to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, approach to Financial
No. issue whether identifying the risk / adapt or mitigate implications of the
identified risk or opportunity risk or opportunity
opportunity (Indicate positive
(R/O) or negative
implications)
1 Occupational R Risk: Negative:
:;aeltt; and Inherently associated Implementation and strict Accidents can
with business activities adherence of robust OHS put life / property
and processes. management system and in danger and
Occupational Health & process safety impact overall
Safety has an impact management to productivity and
on employee well- address the risks. result in financial
.bemg a.nd pro<.:luct|V|ty . The Company has in loss to the
impacting business of . Company.
the Company. place proactive measures
like HIRA, safety walks,

Non- compliance with Job Safety Analysis (JSA),

safety measures by Hazard and Operability

employees. study (HAZOP), Risk and
Conseqguences Analysis,
and Safety Audits. The
Company complies with
all applicable Health and
Safety regulations.

2 Resource O Opportunity: Positive

Management Water conservation Achieving long-
measures can help term cost benefits
in cost savings by and improved
reduction in water - water footprint.
consumption and
associated costs such
as water and waste
water treatment.

R Risk: Negative:

Water availability in Rain water harvesting Business disruption

extreme weather by using ground water due.

conditions may lead recharge and surface

. . . to water shortage.

to downtime and reservoirs is being

reduced productivity. practiced. High water Cost.
Possibility of recycling of Reputational
treated effluent to 100%. implications.

Resource R/O Risk: Positive:

;\I/Elire\?g;ment Risks and mitigation Undertakes measures Improved
associated with energy to conserve energy at productivity,
management are Company's facilities by using resulting in

covered under climate
change.

Opportunity:

Improved operational
efficiency.

energy- efficient measures
and implementing energy-
saving SOPs and practices
to ensure optimal energy
consumption at our plants.

Conduct internal energy
audits periodically to
monitor process gaps
and ensure continuous
improvement.

improvement in
overall business
efficiency.

Lowering of utility
bills and operating
costs.

Improved energy
index and
lowering Carbon
footprint.
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, approach to Financial
No. issue whether identifying the risk / adapt or mitigate implications of the
identified risk or opportunity risk or opportunity
opportunity (Indicate positive
(R/O) or negative
implications)
3 Operating R/O Risks: Negative:
and Financial .
Loss of investor’'s and FIL has robust corporate Decreased
Performance } .
stakeholder’s trust due governance practices, revenue due to
to non-compliance. stringent policies and loss of stakeholder
rocedures and a trust.
Loss of brand value P L .
. comprehensive financial
and reputation. . Increased cost to
management and business .
. L companies due
Opportunity: continuity plan to ensure
) . to regulatory
. consistent economic .
Positive returns from non-compliance.
performance.
stakeholders and .
. Positive:
investors.
. Increased
Business growth
revenues as a
due to robust and
. . result of prudent
consistent economic ) .
financial growth.
performance.
4 Market R Risks: Negative:
Presence

New players entering
the market in addition
to other organised
players looking to
increase market
share with a rise in
opportunities poses a
risk to the predicted
margins and market
share.

Counterfeit products
in the market pose a

risk to the Company’s
Brand recall.

Focus on the plumbing
and sanitation business
through credit to dealers,
addition of new SKUs, and
entering new markets.

Maintain the highest
product quality standards.

Increase our network of
dealers and deepen our
relationship with them.

Improved logistics
networks to increase
our reach.

Frequent checks in market
place backed by legal
intervention help the brand
in curtailing the threat
from the spurious brands.

Frequent awareness
programmes on usage

of original Company's
products for the plumbers
& end decision makers.

Financial loss/
decreased sales
and profitability
due to decreased
customer base.

Increased cost of
production, sales
and marketing.
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, approach to Financial
No. issue whether identifying the risk / adapt or mitigate implications of the
identified risk or opportunity risk or opportunity
opportunity (Indicate positive
(R/O) or negative
implications)
5 Corporate R Risk: Negative:

Governance

Strong corporate
governance is core

to achieve the
Company’s objectives
and any risks or
non-compliance

The Company has putin
place strong corporate
governance framework as
per regulatory guidelines.
It has in place a fair,
transparent & accountable

Poor corporate
governance

or unethical
practices lead to
loss of confidence
of stakeholders

can undermine Corporate Governance including
stakeholder's trust, structure across its investors and
damage reputation hierarchy to safeguard the customers.
and disrupt business. interests of all stakeholders.

There is an effective

mechanism, supported by

strong policies to supervise

the Executive Management

and oversee the critical

functions of the Company.

6 Human Rights R Risk: Negative:

Responsibility to
identify and manage
human rights risks
in its operation

and supply chain
and mitigate from
adverse risks and
consequential
damages.

The Company has always
been committed to foster
a culture of caring and
trust. This is embedded
in human rights policy
and detailed process set
along with due diligence
procedures to evaluate
human rights risks at all
levels of operations.

Environment Health and
Safety (EHS) training,
Prevention of Sexual
Harassment (POSH), code
of conduct related to
human rights are covered
under employee Induction.

Any violation can
lead to severe
reputational,
regulatory and
damage to the
organization.
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, approach to Financial
No. issue whether identifying the risk / adapt or mitigate implications of the
identified risk or opportunity risk or opportunity
opportunity (Indicate positive
(R/0) or negative
implications)
7 Talent R/O Risk: Positive:
Management . . .

9 Failure to attract The Company continues Retention of
and retain talent to assess and develop our talent, improves
by appropriate employees’ capabilities efficiency and
competency across levels and productivity
management to geographies. The company in achieving
support business invested in talent by strategic goals
objectives. providing them learning and enhancing

. . opportunities, access to business
Lack of highly skilled PP . ;
. mentoring / coaching, performance.
and well-trained . )
business projects and

employees to . I

. . continue to mobilize them
contribute to business ) i

into critical roles.
performance.
Lo The company invested
Opportunity: in functional training
Continued investment programmes for
in these areas will management, employees
benefit our employees & workers to build a
and positively impact future ready and resilient
business and our organization.
stakeholders.
8 Climate R Risk: Negative:
Change

Changes in climate-

related regulations
and policies.

Climate-related events

such as extreme

weather conditions,

natural disasters, or
disruptions in raw
material availability

can affect our supply

chain.

Reputational risks
for companies that
are perceived to
have a negative

environmental impact.

Mitigation measures

to reduce greenhouse

gas emissions (such

as engaging in long

term renewable PPAs,
installation of roof top solar
plants etc.),improve energy
efficiency.

-Monitoring and reporting
on climate performance,
including setting targets
and tracking progress
towards emissions
reductions and other
climate-related goals.

Climate-related
risks can

have financial
implications
including
increased costs
of energy, raw
materials, and
compliance with
environmental
regulations.

Positive -

Initiatives

taken around
climate change
has a positive
implication
towards business.

9 Data privacy R
and security

Risk:

Loss of the Company’s

and stakeholders’

sensitive information
due to theft or system

breakdown.

Bolstering the
cybersecurity and
information security
measures by aligning with
global frameworks and
best practices.

Negative:

Loss of sensitive
data can result in
regulatory non-
compliance and
penalties.
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, approach to Financial
No. issue whether identifying the risk / adapt or mitigate implications of the
identified risk or opportunity risk or opportunity
opportunity (Indicate positive
(R/O) or negative
implications)
10 Quality O Opportunity: Positive:
management - . -
9 Emphasizing product Differentiation
and Product ; . .
. quality allows with competitors
stewardship .
the Company to and increased
differentiate its brand customer trust
in the market. leads to higher
L . . sales volumes,
Delivering high quality
revenue growth
products enhances . )

. ) and increase in
customer satisfaction brand reputation
and builds trust. P ’

n Ecosystemand R Risk: Negative:
biodiversit . . L . .
Y Impact of operations Conducting biodiversity Long term risk
on the biodiversity studies to measure of ecosystem
in the vicinity of FIL's Biodiversity index and degradation
manufacturing plants. develop plans as per and Biodiversity
outcome of the study. leading to
reputational risk.
12 Environment R Risks: Negative:
Management ) . . S
d Changing regulatory Implementation of Financial risks
scenarios can lead to robust Environmental associated with
non-compliance management system, compliance
. ESG policy, SHE policy to to regulations
Adverse impacts on policy . policy .g
; address the risks. leading to
the environment from . .
. . reputational risks.
production sites.
13 Customer R/O Risk: Negative:
relationshi . . .
P Poor quality of services -  Multiple channels Loss of market
management A .
and products can lead to interface with our share due to
to loss of customers. customers for constant failing in serving
Obbortunity: feedback. Continuous the customer
PP 4 evaluation and needs and service.
Ensurin improvement undertaken. .
g strong P Positive:
and constant
communication with Enhance
customers can lead customer
to greater customer satisfaction and
satisfaction and retention can lead
retention. to increase in the
revenue.
14 Sustainable R/O Risk: Positive:

supply chain

Inefficiencies in the
sustainable supply
chain and high
dependency on limited
suppliers/ vendors

can cause supply
chain disruptions in
case of adverse
macro-economic
scenarios.

Regular supplier

interactions while adding

value to its business
relationships.

Opportunity to
have a strong
and compliant
supply chain
system which
ensures low risk
on environmental
and social
parameters.
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S. Material Indicate
No. issue whether
identified risk or
opportunity
(R/0O)

Rationale for
identifying the risk /
opportunity

In case of risk, approach to Financial
adapt or mitigate

implications of the
risk or opportunity
(Indicate positive
or negative
implications)

Opportunity:

Maintaining strong
and long-standing
relationship with
suppliers/ vendors
through effective
relationship
management and
drive responsible
procurement/
sourcing practices.

These suppliers are
selected based on social,
ethical and environment
norms. Also, supplier Code
of Conduct (COC) covers
EHS parameters to be
adhered to.

Negative:

Supply chain
disruptions can
lead to disturbed
production
schedules and
delayed deliveries.

Engaging in awareness,
communication, and
interaction sessions with

suppliers will result in
positive relationship building
and it will help to build
responsible and sustainable
operations in supply chain.

15 Community (@)
Development

Opportunity:

Need Assessment
done prior to project
execution helps

us develop strong
community relations
and ensure social
consent to operate.

Positive:

The benefits CSR
endeavours bring
to the community
generates goodwill
and enhances

the Company’s
reputation.

16 Risk O
management

Opportunity:

The Company is better
placed to identify and
mitigate risks and
leverage upcoming
opportunities.

Risk Management Policy,
RMC and Internal Audits
conducted.

Positive:

Avoiding loss

of revenue by
preventing
adverse impacts
of unprecedented
risks.

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

. Principie1 S

Businesses should conduct and
govern themselves with integrity,
and in a manner that is Ethical,
Transparent and Accountable.

o /

. Princirles S

Businesses should respect the
interests of and be responsive to
all its stakeholders.

- /

Businesses, when engaging in

influencing public and regulatory
policy, should do so in a manner
that is responsible and transparent.
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. Principle2 SN

Businesses should provide
goods and services in a manner
that is sustainable and safe.

o /

. Principles S

Businesses should respect and
promote human rights.

Principle 8

Businesses should promote
inclusive growth and equitable
development.

. Principles S

Businesses should respect and
promote the well-being of all
employees, including those in
their value chains.

o /

Principle 6

Businesses should respect and
make efforts to protect and
restore the environment.

Principle 9

Businesses should engage
with and provide value
to their consumersin a

responsible manner.
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This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards

adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions

Pl P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Policy and management processes

1. a.

Whether your entity's policy/policies cover each
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs.
(Yes/No)

Yes Yes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes

b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No)

Yes Yes Yes Yes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes

Web Link of the Policies, if available

https://Aww.finolexpipes.com/sustainability/esg/
https://www.finolexpipes.com/investors/policies-
code-of-conduct/

Whether the entity has translated the policy into
procedures. (Yes / No)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes VYes VYes VYes VYes

Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain
partners? (Yes/No)

Yes Yes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes VYes

Name of the national and international codes/
certifications/labels/ standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship
Council, Fair trade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustee)
standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by
your entity and mapped to each principle.

All plants of the Company are certified for Quality
Management Systems as per ISO-9001:2015.

Ratnagiri plant is certified for Integrated Management
System (Quality Management System, Environment
Management System & Occupational Health and
Safety Management System) as per ISO 90012015, ISO
14001:2015, and 1SO 45001:2018. Ratnagiri plant is also
certified with Responsible Care (RC) logo. Our products
pipes and fittings conforms to relevant Bureau of
Indian Standards and ASTM standards as applicable.

Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the
entity with defined timelines, if any.

ENVIRONMENT
Reduce Carbon Footprint

100% electric powered forklifts by 2030 at all the
plants

Implement Responsible care programme at all
Plants by 2025
Biodiversity

Conduct Biodiversity study in Ratnagiri Plant
by 2025

Plantation of 1,00,000* trees by 2025 with regular
monitoring of the survival rate of the saplings
(*increase plantation from present 62,000 to
100,000 nos.)

Public commitments to no deforestation and
publicly available biodiversity policy

ESG Policy
Publicly available ESG policy by 2022

Establishing ESG policy framework and
monitoring mechanism by 2023
Implementation of an Organization-wide ESG
policy by 2023

>95% coverage of ESG awareness/training
sessions for eligible employees across the
organization by 2023

ATTRACT & NURTURE TALENT

Maintain employee turnover rate consistently
under 15%
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ENSURE DATA PRIVACY & SECURITY

ISO 270012013 certification for information
security Management System

100% of employees to be trained on information
security by 2023

CODE OF CONDUCT (CoC)

>95% compliance with Employee CoC through
written / digital acknowledgement and regular
training of eligible employees by 2023

>95% Compliance of the Third-party CoC through
written/digital acknowledgment and regular
training of eligible third party personnel by 2025

6. Performance of the entity against the specific
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons in

case the same are not met.

The Company is committed towards ESG norms and
protection of environment.

33% of diesel forklifts were replaced with Electric
forklifts.

Responsible Care Certificate received for
Ratnagiri PVC & pipes plant. Implementation
initiated at other plants with formation of team.

Biodiversity study for Ratnagiri plant - Scope
finalized. Actual study to begin from FY 2023-24.

Tree plantation plan is prepared for next two
years and the same will be implemented from
FY 2023-24.

Biodiversity Policy under review.

Apart from the above the Company undertook
following environmental & employees well-being
initiatives in FY 2022-23:

Implemented several energy conservation
initiatives resulting in energy savings more than
8500 tCOe.

Commissioned 1 MW solar roof top system at
Masar plant, Gujarat.

More than 2,60,000 m3 effluent recycled.

Establishing an ESG policy framework,
monitoring mechanism and implementation of
an organization-wide ESG policy & hosted on the
website of the Company.

Provided training towards ESG awareness
(covering topics such as EHS, CoC, POSH, Skill
development) to approx. 75% employees.

Training on information security is provided to all
the new joiners during induction.

Training on Code of Conduct (CoC) session is done
for all the new joiners starting from January, 2023.

Mandatory e-Learning course being introduced
for all the employees in FY 2023-24, covering
topics such as ESG, Information security and
Code of Conduct.
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Governance, leadership and oversight

7.

Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG - related
challenges, targets, and achievements

In an era of increasing focus on sustainability, responsible business practices, and stakeholder engagement,
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) governance has emerged as a crucial aspect of corporate
management. ESG governance encompasses the systems and processes through which organizations
integrate environmental, social, and governance considerations into their decision-making, operations, and risk
management frameworks. For us at FIL, sustainability has been our very essence over the years. Anything we do,
has to be done well. Every action takes into account the larger picture, at present, and into the future. Like the
farmers we work for have taught us, the seeds of big ideas we plant today, will only bear fruit in the future. And
we have the patience and the will to wait. Whether it is our products, processes, profits, plants, or our parivaar —
our family of employees, farmers, dealers, homeowners, plumbers, and the commmunities we work with or the
environment, our every step keeps them all in mind. We invest in them, in their future, and in our collective future.

We have embarked on our ESG journey to grow holistically as an organization and create value for all our
stakeholders. We took our first step in this direction in FY 2021-22 by gaining the ‘Responsible Care' accreditation
from the Indian Chemical Council. Through this, we strive to drive continuous improvement in safe chemicals
management and achieve excellence in environmental, health, safety, and security performance. It is our
constant endeavor to deliver products and services of the highest quality to our customers while ensuring
minimal harm to the environment and society.

In FY 2021-22, we started our ESG journey, and set specific ESG goals on all the three pillars of the ESG ie.
Environment, Social and Governance. These goals include reduction of Carbon footprint, benchmarking by
assessment of Biodiversity, tree plantation, adoption of policies on ESG and code of conduct and also on IT
security.

As a result, in FY 2022-23, we have replaced 33% of diesel driven forklifts, through various energy conservation
drives, were able to reduce more than 8500 tCO.e, recycled more than 2,60,000 m3 of treated effluent back to
process, commissioned 1 MW solar power plant at one facility situated at Masar, Gujarat and adopted our ESG
policy.

Over these last 41 years, we feel we are just getting started, and the hardest work still lies ahead of us, and
that is what fills us with purpose and excitement for the future. The legacy we have built so far has brought
together a large, thriving family. It is a legacy that unites. It is a legacy that makes the future bright and filled
with possibilities.

We all know that the climate change is the biggest business challenge in coming years since we are experiencing
an unprecedented scale of the extreme weather events such as heat waves, floods, cyclones. To ensure the
positive environmental footprint, we are focusing on enhanced use of renewable energy resources as well as the
reduction of specific energy consumption. It is our collective responsibility to take care of the mother earth and
use natural resources efficiently at each of our manufacturing facilities.

Anil V. Whabi
Managing Director
DIN: 00142052

8.

Details of the highest authority responsible for At the highest level, the Board of Directors of the

implementation and oversight of the Business Company, led by Mr. Anil Whabi, Managing Director

Responsibility policy (ies). and Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti, Director - Technical have
the primary role to protect and assess the Business
Responsibility (BR) performance of the Company.
Internal ESG Committee headed by Managing
Director and Director - Technical is constituted which
comprised of departmental representatives.
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Does the entity have a specified Committee of the
Board/ Director responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide

Yes — Risk Management Committee (RMC) which
comprises of -
Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale

(Chairperson of the Committee)

Ms. Bhumika L. Batra

Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria

Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar

Dr. Deepak R. Parikh

Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi

Mr. Anami N. Roy

Mr. Anil V. Whabi

The targets and performance of BRSR activities are
reviewed by the RMC on half yearly basis. RMC of the
Board also assesses the risks pertaining to ESG and
certain principles of BRSR.

details.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Frequency (Annually/ Half yearly/
Quarterly/ Any other - please specify)

Indicate whether review was
undertaken by Director / Committee
of the Board/Any other Committee

P1 ‘pz‘ps ‘pt.‘ps ‘ps‘w‘pa‘ps

Subject for Review

P1 ‘pz‘ps ‘P4‘P5 ‘ps‘m‘ps‘ps

Performance against above

o ) Committee of the Board Half yearly
policies and follow up action
Compliance  with  statutory
requirements of relevance to .
Committee of the Board Half yearly

the principles, and, rectification

of any non-compliances

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ evaluation of the P1 ‘PZ ‘P3 ‘P4 ‘PS ‘PG ‘P7 ‘PS ‘PQ
working of its policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name No No No No No No No No No
of the agency.

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be
stated:
Questions P1 ‘ P2 ‘ P3 ‘ P4 ‘ P5 ‘ P6 ‘ P7 ‘ P8 ‘ P9

The entity does not consider the Principles material to its business
(Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to formulate and
implement the policies on specified principles (Yes/No)

. : . . Not Applicable
The entity does not have the financial or/human and technical PPl

resources available for the task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next financialyear (Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core
Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”.
While the essential indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the
leadership indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest
to be socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.
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PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner

that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1.  Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Segment Total Topics / principles covered under the training %age of
number of and its impact persons in
training and respective
awareness category
programmes covered by
held the awareness
programmes
Board of Directors 5 The Directors of the Company are familiarized 100%

on the Company's core values, code of conduct,
business performance, operations, compliances,
risk management, health, safety, and environment
performance, HR and CSR initiatives at regular
intervals during the quarterly Board / Committee
Meetings.

Further the Board is also familiarized on the principles
of Environment, Social and Governance released by
SEBI/MCA. The Executive Directors participated in
ESG Materiality Assessment Survey.

Key Managerial 7 The KMPs participated in ESG Materiality Assessment 100%
Personnel Survey and workshop and were also familiarized on

the principles of Environment, Social and Governance

released by SEBI/MCA. In addition, KMPs attended

training and awareness programmes covering topics

on Code of Conduct, EHS, product information,

induction on employee benefits/regulations.

Employees other 261 Business ethics and values, code of conduct, 75%

than BoD and KMPs POSH, employee benefits, EHS, compliance, skill
development.

Workers Multiple POSH, EHS, Code of Conduct Product Training, 75%

Compliance.

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial
institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on
the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

MONETARY
NGRBC Name of the regulatory/ Amount Briefofthe Has an appeal
Principle enforcement agencies/ (InINR) Case been preferred?
judicial institutions (Yes / No)
Penalty / Fine
Settlement Nil

Compounding fee

NON-MONETARY

NGRBC Name of the regulatory / Brief of the Has an appeal
Principle enforcement agencies / judicial Case been preferred?
institutions (Yes / No)
Imprisonment Nil

Punishment
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6.

Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases
where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

Case Details Name of the regulatory / enforcement agencies / judicial institutions

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if
available, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes. The Company has zero tolerance towards all forms of bribery and we especially sensitize this aspect in
our dealings with the various entities that it comes in contact with and remain committed to its Core Values
(Customer Centricity, Ethics, Transparency, Teamwork and Ownership) in all situations. In particular, the
Company prohibits offering, promising, giving or authorizing others to give anything, either directly or indirectly,
to any person or entity for the purpose of influencing the recipient under any circumstances. FIL employees, its
third parties and suppliers are required to fully comply with the requirements of this policy. Compliance with
the provisions of Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption policy (“ABAC Policy”) are mandatory. The mechanism and
the procedure to deal with the complaints are mentioned at ABAC policy available at web link https:/Avww.
finolexpipes.com/sustainability/esg/ .

Number of Directors / KMPs /femployees / workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by
any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery / corruption

There have been no cases involving disciplinary action taken by any law enforcement agency on the charges of
bribery / corruption against any Directors/ KMPs/ employees/ workers that have been brought to the company's

attention.

FY 2021-22
Directors Nil Nil
KMPs Nil Nil
Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Nil Nil
Conflict of Interest of the Directors

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Nil Nil
Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties /
action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption
and conflicts of interest

Nil

Leadership Indicator

1
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Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial
year:

Throughout the current financial year, the Company has shown a proactive commitment by conducting
extensive awareness programmes. These initiativesaim to educate and engageitsvalue chain partnersonvarious
aspects including the product range, specifications, product usage, and effective selling techniques. It conducts
awareness programmes to showcase its quality, products & safety, awards & recognitions, demonstrating its
commitment to excellence and industry leadership.

In a collaborative effort with the Indian Plumbing Association, the Company has established a cutting-edge
Plumbing Lab in Pune. This facility serves as an invaluable resource for the plumbing community, with a
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particular focus on students. The lab aims to enhance understanding and appreciation for the fundamental
science behind plumbing, highlighting the pivotal role that high-quality pipes and fittings, manufactured by
the Company, play in establishing reliable and efficient plumbing systems. Through this initiative, the Company
is actively contributing to the advancement and knowledge-sharing within the plumbing industry.

FIL is fully committed to promoting gender equality in the plumbing segment. We empower girls by providing
opportunities, mentorship, and resources. FIL joined hands with ITI, Aundh, Pune to conduct a 2-year training
programmes in plumbing for 30 female students this year. Our initiative aims to expand across states, breaking
stereotypes and fostering an inclusive environment. By advocating for diversity and supporting aspiring female
plumbers, FIL is driving meaningful change in the industry.

Total number of Topics / principles covered under the %age of persons in respective

training and awareness training and its impact category covered by the

programmes held awareness programmes
1,654* Company overview, product training 67.75%

pertaining to plumbing segment, usage
of product, quality, safety, environment,
operation and maintenance.

*Value chain partners (viz. plumbers, retailers, Key Influencers, etc) are covered for the above training

In case of suppliers, the Company ensures that they adhere to the Supplier Code of Conduct (COC) which covers
environment, health, safety and human rights parameters and must sign the COC as a part of the contract
documents.

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the
Board? (Yes/No) If Yes, provide details of the same.

Yes. The Company have processes in place to avoid / manage conflict of interest involving members of the Board.
The Company’s Code of conduct for Board of Directors and senior management specifically covers the topic of
Conflict of Interest. The code of conduct can be accessed at https:/mwww.finolexpipes.com/sustainability/esg/

In order to avoid/manage conflicts of interest, the Company obtains a mandatory declaration from the members
of its Board and senior management and an affirmation to that effect is signed by the Managing Director,
which is part of the Annual Report of the Company every year. It is thus communicated to all stakeholders
by the Managing Director, through the Annual Report. No instance of corruption and conflict of interest has
been identified during the year under review. The declaration ensures that the members of the Board are in
compliance with the Company's code of conduct Guidelines.

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable

and safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by
the entity, respectively.

2021-22 Details of improvements in environmental and
social impacts

R&D = - -

Capex 7% 6% Replacement of machinery with high energy
efficiency, thereby reducing the energy demand
and consumption. Apart from that expenditure was
incurred for the treatment of waste water, installation
of solar panels, infrastructure improvement and other
HSEF related areas.

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) -

Yes. The Company has procedures in place for sustainable sourcing.
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b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

Around 90% of the direct purchases are sourced sustainably, through reputed suppliers. These reputed
suppliers are selected based on social, ethical and environment norms. Also, supplier Code of Conduct
(COC) covers EHS parameters to be adhered to and supply chain partners must sign the COC as a part of
the contract documents. The PVC production of the Company is mainly captively consumed.

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the
end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

The Company continuously exercises and practices the recycling and reusing of waste as per the regulatory
normes. The plastic wastes are recycled as per the regulatory and standard norms and plastic waste is channelized
to recyclers. E-waste is sent to authorized dismantlers / recyclers for recycling and Hazardous waste is sent to
approved CHWTSDF (Common Hazardous Waste Treatment Storage and Disposal Facility).

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No).
If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan
submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Yes. The Company is in process of getting Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) registration. The Company
adheres to the Plastic Waste Management Rules as applicable and amended from time to time. This initiative
will reflects the Company's commitment to take responsibility for the entire life cycle of packaging products,
encompassing their disposal and recycling processes.

Leadership Indicator

1
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Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for
manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following
format?

As per I1SO 14001:2015, life cycle perspective is carried out for all our products. A life cycle perspective includes
consideration of an environmental aspects of an organization’s activities, products, and services that it can
control or influence. Stages in a life cycle include acquisition of raw materials, design, production, transportation/
delivery, use, end of life treatment, and final disposal.

Apart from the above, FIL's Suspension PVC grade FS-6701 products are certified by NSF/ANSI 14 and suitable
for food contact and drinking water applications. As per customer requirement, the products (SPVC & EPVC) are
tested & REACH Compliant (Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals).

NIC Code Name of Product % of total Boundary for Whether Results
/ Service Turnover which the Life conducted by communicated in
contribute Cycle Perspective independent public domain (Yes
[/ Assessment was external agency /[ No) If yes, provide
conducted (Yes / No) the web-link
222 Pipes and fittings 94% Cradle to grave No No
201 PVC 6% Cradle to grave No No

If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or
disposal of your products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same.

Name of Product / Service Description of the risk / Action Taken
concern

No significant social or environmental concerns or risks were identified

Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Not applicable for FIL's resin production. For pipes plants, consolidated figures of crush material used against
the products are as mentioned below:

Indicate input material Recycled or reused input material to total material
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Recycle in house crushed material 2.8% 2.5%
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4. Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes)
reused, recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:
Not applicable as the Company does not have any specific consumer product except pipes and fittings and
there is no product reclamation at the end of the product life. However, the waste material generated at the
operations and project sites are reused, recycled and disposed as per the applicable regulatory requirements.
(Please refer Sr. No. 8 under Principle 6 (Essential indicators)

FY 2022-23 (MT) FY 2021-22 (MT)

Safel Re-Used R led Safel
Re-Used Recycled ) B e-vse eeycle . arely
Disposed Disposed

Plastics (including Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
packaging)
E-Waste Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Hazardous waste Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other Waste Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

5. Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product

category.
Indicate product category Reclaimed products and their packaging materials as % of total
products sold in respective category
PVC Resin 34% packaging (FY 2022-23)

PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including

those in their value chains

Essential Indicator
1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category % of employees covered by
Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
Insurance insurance benefits Benefits Facilities

Total Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %

(A) (B) (B/A) () (c/A (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F)  (F/A)

PERMANENT EMPLOYEES

Male 1,229 1,229 100% 1,229 100% NA NA 1,229 100% Nil Nil
Female 41 41 100% 41 100% 41 100% NA NA Nil Nil
Total 1,270 1,270 100% 1,270 100% 41 3.23% 1,229 96.77% Nil Nil

OTHER THAN PERMANENT EMPLOYEES

Male Nil
Female Nil
Total Nil
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b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Category % of workers covered by
Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
Insurance insurance benefits Benefits Facilities
Total Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(A) (B) (B/A) () (c/A) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/A)
PERMANENT WORKERS
Male 203 203 100% 203 100% NA NA 203 100% Nil Nil
Female Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA NA Nil Nil
Total 203 203 100% 203 100% Nil Nil 203 100% Nil Nil
OTHER THAN PERMANENT WORKERS
Male 2,840
Female 18 Refer Note below *
Total 2,858
* other than permanent workers insurance and benefits are covered by their respective facility provider
2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year.
Benefits FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Deducted No. of No. of Deducted
No. of No. of
and employees workers and
employees workers ) .
G LI covered as covered as  deposited
covered as covered as . .
with the a % of total a % of total with the
a % of total a % of total ) .
emplovees  workers NG GITAAN employees workers authority
ploy (Y/N/N.A.) (Y/N/N.A)
PF 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
Gratuity* 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
ESI** 100% 100% Y 100% 100% Y
*The company is maintaining gratuity trust.
**The employees & workers who falls within the ESI limit are 100% covered, i.e wherever ESI is applicable (whose gross salary is less than
%21,000/-) 100% employees & workers are covered under the ESI scheme. In addition where the employees & workers are above the ESI
limit they are covered under WC (Workmen Compensation) Policy.
3. Accessibility of workplaces
Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken
by the entity in this regard:
Yes
4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016?
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If so, provide a web-link to the policy:

Yes, the Company has adopted equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016
and the rules framed thereunder. The equal opportunity policy is available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at https://www.finolexpipes.com/sustainability/esg/
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5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

Gender Permanent employees Permanent workers
Return to Retention Return to Retention
work rate rate work rate rate

Male 100% 100% 100% 100%

Female 100% 100% Nil Nil

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

6. Isthere a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees
and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes / No (If yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Workers

Other than Permanent
Workers

Yes

The Company has a grievance redressal mechanism in line with the statutory
framework under Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 for grievance redressal mechanism
for the permanent workers where workers or their representatives can raise their
grievances in areas like wages, discrimination, child labour, human rights related
issues etc.

1. Any workman desirous to redress the grievance arising out of employment
or relating to unfair treatment or wrongful exaction on the part of a superior
shall either himself or through a trade union of which he isa member, submit
a complaint to the Manager or any Officer appointed by the Manager in this
behalf.

2. The Manager or any such officer shall cause to be investigated the complaint
at such times and places as

i The workman and any other workman of his choice, or

ii.  Where the complaint is made through a trade union of the workmen
of the establishment, a member of such union shall have the right to
be present at such investigation. Where the complaint alleges unfair
treatment or wrongful exaction on the part of a superior, a copy of the
order finally made by the Manager shall be shared to the complaint if he
asks for.

In other cases the decision of the investigation officer and the action, if
any, taken thereon by the Manager shall be intimated to the complainant.
provided that complaints relating to assault or abuse by any person holding
a supervisory position or refusal of an application for urgent leave shall be
inquired into as early as possible by the Manager or such other officer or
officers as workmen may appoint.

The decision of the Manager upon any question arising out of, in connection
with, or incidental to these Standing Orders shall be subject to an appeal to
the Occupier/Managing Director of the Company.

Permanent Employees

Other than Permanent
Employees

Yes. The Company has grievance redressal mechanism in place wherein employee
can raise their grievances with respective HR department. The HR department
shall take appropriate action and resolve the grievance within a reasonable time.
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Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognized by the listed entity:
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Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total No. of Total No. of %(D/C)
e employee.s employees employee.s
/ workers in / workers /[ workers in
R E respective in respective
in P %(B/A) . P
. category, who respective category, who
respective
are part of category are part of
category .. e
A) association(s) () association(s)
or Union (B) or Union (D)
TOTAL PERMANENT EMPLOYEES
- Male Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
- Female Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
TOTAL PERMANENT WORKERS 203 203 100% 205 205 100%
- Male 203 203 100% 205 205 100%
- Female Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Details of training given to employees and workers
Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
On Health . On Health On Skill
On skill up rup
and Safety . and Safety gradation
gradation
measures Total measures
No. (B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) (D) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (F/D)
EMPLOYEES
Male 1,229 1,229 100% 110 90.32% 1135 1135 100% 462 40.7%
Female 4] 4] 100% 35 85.4% 36 36 100% 12 33.33%
Total 1,270 1,270 100% 1,145 90.1% 1,171 1,171 100% 474 40.5%
WORKERS
Male 203 203 100% 203 100% 205 205 100% 205 100%
Female Nil Nil - Nil - Nil Nil - Nil -
Total 203 203 100% 203 100% 205 205 100% 205 100%
Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and workers:
Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total No. % Total No. %
(A) (B) (B/A) (€ (D) (D/C)
EMPLOYEES
Male 1,229 1,006 82% 1135 1,014 89%
Female 4] 29 71% 36 30 83%
Total 1,270 1,035 82% 1,171 1,044 89%
WORKERS
Male 203 203 100% 205 205 100%
Female Nil Nil 0% Nil Nil 0%
Total 203 203 100% 205 205 100%
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10. Health and safety management system:

a.

Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the
entity? (Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes. The Company strives to ensure that it provides a safe and efficient workplace, well-being and safety
by providing the highest safety standards. The Company has in place Safety Health and Environment
(SHE) policy to ensure a safe and healthy working environment across all plants and offices with required
safety protocols.

As part of Company'’s Integrated Management system, FIL is certified with ISO 9001 - Quality, ISO 14001 -
Environment and ISO 45001 - Occupational Health and Safety. FIL is involved in different activities to ensure
the safety of employees from hazards, work-related injuries, recordable work related injuries, and ill health.
Several initiatives have been taken up like organizing national safety week, national fire services week,
workplace inspections and audits, first aid training, and mock drills to improve the overall working and
operation of the Company. All the employees and other non-executive staff actively participate.

The Company successfully implemented Process Safety management System (PSM). FIL's PSM system
consists of 11 elements and 27 procedures. PSM elements guides on risk assessment and hazard control,
standardized way of operation and maintenance (SOP/SMP), mechanical integrity and reliability of
equipment and system. Safe work practices cover material handling, road transportation of material, lifting
of equipment and standardization of PPE. All incidents including near misses are reported, investigated,
and analysed for corrective actions.

What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-
routine basis by the entity?

The Company has in place process such as Hazard Identification And Risk Assessment (HIRA) to identify
all work related hazards and then for identified hazards, control measures are established to mitigate the
potential risk.

For all routine and non-routine activities Permit To Work (PTW) system is followed to ensure all potential
hazards are addressed prior to commencement of work. For non-routine activities, in addition to PTW, Job
Safety Analysis (JSA) is followed to identify potential hazards and then PTW system is followed before the
commencement of work.

For effective implementation of control measures Tool Box Talks (TBT) is conducted before commencement
of work to communicate available control measures to the workforce which ensures that all safety protocols
are followed.

After any shutdown or any major modifications Pre-start up Safety Review (PSSR) is followed prior to start
up to ensure that all safety systems are in place.

Considering complexity of process and known hazards, the Company follows below methodologies to
address the risks:

1 Hazard and Operability (HAZOP) Study - Hazard & Operability study (HAZOP) is a systematic way
to identify possible SHE hazards in the system and suggest recommendations. It is a process of
examining Piping and Instrumentation Diagram (P&IDs) by applying guide words and parameters to
all pipes and vessels in the process. This explicitly identifies the hazards, the potential failures, and the
potential causes of failure and the recommmended actions to address the issues.

2  Failure Modes and Effects Analysis (FMEA) - FMEA study is conducted for critical equipment and
processes. The Company uses it to design a process, review and improve a process which further
acts as an efficient process control. Its' step-by-step approach identifies each failure mode, with the
analysis, then estimating the effects of failure and devising ways of controlling the process so that
failure can be prevented.

3  Fault Tree Analysis (FTA) - This analysis method is mainly used in Safety engineering and reliability
engineering to understand how systems can fail and to identify the best ways to reduce the risk or
to determine event rates of an accident or a particular system failure. This helps the Company in
highlighting the critical components related to system failure and to prioritize the action items in
order to solve the problems.
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4  What-if method - It is done for critical equipment where failure is possible by different modes and
failure can cause a hazardous situation.

5 Job Safety Analysis (3JSA)/ Task Risk analysis - JSA is conducted for any jobs involving high risk &
critical job.

6 Reporting of unsafe condition - Any worker / employee from any department can report the unsafe
condition from the work premises related to safe operation of the process.

7  Other Measures such as Safety Walk, Safety Audit and Safety Report are carried to identify work-related
hazards and assess risks.

Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves
from such risks. (Y/N)

Yes. The Company ensures that it continuously reviews and improves health and safety performances. All
activities relating to monitoring, emergency handling, and team review are supervised and directed by
the Director-Technical cum Occupier. The safety committee consists of members from both executive
and workers category addresses the safety concerns to ensure highest safety at office and plant locations.
Self-spot audit reporting system has been developed to assess the work at plant & reporting unsafe act
and conditions by workers. To further improve awareness on HSE, the Company had organized various
programmes such as National Safety Week, Fire Service Week and World Environment Week. These
programmes covered imparting training on work place safety, fire prevention and control, conducting quiz
and poster competitions and safeguarding health of the workers by taking safety & environment oath.

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare
services? (Yes/ No)

Yes. Employees and workers have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services. Medical
centers and first aid facilities are available for both employees and workers. They are covered under group
mediclaim and group accident policy.

Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident / Number Category EY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) Employees Nil Nil

(per one million-person hours worked) Workers Nil 013

[(No. of lost time injuries in FY * 1,000,000) /Total

hours worked by all staff in same FY]

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees Nil Nil

(Total number of employees / Workers affected by Workers Nil 1

work-related injuries or ill health)

No. of fatalities Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil

High consequence work-related injury or ill-health Employees Nil Nil

(excluding fatalities) Workers Nil Nil

Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

Health and safety are of prime importance to all FIL's operations and the Company is committed to achieving
the comprehensive well-being of all the employee and their environment. FIL's aim and focus are to strive
towards efficient workplace well-being and safety by providing the highest safety standards. Following are some
of the measures and practices that are being followed by the Company in order to ensure a Safe and Healthy

workplace for its employees & workers:

1. The Company isin alignment with Integrated Management system, and is certified with ISO 9001 - Quality,

ISO 14001 - Environment and ISO 45001 - Occupational Health and Safety. Our management’s goal is to
prevent all SHE incidences, near miss event injuries and occupational illnesses within its operations and to
ensure the reliability of plant and equipment.
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Safety and health are the core value of our organisation and several initiatives have been taken up like
organising National Safety week, National Fire Services week, Environment Week Workplace Inspections &
Audits, First Aid training, and Mock Dirills periodically to improve the overall working and operations of the
Company.

Implementation of risk assessment measures by organising safety walks and evaluating existing and new
process facilities of the operating plant having a potential of SHE hazards. This helps to identify and evaluate
potential risk, unsafe conditions, and use of various techniques for risk assessment and recommendations
like Hazard Operability Study {HAZOP), Job Safety Analysis (JSA), etc..

To ensure that the SHE policies are implemented effectively, the company designed Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) to be followed for safe and efficient working conditions. This written SOP contains
Standards Maintenance Procedure (SMP) which further helps to establish and obtain quality work and
in turn enhances reliability. This will help to additionally train and develop employees and contractors for
required competence.

The Company has implemented periodic evaluation of value chain partners — i.e. contractors and make
them aware of the basic SHE requirements and compliances thereof. The Company conducts Pre-Start-
up SHE Reviews (PSSR) before the initial start-up of new facilities or restart of modified facilities in order to
know the risk associated.

Periodic inspection of mechanical, critical systems, devices and pressure vessels at plant locations is carried
out along with a continuous review of its operation and maintenance.

The Company has established safe handling and storing unit in Company’s premises for the safe transport
(inward and outward) of chemicals and materials.

Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Pending Filed during Pending Remarks
Filed during resolution the year resolution
Remarks
theyear atthe end of at the end of
year year
Working Conditions Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Health & Safety Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

The Company encourages its employees and workers to proactively submit safety observations and report
unsafe acts and conditions at workplace as a preventive action.

Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices 100% (through Internal safety audit, external safety audit, insurance agencies).

Working Conditions 100% (through Internal safety audit and external safety audit).

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents
(if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and
working conditions.

All the risks or concerns identified in ISO 45001 through HIRA have been addressed. Corrective actions have
been taken post participation and consultation of managerial and non-managerial employees and workers.
Effectiveness of the corrective actions have also been monitored.
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Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of
(A) Employees (Y/N): Y

(B) Workers (Y/N): Y

Yes. The Company extends life insurance coverage for work related death of its employees and workers. Benefits
are extended as per applicable labour laws such as Employee State Insurance Act, 1948, Employee Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 and Group Personal Accident
benefits (policies are in place).

Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and
deposited by the value chain partners.

The Company follows a detailed compliance procedure to ensure all statutory clearance and compliances
are met by its value chain partners. Adherence to the applicable statutory provisions including payment and
deduction of statutory dues is incorporated in the Purchase Order / contract agreement with the value chain
partners. The Company ensures that all the relevant clauses dealing with statutory compliance are validated
and honoured by both sides.

Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work-related injury / ill-
health / fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been rehabilitated and placed
in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

Category Total no. of affected employees/ No. of employees / workers that
workers are rehabilitated and placed in
suitable employment or whose
family members have been
placed in suitable employment

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Employees Nil Nil Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil Nil Nil

Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the
management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/ No):

Yes (Critical talent is retained on consultancy or retainership model).

Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business
done with such partners) that were assessed

Health and safety practices 69%

Working conditions 69%

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.

Not applicable. The value chain partners were assessed for health, safety practices and working conditions and
no significant risks or concerns were identified based on receipt of their responses.
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PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Our stakeholder identification and prioritization process are based on the principles of inclusivity, materiality,
and responsiveness. The nature of our engagement with stakeholders depends on the stakeholder category,
their expectations from us, and the criticality of the relationship. The key stakeholders inter-alia include
customers, shareholders / investors, employees, suppliers, coommunity, media and regulators. We continuously
engage with them through various online and offline modes such as surveys, conferences, one to one meetings,
email/telephonic communication, town halls, and others. Simultaneously, we ensure that their suggestions and
comments are addressed and incorporated appropriately.

List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each
stakeholder group.

Stakeholder
Group

Whether
identified as
Vulnerable &
Marginalized
Group

Channels of
communication
(Email, SMS, Newspaper,

Pamphlets, Advertisement,

Community Meetings,

Frequency of
engagement
(Annual / Half
yearly / Quarterly
/ others - please

Purpose and scope of
engagement including
key topics and
concerns raised during
such engagement

(Yes / No) Notice Board, Website), specify)
Other
Customers No Emails Regularly on a need Easy Access to
Digital & Physical basis products and services
meetings Reliable supply of
best-in-class products
and services
Investor/ No Investor Presentation/ Quarterly / Annually Information on
Shareholders Analyst meet Company's financial
Annual General Meetings and non-financial
. erformance
Media releases P
. . Transparent
Financial results )
. disclosures good
declaration (quarterly) .
governance practices
Annual Reports,
Sustainability Reports,
websites and others
Community |Yes CSR partnership Social Proactive
(Some of the with Mukul Madhav Contribution / Involvement
Company's Foundation CSR activities Community
CSR Project / Contribution towards Community Development
activities various causes like Impact
Beneficiaries) education, healthcare, assessment
rural development, surveys
environment initiatives Compliant

and grievance
mechanism

Employees

No

Employee engagement
programmes

Town halls

Internal publications and

circulars
Feedback and surveys
Performance updates

Learning and
development
programmes.

Daily
(Department-
wise internal
interaction)

L&D
programmes,
Feedback, and
survey conducted
periodically

Half yearly /
annually

Health and Safety

Opportunities

for personal and
professional growth
Learning and
development
Work-life balance and
career progression
Transparency and
involvement in
Company'’s strategies
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Stakeholder | Whether Channels of Frequency of Purpose and scope of
Group identified as | communication engagement engagement including
Vulnerable & | (Email, SMS, Newspaper, (Annual / Half key topics and
Marginalized | Pamphlets, Advertisement, | yearly / Quarterly |concerns raised during
Group Community Meetings, / others - please such engagement
(Yes / No) Notice Board, Website), specify)
Other
Suppliers No Meetings Regularly on a Long term
Conferences and need basis relationship
workshops Quick response to
Communication via queries
telephone, email, etc. Services support and
timely deliveries
Media No Written Quarterly/ Half Credible information
Communications yearly/ Annually on progress to
Interviews and Forums Need basis stakeholders
Meetings for forums &
Publications & meetings
Announcements
Regulators No Meetings Quarterly / Half Compliance with
Representation through Yearly / Annually rules and regulations
trade bodies Workshops Timely reporting
Written communication through various
compliance- based
forums

Leadership Indicator
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Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental,
and social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the
Board.

The Company has set up various committees on economic, environmental and social topics. These committees
are Risk Management Committee, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Safety Committee. Quarterly performance update and reviews were conducted by the
respective committees on these topics and consolidated performance report and outcome were presented
to the Board in their quarterly meetings. As per their respective terms of reference, the various Committees
(statutory as well as internal) meet periodically to review the performance of the Company in various areas.
The Company carries out frequent interactions with varied group of stakeholders. Individual functional team
periodically interacts with our diverse stakeholders and the functional heads communicate their concerns and
feedback on economic, environmental, and social topics to the Board members.

Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental,
and social topics (Yes/ No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders
on these topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes. The Company’s Materiality Assessment was conducted in consultation with its key identified stakeholder
groups. It regularly interacts with relevant stakeholders and incorporate their inputs while framing and designing
its environment and social topics. For instance while determining the material topics for framing the Company's
overall ESG policy, the Company reached out to various stakeholders including investors community, value
chain partners, customers, employees, financial institutions etc. and based on the inputs provided by these
stakeholders, Company's ESG policy was framed.

Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/
marginalized stakeholder groups.

The Company regularly engages with the marginalized stakeholder groups through its CSR partner Mukul
Madhav Foundation. Detailed CSR activities are given in Corporate Social Responsibility Report forming part of
Annual report.
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PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of
the entity, in the following format:

Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

No. of Total No. of %

employees % (©) employees (D/C)

/ workers (B/A) / workers

covered (B) covered (D)
EMPLOYEES
Permanent 1,270 358 28.18% 171 364 31.08%
Other than permanent Nil Nil 0% Nil Nil 0%
Total Employees 1,270 358 28.18% 1,171 364 31.08%
WORKERS *
Permanent 203 205
Other than permanent 2,858 Refer note below* 2,651 Refer note below*
Total Workers 3061 2,856

Note: * Awareness sessions were conducted for the workers to make them efficient and proficient in their work including human right

related matters

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

Category FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Equal to More than Equal to More than
Minimum Wage Minimum Wage Minimum Wage Minimum Wage
Total No. % No. % Total No. % No. %
(A) (B) (B/A) () (C/A) (D) (E) (E/D) (F) (F/D)
EMPLOYEES
Permanent
Male 1,229 144 1.71% 1085 8828% 1135 152 13.39% 983 86.61%
Female 41 16 39.02% 30 73.17% 36 13 36.11% 23 63.89%
Other than
Permanent
Male Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Female Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
WORKERS
Permanent
Male 203 Nil Nil 203 100% 205 202 98.53% 3 1.46%
Female Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other than
Permanent
Male 2,840 2,718  95.70% 122 430% 2,633 2542  96.54% 91 3.46%
Female 18 16 88.89% 2 11.11% 18 16 88.89% 2 N1%
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Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:

R in crore)
Male Female
Number Median Number Median
remuneration/ remuneration/
salary/wages of salary/wages of
respective category respective category
Board of Directors (BoD) 7 1.95 3 033
Key Managerial Personnel * 3 113 Nil Nil
Employees other than BoD and KMP 1,233 0.08 36 0.06
Workers 203 0.07 Nil Nil

*(Excluding Key managerial Personnel already covered under Board of Directors)
Note: Median remuneration/ salary/ wages of respective category given on an annual basis

Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or
issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No): Yes

Yes, Human Right & Whistle Blower Policy are in place. We have a focal point responsible for addressing any
human rights issues that may arise from our operations. The HR head of the respective location / office/plant is
responsible for addressing the same.

Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues:

The Company is committed in respecting the human rights of its workforce, coommunities and those affected
by its operations, wherever it does its business, including its business partners and contractors. Appropriate
systems and mechanisms with time bound process for redressal, such as Grievance Management System,
Safety Committees, Internal Complaints Committee etc. are in place to allow for resolution of the issues raised
under Human Rights policy.

Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

. . Pending Filed during Pending Remarks
Filed during ) .
resolution at Remarks the year resolution at
the year
the end of year the end of year
Sexual Harassment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Discrimination at Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
workplace
Child Labor Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Forced Labour/Involuntary Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Labour
Wages Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other human rights Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

related issues

Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment
cases.

The Company has equal opportunity policy statement in place. The Company has formed Committee at plant
level for the protection of women at workplace to ensure their rights, receive grievances, conduct investigation
and to take appropriate actions. Further the Company has Whistle Blower Policy wherein the employees
report, without fear of retaliation, any wrong practices, unethical behaviour or non-compliance which may have
a detrimental effect on the organisation, including financial damage and impact on brand image. Also, the
employee’s Code of Conduct requires employees to behave responsibly in their action and conduct.
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Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)

Yes. The Company's suppliers are required to adhere to the Supplier Code of Conduct and the same is
incorporated in the contracts (Purchase Order) which entails requirement to abide by various human rights
practices.

Assessments of the year

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authoritiesor third parties)

Child labour 100%
Forced/involuntary labour 100%
Sexual harassment 100%
Discrimination at workplace 100%
Wages 100%

Note: The Company undertook internal assessment through its EHS, HR and IR function.

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from the assessments at Question 9 above.

There were no significant human rights related risks / concerns identified by Company during the FY 22-23

Leadership Indicator

1.

Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievances/
complaints.

No complaint was received in FY22-23 for human rights violation.

Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.

Nil. The Company is commmitted to safeguard and respect human rights in every stage of the value chain. The
goal is to identify any human rights violations occurring anywhere in the value chain as early as possible and
to mitigate identified risks responsibly. Maintaining sustainable supply chain is one of FIL's guiding principles.
The Company suppliers adheres to FIL's Code of Conduct which affirms the fundamental human rights of the
suppliers’ employees and human rights in the workplace. Further the Company undertook an Internal Self-
Assessnment Questionnaire (SAQ) of value chain partners (i.e. supplier, dealers / distributors etc.) covering
confirmation on following of human rights principles in their respective offices/premises.

The Code of Conduct guidelines forms an integral element of all employment contracts. Every employee is
responsible for respecting human rights. The Company does not tolerate discrimination, sexual harassment or
any other form of personal attack on individuals or groups. In addition, the principles of equal opportunity and
equal treatment apply without restriction.

Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016?

Yes. Most of the Company's premises are accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016.

Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with
such partners) that were assessed

Sexual harassment

Discrimination at workplace
Child Labour
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour

69%

Wages

Other - please specify
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5.

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising
from the assessments at Question 4 above.
Not applicable since no significant risks were identified in the assessments.

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environmen

Essential Indicator

1.

110

Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter (*GJ, ** GJ / MT) FY 2022-22 FY 2021-22

Total electricity consumption (A) * 294,887 233233
Total fuel consumption (B) * 4,180,503 3,771,955
Energy consumption through other sources (C) * Nil Nil
Total energy consumption (A+B+C) 4,475,390 4,005,188
Revenue Energy Intensity(Total energy consumption-GJ/ turnover in rupees) 0.00010 0.00009
Energy intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the 8.3763 8.9997
entity **

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency - No

Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance,
Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set
under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial

action taken, if any

The Company is currently not identified as a designated consumer. However, FIL's Resin manufacturing plant
at Ratnagiri has completed the initial assessment to be identified as a Designated Consumers (DC) and Targets
are being set by Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) for the same.

Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water 1,526,289 1,366,886
(i) Groundwater 23,480 28,674
(iii) Third party water 107,140 83,150
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water 1,782,478 1,694,518
(v) Others 416,028 728,073
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 3,855,415 3,901,301
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 2,170,913 2,429,672
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover) 0.00005 0.00005
Water intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the 4] 55

entity (KL/MT)

Note: Indicate ifany independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency - No

Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage
and implementation

The Company have full-fledged effluent treatment and we recycle 50% of treated effluent back to process or as
cooling tower make up, while rest is used for watering the green belt.
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Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter Please specify unit FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Nox ppmM 17.4 20.8
Sox ppmM 311 285
Particulate matter (PM) mg/Nm3 6 7
Persistent organic pollutants (POP) -- Nil Nil
Volatile organic compounds (VOC) -- Nil Nil
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) -- Nil Nil
Others — Carbon Monoxide -- Nil Nil
Others — (Hydrocarbon as NHMC) - Nil Nil

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following
format:

Parameter Unit FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Metric tonnes of 397746 357962
CO,, CH,, N.O, HFCs, PFCs, SF_, NF,, if available) CO, equivalent

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Metric tonnes of 67,235 53,555
CO,, CH,, N.O, HFCs, PFCs, SF,, NF,, if available) CO, equivalent

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of MT/Rs. 0.000011 0.0000089
turnover

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity MT/MT of 0.870272392 0.92468249
(optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by products

the entity

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency - No

Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details.

Yes, the company has strong focus on energy conservation, through which GHG emissions are reduced. Below
is the list of few such initiatives undertaken by your Company during the last year. Through such energy saving
schemes more than 8,500 MT CO,e was reduced.

The Company has implemented various measures at each stage to minimize air pollution at our plant sites.
Some of these measures are as follows:

1) LPG optimization
2) Heatintegration

3) Power saving by fin fan cooler stoppage during winter and replacing low efficiency pumps by higher
efficiency pumps

4)  Recycling jumbo bag to reduce consumption of new jumbo bag consumption
5)  Auxiliary power reduction by optimising boiler operation

6) Replacement of conventional lights by LED lamps

7)  Solar heater in guest house

8) Installation of solar roof top system at Masar plant

9) Installation of VFDs to optimize the cooling towers and chilling plants

10) Thermal insulation for chillers

1) Motion sensors and daylight capture etc

12) Tree plantation

1
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12

Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste (A) 1,092.87 456.76
E-waste (B) 558 4.87
Bio-medical waste (C) 0.013 0.026
Construction and demolition waste (D) Nil Nil
Battery waste (E) 2.3 3.81
Radioactive waste (F) Nil Nil
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any.(G) 24397 256.03
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). 7,579.75 6,812.88

Please specify, if any. (Break-up by composition i.e. by materials
relevant to the sector)

Total A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 8,924.49 7,534.38

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

(i) Recycled in-house generation 1,135 492
(i) Re-used 7577 6,519

(iii) Other recovery operations - -
Total 8,712 7,01

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste: Example : Ash, Concentrated Spent Wash, Bio Gas, Sludge (Manure)

(i) Incineration 13 12

(ii) Landfilling 97 97

(iii) Other disposal operations
Total 110 109

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy
adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and
processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.

FIL believes in enhancing the circularity of its system. All our plants maintain emissions and waste within
the permissible limits. The Company segregates various categories of waste and store them appropriately at
designated waste storage areas across the plants. Canteen waste is converted into manure through an organic
waste processor unit. Garden waste is crushed and used along with canteen waste or used for mulching.

The rest of the waste is disposed of through third-party vendors. Hazardous waste, used oil, lead acid batteries,
and E-waste are disposed of through State Pollution Control Board authorized parties. Biomedical waste is
disposed of through a commmon biomedical waste treatment and disposal facility.
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If the entity has operations/offices infaround ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.)
where environmental approvals /clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

S. No. Location of Type of Whether the conditions of environmental
operations / offices operations approval / clearance are being complied
with? (Y/N) If no, the reasons thereof and
corrective action taken, if any.

Not Applicable

Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable
laws, in the current financial year:

Name and EIA Notification Date Whether conducted Results Relevant
brief details of No. by independent communicated Web Link
project external agency in public domain

(Yes / No) (Yes/ No)

Not Applicable

Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as
the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, and
Environment Protection Act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances,
in the following format:

S. Specify the law / Provide details Any fines / penalties / action taken Corrective
No. regulation / guidelines of the non- by regulatory agencies such as action taken, if
which was not compliance pollution control boards or by courts any

complied with

Not Applicable. FIL is in compliance with all the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines

LEADERSHIP INDICATOR

1.

Provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiples) from renewable and non-renewable
sources, in the following format:

In Gigajoule (GJ)

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (A) 294,887 233,233
Total fuel consumption (B) 4,180,503 3,771,955
Energy consumption through other sources (C) 0 0
Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C) 4,475,390 4,005,188

From non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (D) 294,887 233,233
Total fuel consumption (E) 4,180,503 3,771,955
Energy consumption through other sources (F) 0 0
Total energy consumed from non-renewable sources (D+E+F) 4,475,390 4,005,188

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

13
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Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Annual Report 2022-23

Parameter FY 2021-22
Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)
(i) To Surface water
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment — please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(i) To Groundwater
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment — please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
Parameter
(iii) To Seawater
- No treatment 12,22,452 10,18,703
- With treatment - please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(iv) Sent to third-parties
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment — please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(v) Others
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment — please specify level of treatment 5,16,889 4,65,580
Total water discharged (in kilolitres) 17,39,341 14,84,283

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?

(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres)

Not applicable as FIL's plants are not located in water stressed areas as per CGWA (Central Ground Water

Authority) list of water stressed area 2022.

Parameter FY 2021-22
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
(i) Surface water Nil Nil
(i) Groundwater Nil Nil
(iii) Third party water Nil Nil
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water Nil Nil
(v) Others (Effluent Recycled) Nil Nil
Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) Nil Nil
Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) Nil Nil
Water intensity perrupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover) Nil Nil
Water intensity (optional) = the relevant metric may be selected by
the Entity Nil Nil
Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres) Nil Nil
(i) Into Surface water Nil Nil
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment - please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
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Parameter FY 2021-22
(ii) Into Groundwater Nil Nil
- Notreatment Nil Nil
- With treatment - please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(iii) Into Seawater Nil Nil
- Notreatment Nil Nil
- With treatment - please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(iv) Sent to third-parties Nil Nil
- Notreatment Nil Nil
- With treatment-please specify level of treatment Nil Nil
(v) Others (on land for irrigation) Nil Nil
- No treatment Nil Nil
- With treatment - pleasespecify level of treatment Nil Nil
Total water discharged (in kilolitres) Nil Nil

Note: Indicate ifany independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter Unit FY 2021-22
Total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Metric tonnes of

CO,, CH,, N,O, HFCs, PFCs, SF,, NF,, if available) CO, equivalent Nil Nil
Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover Nil Nil
Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional) — the Nil Nil

relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate ifany independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No

With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Essential Indicators above,
provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-with
prevention and remediation activities.

The Company's plants/ sites are not located in any of the ecologically sensitive areas.

If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve
resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please
provide details of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:

Outcome of the

Initiative

Details of the Initiative (Web link, if any may be
provided along-with summary)

Sr. Initiative
No. undertaken

1

Fuel optimisation

LPG optimization in VCM (Vinyl Chloride Monomer)
plant resulted in saving of 60 MT of LPG, equivalent
to energy saving of 7,32,669 KWH.

Equivalent energy saving
of 7,32,669 KWH/annum.

Heat integration

Heat integration in VCM and PVC plants to realize
total energy savings of 4405 MT steam, equivalent to
energy saving of 41,39,280 KWH.

Resulted in saving of 4405
MT steam equivalent to
41,39,280 KWH/annum.

Optimisation

Power savings by fin fan cooler stoppage during
winter in VCM and PVC plants and by replacing low
efficiency cooling water pumps with higher efficiency
pumps in ETF/VCM plant, resulted in energy saving of
227344 KWH.

Energy saving of 2,27,344
KWH/annum.

15
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Sr. Initiative Details of the Initiative (Web link, if any may be = Outcome of the

No. undertaken provided along-with summary) Initiative

4 Auxiliary power Auxiliary power reduction in captive power plant by Energy saving of 16,17,333

reduction in CPP by optimizing boiler operation which resulted in energy KWH/annum.
optimizing boiler saving of 16,17,333 KWH.
operation

5 Use of natural light Use of transparent sheets in air compressor shed Energy saving of 55,420
and gravity flow in reverse osmosis plant resulted in KWH/annum.
power saving of 55,420 KWH.

6 Replacement of Replacement of conventional lights by LED lamps Energy saving of 105,556

conventional light resulted in power saving of 1,05,556 KWH. KWH/annum.
fixtures by LED

7 Tree plantation Green belt of 65,000 trees has resulted in reduction Carbon sequestration of
of 1,430 MT of CO, per annum. 1,430 MT of CO.e.

8 Solar heaters Solar heaters were installed in the guest house which Energy saving of 39,222
resulted in power saving of 39,222 KWH. KWH/annum.

9 Recycling of jumbo Recycling of jumbo bag in PVC bagging, reduced Reduction in carbon

bags consumption of new bags, and resulted in reduction footprint by 481 MT CO_e.
of carbon footprint by 481 MT of CO, emissions.

10 Use of electric forklift  Useofelectricforkliftin place ofdieselforklifttoreduce Resulted in reduction of
the carbon footprint by 5.4 MT of CO, emissions. 5.4 MT CO.e.

n VFD installation VFD (Variable-frequency Drive) of 22 KWH installed Energy saving of 1,04,040
for the cooling tower pump resulting in energy and 2,24,640 KWH/
saving of 104,040 KWH / annum and for 130 TR annum.

Chiller and 50 HP chilled water feed pump to save
224,640 KWH/ annum.

12 Others Cooling tower installed and piping modified in plant, Energy saving of 2,700
which resulted in saving of 2,700 KWH /annum. KWH/annum.

13 Thermal insulation Thermal jacket installed along with jacket in 5 Energy saving of 316.8
extruder machines, to achieve the saving of 316.8 and 186,300 KWH/annum
KWH /annum and 1,86,300 KWH/annum, respectively respectively.

14  Day light harvesting  Day light harvesting system installed to save 518.4 Energy saving of 5184
KWH /annum. KWH/annum.

15 Motion sensors Motion sensor lights installed in washrooms to save Energy saving of 691.2
691.2KWH/Annum. KWH/annum.

16 Solar street lights Solar streetlights were installed for the yard boundary Energy saving of 4,680
and pipe bay area to save 4,680 KWH/annum. KWH/annum.

17  Solar rooftop system  Rooftop solar panels were installed to reduce energy Energy saving of
consumption by 14,40,000 KWH/annum. 14,40,000 KWH/annum.

18  Vacuum tank Vacuum tank automation (Close loop system) Energy saving of 38,016

automation installed for controlling the speed of the vacuum KWH/Annum
pump through VFD and digital vacuum pressure
controller resulted in saving of 38,016 KWH/Annum
19  Pulverizer By installation of pulverizer in ratnagiri pipe plant, Reduction in 1607 MT

total 945 MT plastic was recycled and processed,
resulted in reduction of 1,607 MT CO, emission.

CO.e.
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7. Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/
web link.

Yes. The Company has a robust business continuity and disaster management plan as a part of its risk
management framework. The purpose of this plan is to ensure business continuity in the event of an emergency.
All the properties of the Company are insured against natural risks, like fire, flood, earthquakes, etc.

Fire-fighting systems are installed at all the manufacturing locations. Other apparatus like extinguishers filled
with chemical, Foam etc. have been placed at fire sensitive locations and regular fire safety drills are carried out.
Training and awareness sessions are conducted for the employees and emergency handling teams to prepare
them for actual emergency situations.

First aid training is provided to watch and ward staff and safety personnel. The risk assessment and mitigating
actions plans are reviewed periodically to ensure necessary actions are in place to mitigate the risks. The
Company has business continuity plan putin places in the critical part of its operations to ensure the operations
runs smoothly. Professional consultants are engaged in risk assessment / periodic audit / review and suggest
risks improvement measures from time to time.

8. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity.
What mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard?

In Company's internal assessment, there is no significant adverse impact to the environment arising from the
Value chain.

9. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for
environmental impacts.

The Company'’s value chain comprises partners both upstream and downstream of our business. Our upstream
value chain partners primarily consist of our suppliers, while our downstream value chain partners is dealers,
distributors and customers.

The Company undertook an Internal Self-Assessment Questionnaire (SAQ) of value chain partners (i.e. suppliers,
dealers / distributors etc.) covering various aspects such as environmental, social and governance.

The Company's majority suppliers are globally reputed suppliers who follows best ESG practices. These reputed
suppliers are selected based on social, ethical and environment norms and hence Company consider their
sustainability / ESG reports and practices followed. Further the remaining 22% suppliers were assessed through
SAQ. For downstream value chain partners, the company undertook SAQ of approx. 80% dealers.

PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do

so in a manner that is responsible and transparent

Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations: 14

b. List the top 14 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of
such body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. Name of the trade and industry chambers / associations Reach of trade and industry

No. chambers/associations (State
/ National)

1 Chemical Petrochemical Mfg. Association (CPMA) National

2 All India Plastic Mfg. Association (AIPMA) National

3 Organization for Plastic of India (OPPI) National

4 Confederation of Indian Industry (Cll) National

5 Indo-German Chamber of Commerce National

6 Federation of Indian Chambers and Commerce & Industry (FICCI) National

7 Centre for Chemical Process Safety (CCPs) National

8 Indian Chemical Council (ICC) National

9 Indian Vinyl Council (IVC) National

10  Maharashtra Economic Development Council (MEDC) State

n7
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2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct
by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities:

There is no action taken or underway against the Company on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct.

Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken

Not Applicable

Leadership Indicator

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:
The Company is a member of various national and state industry confederations / chambers / associations
where it actively participates through senior leadership. It provide their expertise and business acumen during
public policy consultations. The Company is commmitted to engage in the public policy advocacy process in a
responsible and ethical manner.

PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws,
in the current financial year.

Name and SIA Notification Date of Whether conducted by Results Relevant
brief details of No. notification independent external communicatedin Web link
project agency (Yes / No) public domain

(Yes / No)

Not applicable

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being
undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

S. Name of Project for State District No. of Project Affected % of PAFs Amounts paid to
No. which R&R is ongoing Families (PAFs) covered by PAFs in the FY
R&R (In Crore)

Not applicable

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

The Company has a defined a process to ensure all the complaints and feedback from all stakeholders including
communities are received and addressed. Further the Company has partnered with Mukul Madhav Foundation
to fulfil its CSR commitment and who has been actively supporting the Company in its cormmunity development
activities. Robust mechanisms are put in place to resolve the queries and redress grievances of the community
and the CSR projects / programmes / activities by reaching dedicated contact page on the Company's website,
email ID etc.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Directly sourced frommn MSMEs/ small producers 1% 7.7%

Sourced directly from within the district and neighbouring districts 4.5% 3.4%

18



Corporate  Statutory Financial
Overview Reports Statements

Leadership Indicator

1. Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact
Assessments (Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

No negative social impact identified Not applicable

2. Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational
districts as identified by government bodies:

S. State Aspirational District Amount spent (3 in crore)
No.

1 Maharashtra Gadhchiroli 1.42
2 Maharashtra Osmanabad 0.14
3 Rajasthan Jaisalmer 0.01
4, Jammu & Kashmir Kupwara 0.04
5 Bihar Gaya 0.12
6 Bihar Muzaffarpur 0.28
7 Uttar Pradesh Vrindavan 0.05

3. (a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers
comprising marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No):

No such preferential procurement policy exists as of now.

(a) From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?

Nil. Considering the nature of Company’s business activity, the Company procures the raw material from
best available sources.

(b) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?
Nil
4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your

entity (in the current financial year), based on traditional knowledge:

The Company has not derived/shared any benefits from the intellectual properties owned or acquired, based on
traditional knowledge.

S. Intellectual Property based on Owned/ Acquired Benefit shared (Yes Basis of calculating
No. traditional knowledge (Yes/No) / No) benefit share

Nil

5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related
disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Name of Authority Brief of the Case Corrective action taken

Nil
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Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

Annual Report 2022-23

S. CSR Project(s) No. of persons % of beneficiaries
No. benefitted from from vulnerable and
CSR Project marginal groups
1 Agriculture and Rural Development 16,656 100%
i. Infrastructure support i.e. Solar Street light provided to
Tribal people.
ii. Conducted village adoption programme (Toilet Blocks,
Water Projects, Skill Development opportunities, public
benches and seat arrangement).
iii. Seed support provided to widow farmers.
iv. Provided farming training to women.
v. Infrastructure support viz. building toilets for households
2 Promotion of Education 11,600 100%
i. Supported schools with water filter, IT equipments like
projector & laptop.
ii. Provided education scholarship to students.
iii. Supported Leprosy community, Tribal girls students,
with fees
iv. Distributed uniform bags.
V. Provided sanitation and other facilities at various schools.
3 Ensuring Environment Sustainability 7,475 100%
i. Tree plantation.
ii. Desilting and water bed deepening initiatives undertook
to resolve the drinking water issues.
iii. Supported farmers with percolation of water tank.
iv. Undertook beach & river cleaning initiatives etc.
4 Eradicating Extreme Hunger and Poverty 6,964 100%
i. Supported with monthly grocery to students and senior
citizens.
ii. Provided hot meals to Children & people living on streets.
iii. Distributed food articles to poor, needy & street people.
5 Promoting Gender Equality and Empowering Women 19,004 100%
i. Supported with sports equipments, grocery Kits,
sponsoring cultural programme to orphanage girls, tribal
families, devotees, women etc.
ii. SettingupoftheSmall-Scale Dairy Product manufacturing
unit for Women Micro Entrepreneurs and Dairy Farmers
iii. Supported with stationary materials and fruit drinks for
slum children
6 Promoting Preventive Healthcare 24,092 100%

Supported senior citizens with cataract surgery

Supported Palliative care for cancer patients

iii. Supported Thalassemia Patients with blood transfusion

and tests

Supported mother and child with health and nutrition
projects

Conducted school health camp etc.
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S. CSR Project(s) No. of persons % of beneficiaries
No. benefitted from from vulnerable and

CSR Project marginal groups
7 Natural Calamities 1,00,880 100%

i. Supported with ration kits for Assam flood victims.

ii. Supported affected people in Sri Lanka with medicines
8 Promoting Sports 157 100%

i. Supported sports person by providing training for formula
4 race

ii. Supported badminton tournament and competition

iii. Infrastructure support provided to college for Basket
Ball court

9 Promotion of Vocational Skills and Livelihood 3727 100%

i. Enabled sustainable livelihood towards building a general
well-being of tribal commmunities.

ii. Undertook skill development project, plumber training,
women skills development and livelihood for women and
youth.
iii. Provided start-up books to students.
10 Support to Differently abled 4,282 100%

i. Provided vocational training and Entrepreneurship
Development programme to visually impaired.

ii. Provided financial support for CP Children's surgeries

iii. Conducted assessment camps as a part of Cerebral
Palsy Mission

iv. Supportedindividualswith deafblindnessfortheirtherapy

v. Distribution of food to children on World Disabled Day.
1  Armed Forces/Veterans 600 100%

Celebration of Rakhi festival with Jawan
12  Safe Drinking Water & Sanitation 15,321 100%

i. Supplied water tankers in summer season

ii. Provided infrastructure facilities viz. toilets to households
& tribal

iii. Built individual toilet blocks/smokeless chula/holiday
homes

iv. Built new toilet blocks for girl students

13 Technology Incubators - -

Start up supported through science and technology park
which provided with High-Temperature Multi Jet Updraft
Gasifier Unit

14 Animal Welfare - -

i. Supported cows with vaccination from Lumpy Diseases
ii. Built Bird cage for rescuing birds

iii. Supported Gaushala with Kadba Kutti Machines

Note- The number of beneficiaries are part of the society and communities surrounded in the area in which the
CSR activities were carried out. The number of beneficiaries includes direct beneficiaries like hospitals, colleges,
schools, villages, institutions and also its end beneficiaries.
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PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a

responsible manner

Essential Indicators

1

122

Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

The Company has provided various channels for its consumers to raise complaints and feedback if any. All the
customers including the end user customers can reach out to the Company via emails and toll free numbers
provided on Company's website. Additionally our dealers have access to the Customer Relationship Management
to raise and track any complaints.

Further the company annually obtains feedback from its customers with respect to quality of products, supplies,
assessment of redressal procedure etc. The insights obtained from these feedback mechanism are given due
consideration while showcasing our strategic business priorities.

Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry
information about:

As a percentage to total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 100%
Safe and responsible usage 100%
Recycling and/or safe disposal 100%

Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Received Pending Received Pending Remarks
during the resolutionat Remarks [e[VglTeR{ - Tl 1
year end of year year end of year
Data privacy Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Advertising Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Cyber-security Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Delivery of essential Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
services
Restrictive Trade Practices Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Unfair Trade Practices Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Other Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

During the financial year 2022-23, no such instances of product recalls on account of safety issues were reported.
FIL constantly endeavours to deliver products and services of the highest quality to our customers while
ensuring minimal harm to the environment and society. The Company is committed to creating a better today
and growing with changing times to create a stronger tomorrow.

Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If
available, provide a web-link of the policy.

YES - https://mww.finolexpipes.com/tnc/

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery
of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product
recalls; penalty / action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

Not applicable since no incident was reported in FY 2022-23.
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Leadership Indicator

1.

Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide
web link, if available).

Information on products and services of the entity can be accessed at Company’'s website- https:/mwww.
finolexpipes.com/product/. Additionally the company circulates catalogues with its dealers/customers covering
its products specification and usage.

Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or
services.

The company took multiple steps to inform & educate the consumers about safe and responsible usage of
products via product labelling, organizing awareness programmes & informative reminders, details of which are
mentioned below:

The Company sent two informative reminders through email and registered post to the resin consumers with
respect to prohibition on supply of plastic raw material (“Raw Material”) for production of banned single use
plastic (SUP) items and producer engaged in the manufacture of plastic packaging not having valid registration.

The Company demonstrated a proactive approach in upholding legal principles by conducting comprehensive
awareness programmes. These initiatives have aimed to educate and engage all value chain partners on a wide
range of our products, specifications, safe and responsible use of its products. This enables value chain partners
to have a clear understanding of the products, their intended usage, and potential applications.

Further the Company while selling the product circulates catalogue with its dealers/customers covering its
product specification and usage.

Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.

Not Applicable

Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local
laws? (Yes/No/ Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with
regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant locations
of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? (Yes/No)

Yes, products of the Company adhere to all relevant laws and applicable regulations including product labelling.
As per the legal requirements, It provides all the necessary information on its products labels, packaging and
documentation. This includes details product specifications, usage instructions, safety precautions and any
other information mandated by regulatory authorities.

All the products are focused primarily on customer delight. In this regard, FIL have identified customer
relationship management among its high-priority material topics. FIL seeks annually/continuously seek input
from its customers through a robust feedback mechanism. Knowing the pulse of the customers propels the
Company's innovation, thus enabling it to retain its market pole positions. The insights obtained from these
feedback mechanisms are given due consideration while showcasing our strategic business priorities, thus
bridging the perceived gap. Our robust customer relationship management enables us to constantly provide
customer delight by providing best quality products, thus making us Finolex synonymous with durable pipes
and products, augmenting their user experience.

Provide the following information relating to data breaches:
a. Number of instances of data breaches along-with impact

No incident was reported in FY 22-23. The Company has adopted the “Privacy by Default” principles in
its approach to data privacy i.e. privacy of data and information is upheld first by default. Further it has
implemented robust data security measures and protocols to safeguard the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of sensitive information.

b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers
Nil
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Annexure-5 to the Directors’ Report

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

1

Brief outline of Company’s CSR Policy

The CSR Policy sets out our commitment and approach towards

Corporate Social Responsibility of improving the quality of life of
the communities we serve. Through the philosophy of Engage,
Equip and Empower, which is interwoven in all the three thrust
areas, i.e. Sustainable Livelihood, Community Development and
Issues of National Importance, we strive to enhance education, to
make need-based development interventions with community
participation and address issues of National Importance like
Disaster Management, Affirmative Action and Sanitation.

2 Composition of the CSR Committee
Sr. Name of Director Designation/ Number of meetings  Number of meetings of
No. Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee attended
Directorship held during the year during the year
1. Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria Chairperson
2. Ms. Bhumika L. Batra Member 4 4
3. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria Member 4 4
4. Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale Member 4 4
5. Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Member 4 4
6. Mr. Sanjay S. Math # Member 4 1
7. Dr. Deepak R. Parikh Member 4 4
8. Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi Member 4 4
9. Mr. Anami N. Roy Member 4 4
10.  Mr. Anil V. Whabi Member 4 3

# Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director was superannuated from the Company on close of business hours of May 31, 2022
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Web-link where the following are disclosed on the website of the Company:

Composition of CSR committee

CSR Policy

CSR projects approved by the Board

The executive summary along with web-link(s) of
impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as
per section 135(5)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if
any

Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]

https://www.finolexpipes.com/investors/

corporate-governance/

https://mwww.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/
files/12926/corporate_responsibility_policy.pdf

https://www.finolexpipes.com/investors/

compliance-report/

Not Applicable

%777 Crore

%15.55 Crore

Nil

Nil

%15.55 Crore
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Corporate
Overview
6 (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects 321.22 Crore
(both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project)
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads as per %0.90 Crore
section 135(5)
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year [(a)+(b)+(c)] 32212 Crore
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Nil

Statutory

Reports

Financial
Statements

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in %)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to

Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6)

financial year
(ing)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund

Amount

Date of transfer

32212 Crore - - -

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any

Sr. Particular Amount
No.
i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 %15.55 Crore
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 32212 Crore
iii.  Excessamount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] %6.57 Crore
iv. ~ Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil
Financial Years, if any
V. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] %6.57 Crore
7 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years
Sr. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred Amount Deficiency,
No. financial transferred amountin spentin to any fund remaining (if any)
year(s) to Unspent Unspent CSR the specified under to be

CSR Account Account financial Schedule Vil second spentin

under under year (inX) proviso to section succeeding

section section 135(5), if any financial

15”5(6) 1.35(6) Amount Date of )(ears

(in3) (in%) (in3%) transfer (in3)
1 FY-12021-22 Nil
2 FY-22020-21 Nil
3 FY-32019-20 Nil

8 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount

spent in the financial year:

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets
created/ acquired

Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount

spent in the Financial Year:
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Sr. Short particulars of the Pin code Dateof Amount Details of entity/ Authority/

No. property or asset(s) of the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
lincluding comple-te property amount  ~gp Registration Name Registered
address and location of the or asset(s) spent Number, if address
property] applicable

Not applicable
9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the NA

average net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ritu P. Chhabria Anil V. Whabi
Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director Managing Director
DIN : 00062144 DIN : 00142052
Chairperson, CSR Committee Member, CSR Committee
Date: May 22,2023 Date: May 22,2023
Place: London Place: Pune
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Corporate Governance
CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,
Finolex Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Finolex Industries Limited,
CIN L40108PN1981PLCO24153 (hereinafter referred "the Company"), for the year ended on March 31,2023 as stipulated
in relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance
of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Regulations, as applicable.

We further state that, this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SVD & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sridhar Mudaliar
Partner

FCS No: 6156

CP No: 2664

Peer Review No: P2013MH075200
UDIN: FOO6156E000341491

Place: Pune

Date: May 22, 2023

Note:

We have relied on the documents and evidences provided by electronic mode, for the purpose of issuing this
certificate
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Compliance report for the year 2022-2023

1.
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Company'’s philosophy on code of governance:

The Company is committed towards achieving optimum performance at all levels by adhering to corporate
governance practices, such as:

. Fair and transparent business practices
. Effective management control by Board

. Optimum representation from promoter, executive, non-executive, independent and women directors on
the Board.

. Accountability for performance

. Monitoring of executive performance by the Board

. Compliance of laws

. Transparent and timely disclosure of financial and other relevant information and performance

The Company believes that adherence to high standards of corporate governance is essential for sustained
corporate growth.

Board of Directors (“the Board”):

Composition and category of directors

The Board of your Company is comprised of 10 directors. Three executive directors, two non-executive and non-
independent directors and five non-executive independent directors. From ten directors, three are women
directors, with two of them being non-executive independent director.

In the category of the executive directors, your Board consists of Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, Executive Chairman,
the promoter of the Company, Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Managing Director and Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti, Director —
Technical.

Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale & Ms. Bhumika L. Batra are non-executive and independent woman directors.

Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria and Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar are non-executive and non-independent directors. Mrs. Ritu
P. Chhabria is a promoter of the Company.

As on date of this Report, the Board is represented by five non-executive independent directors namely Ms.
Bhumika L. Batra, Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami N. Roy.

The details of the directors’ attendance at the meetings of the Board, other committees of the Board, annual
general meeting held during the financial year 2022-2023, committee positions held in the various commmittees
of the Company and directorships and committee positions held by the directors in other companies are
provided hereinafter in Table 1.
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Notes:

1. Mr. Sanjay Math, Managing director was
superannuated on close of business hours of
May 31,2022

2. Directorship in other Companies include
directorships in public and private limited
companies. (excluding directorships in the foreign
companies and Section 8 Companies)

3. Consequent to relaxations provided by MCA
and SEBI, Meetings were held through Video
Conference / Other Audio-Visual Means.

4. None of the Independent Directors on the Board
are serving as an Independent Director in more
than seven listed companies.

5. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee
positions have been made by all the Directors.
As required under Regulation 26 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the disclosure includes
membership/chairmanship of audit committee
and stakeholder relationship committee (listed
and unlisted public companies).

6. The composition of the Board of Directors is in
accordance with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

No. of Board Meetings held during the year

During 2022-2023, the Board of Directors met 5 (five)
times viz. May 18, 2022, July 22, 2022; September 25,
2022; October 21, 2022 and February 4, 2023. The time
gap between two Board meetings was less than one
hundred and twenty days. All material information
was circulated to the directors before the meeting
or placed at the meeting, including minimum
information required to be made available to the Board
of Directors as prescribed under Part-A of Schedule Il
of sub-regulation 7 of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Financial
Statements

Corporate  Statutory
Overview Reports

Disclosure of relationships between directors
inter-se

None of the directors are relatives of each other except
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, Executive Chairman and
Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria, non-executive and non-
independent director who are related to each other
as husband and wife and both are promoters. of the
Company.

No. of shares and convertible instruments held
by non-executive directors

The details of shares held by the executive and non-
executive directors are provided in Table 1.

The Company does not have any convertible
instruments.

Web link where details of familiarization
programmes imparted to independent directors
is disclosed on the Company’s website

The details of familiarization programmes imparted
to independent directors can be accessed through
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/21854/
familiarization_programmes_for_independent_
directors_fy_2022-23.pdf

Board Membership Criteria

The Board has approved a Policy on Board Diversity
and the Company inducts eminent individuals from
diverse fields as director on its Board. The Board
members possess expertise and insights in sectors/
area relevant to the Company and have ability to
contribute to the Company'’s growth.

The Board has mainly identified the following skills/
expertise/competencies for the effective functioning
of the Company:

1. Qualification, expertise and professional
experience of the Directors in their respective
fields;

Financial Literacy;
Leadership;
Board service and governance;

Regulatory, administration and legal and;

o U A WN

Information technology
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Succession Planning

Succession is an essential component to the survival
and growth of any business. Succession planning
is a tool for an organization to ensure its continued
effective performance through leadership continuity.
The Board of Directors has adopted ‘succession
planning policy’ for the Board and senior management.
The Company has a mechanism in place for ensuring
orderly succession for appointments to the Board and
to Senior Management.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration
frorm each independent director under Section
149 (7) of the Act, and Regulation 16(b) & 25 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board has taken on
records the declaration and confirmation submitted
by the independent directors after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same. All
the independent directors fulfill the conditions
of independence and are independent of the
management.

Audit Committee:
Composition

. The Committee presently comprises 6 (six)
directors, 5 (five) independent directors viz.
Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi (Chairman of the Committee),
Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale,
Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Anami N. Roy and 1 (one)
non-independent and non-executive director viz.
Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar.

. All  members of the Audit Committee are
financially literate and have accounting or related
financial management expertise.

. Required information for review was placed before
the Audit Committee meetings held during the
year.

Meetings and attendance during the year

During the year 2022-23, the Audit Committee met 5
(five) times viz. May 18, 2022; July 22, 2022; September
25,2022; October 21,2022 & February 4, 2023.

The details of the Directors’ attendance at the Audit
Committee meetings during the year are given in
Table 1.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary of the
Company acts as Secretary to the committee.

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are
comprised of all requirements pursuant to the
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provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

. Recommendationforappointment,remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company.

. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence,
performance and effectiveness of audit process.

. Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties.

. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary.

. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems.

. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through
public offers and related matters.

. Investigate into any matter the Board has referred.
For this purpose, it will have the power to obtain
professional advice from external sources, and
have full access to the information contained in
the records of the Company.

. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible.

. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
and annual financial statements and auditor's
report thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the
Director's Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same.

c.  Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on exercise of judgement by the
management.

d. Significantadjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings.
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e. Compliance with
legal requirements
statements.

listing and other
relating to financial

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g. Modified Opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement
of uses / application of funds raised through a
public issue, rights issue or preferential issue
etc, reviewing the statement of funds utilized
for the purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/prospectus / notice, reviewing
the report submitted by the monitoring agency
and monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps
in this matter.

Reviewing with  the management, the
performance of statutory and internal auditors,
the adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of the internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditorsinto matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature, and reporting the matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commmences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, members (in case of non-payment of
declared dividend) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism.

Approval of appointment of the Chief Financial
Officer (the “CFQ") (i.e. the whole-time Finance
Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after
assessing the qualifications, experience and
background etc. of the candidate;
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. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advance
from/investment by the Company in the
subsidiary exceeding 100 Crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans/advance/investments;

. Mandatorily review the following information:

a. management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations;

b. statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the audit
committee), submitted by management;

c.  management letters / letters of internal
control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

d. internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses;

e. the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor;

. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity
and its shareholders; and

. Review required information under SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
and take necessary action as required.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Composition

The Committee presently comprises 6 (six) directors, 5
(five) of them are independent, namely Ms. Bhumika
L. Batra (Chairperson of the Committee), Mrs. Kanchan
U. Chitale, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi,
Mr. Anami N. Roy and 1 (one) non- independent
and non-executive director namely Mr. Saurabh S.
Dhanorkar.

The details of the Directors’ attendance at the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings
during the year are given in Table 1.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee cover all the areas
mentioned in Section 178 of the Act, and Regulation 19
of the SEBI Listing Regulations.



The objective of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board of the Company and
its controlled entities in fulfilling its responsibilities to
members.

Terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as follow:

. Considering the skill sets required by the Board,
and to ensure that such people contribute to the
decisions and policies that will eventually define
the company. The Committee also considers
qualifications, positive attributes, areas of
expertise and the number of Directorships and
Memberships held in various committees of other
companies by such persons. The Board considers
the Committee's recommendation and takes
appropriate decision.

. Ensuring that the Board of Directors is comprised
of individuals who are the best able to discharge
the responsibilities of the Directors in consonance
with the Companies Act, 2013 and the norms of
corporate governance; and

. Ensuring that the nomination process and
remuneration  policies are equitable and
transparent.

. The responsibilities of the Committee include:

- formulating a criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a Director, and
recommmending to the Board a policy relating
to the appointment and remuneration for
the Directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

- formulatingacriteriaand manner for effective
evaluation of performance of Independent
Directors, Board and its committees and
review its implementation and compliance;

- devising a policy that ensures the Board
consist of diverse individuals;

- identifying persons who are qualified to
become Directorsand who may be appointed
as part of the ‘senior management’ of the
Company in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the Board the
appointment and removal of such personnel;
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- recommending extension or continuation of
the term of appointment of the Independent
Directors based on evaluation of their
performance; and

- recommending to the Board, all
remuneration, in whatever form, payable to
senior management and functional heads.

- Review and approve the benefits to be
granted to the employees and other things
as required under (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021,
as amended from time to time.

Meetings and attendance during the year

During the year, 3 (three) meetings of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee were held on May 18,
2022; July 22, 2022; & February 4, 2023. The attendance
details are given in Table 1.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The nomination and remuneration policy of the
Company on recommendation by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was approved by the Board
and the same is in place. The said policy is given on
the Company's website https:/Mmww.finolexpipes.com/
site/assets/files/18437/nomination_and_remunaration_
policy.pdf. The remuneration of the Directors for the
year 2022-23, is in terms of the said policy.

In accordance with the nomination and remuneration
policy of the Company, the evaluation of Independent
Director has been carried out by the entire Board
based on the performance of the respective director
as well as fulfillment of the independence criteria
by them.

Remuneration of Directors

None ofthe non-executive directors have any pecuniary
relationship or transaction vis-a-vis the Company.
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, Executive Chairmman and Mrs.
Ritu P. Chhabria, non-executive and non-independent
Director are related to each other as husband and wife.

Criteria of making payment to non-executive
directors

The criteria of making payment to non-executive
directors is given on the Company's website https://
www.finolexpipes.com/investors/policies-code-of-
conduct/
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Details of remuneration to the executive directors for the financial year 2022-2023, are given below:

R in Crores)

Particulars Mr. Prakash P. Mr. Sanjay S. Math Mr. Anil V. Whabi Mr. Saumya

Chhabria Executive = Former Managing Managing Director > Chakrabarti Director

Chairman’ Director? - Technical #

Salary and Allowance 2.89 0.37 1.41 0.91

Contribution of PF 0.21 0.01 0.06 0.05

Performance 0.34 0.02 0.0 0.09
incentive/Bonus

Total 3.44 0.40 1.57 1.04

Commission 8.00 - 3.00 0.50

Notice period 6 months 3 months 3 months 3 months

Service Contract Five years Six Months One year Five years

Severance Fees Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

" Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria was re-appointed as Executive Chairman w.e.f. December 1, 2021.

2 Mr. Sanjay S. Math superannuated as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. June 1,2022, and remuneration details are given for the period

of 2 months, excluding retirement benefits;

3 Mr. Anil V. Whabi was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. June 1, 2022;

4 Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti was appointed as Director — Technical w.e.f. June 1,2022

The above aggregate remuneration paid to executive directors is within the ceiling limits prescribed under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Note:

As post-employment obligations and other long-term employee benefits obligation are computed for all employees
in aggregate, the amounts relating to key Whole Time Director / Managing Director / key management personnel
cannot be individually computed and hence are not included in the above.

The details of remuneration to the non-executive directors for the financial year 2022-23, are given below:

(R in Crores)

Sr. Name

Remuneration

No. Commission Sitting fees
1 Ms. Bhumika L. Batra 0.27 0.06
2 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria 0.27 0.03
3 Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale 0.27 0.12
4 Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar 0.27 0.12
5 Dr. Deepak R. Parikh 0.27 0.04
6 Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi 0.37 0.06
7 Mr. Anami N. Roy 0.27 0.05

The above aggregate commission paid to non-
executive directors is 0.67% of the net profits of the
Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Act.

The non-executive directors do not receive any
remuneration from the Company except for the sitting
fees and commission as approved by the Board from
time to time. All independent directors are experts in
their respective fields and their services are beneficial
to the Company.

No stock options were issued during the financial year
2022-2023.
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Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Composition

The constitution of the Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee in terms of the provisions of Section
178 of the Act, and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, is as under:

It comprises of 6 (six) members out of which 4 (four) are
independent directors viz. Mr. Anami N. Roy (Chairman
of the Committee) Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak
R. Parikh and Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi. The other two
members are Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, the Executive
Chairman and Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar, non-executive
& non-independent director of the Company.



Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee and is also a compliance
officer of the Company.

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee are comprised of all requirements
pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act,
and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee are as follows:

- To resolve grievances of the security holders of the
Company including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc;

- To review and note certificate received from
Practicing Company Secretary in compliance of
Regulation 40 (9) to (11) or any other applicable
regulation(s) of the SEBI Listing Regulations;

- To review and note the status of Investor
Complaints;
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- To review and note the status of unclaimed
dividends;

- To review measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by Shareholders;

- To review adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent;

- To review various measure and initiatives taken
by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the Shareholders of the Company; and

- To take necessary action on the matters delegated
by the Board from time to time.

Meetings and attendance during the year

During 2022-23, four (4) meetings of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee were held viz. May 18, 2022;
July 22, 2022; October 21, 2022 and February 4, 2023.
The attendance for the same is provided in Table 1.

Details of shareholders’ complaints during financial year 2022-2023

Pending Complaints as
on 1¢t April, 2022

Complaints received
during the year

Complaints disposed
during the year

Complaints pending as
on 31t March, 2023

Nil 68

68 Nil

Risk Management Committee
Composition

The constitution of the Risk Management Committee
intermsof Regulation 21ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations,
is as under:

It comprises of 8 (eight) members out of which 5
(five) are independent directors viz. Mrs. Kanchan U.
Chitale (Chairperson of the Committee), Ms. Bhumika
L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh,Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi and
Mr. Anami N. Roy and 1 (one) non-independent and
non-executive director viz. Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar
and other 2 (two) members are Mr. Prakash P.
Chhalbria and Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Executive Directors of
the Company.

Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director ceased to be
member of the risk management committee w.e.f.
June1,2022, conseguent to his superannuation.

Mr. Anil V. Whabi was inducted as the member of the
risk management committee w.e.f. June 1, 2022.

Mr. Niraj Kedia, was appointed as Chief Risk Officer of
the Company. The Managing Director, Chief Financial

Officer, Chief Risk Officer and and Risk Manager are the
permanent invitees to the meetings of the Committee.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of Risk Management
Committee are in accordance with the Regulation 21
of the SEBI Listing Regulations,, 2015.

Terms of Reference of the Risk Management
Committee are as follows:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy
which shall include:

(@) A framework for identification of internal
and external risks specifically faced by
the listed entity, in particular including
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information,
cyber security risks or any other risk as may
be determined by the Committee.
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(4)

(6)

(7)

(19)

W)

(12)
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(b) Measures for risk mitigation including
systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan.

To ensure that appropriate methodology,
processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of
the Company;

To monitor and oversee implementation of the
risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

To periodically review the risk management
policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and
evolving complexity;

To keep the board of directors informed about
the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall
be subject to review by the Risk Management
Committee.

To monitor and review the risk management
plan, cyber security and such other functions as
may be delegated by the Board to the RMC and/or
the Chairman and/or Managing Director as may
be necessary for effective implementation of the
Risk Management Plan/Policy; and

To take necessary actions on the matters
delegated by the Board from time to time.

To focus on the macro-level trends and
developmentsin ESGC measurementandreporting
standards and frameworks, help in creating ESG
goals for the Company and periodically reviews
the ESG activities and related performance.

To assist and oversee the Company's ESG
program, strategy, initiatives, policies, reporting
and disclosures.

Toreviewtheimplementation oftargets,standards
and metrics established to assess and track the
Company's ESG performance to ensure that the
Company's performance is consistent with the
Company's long-term strategic objectives, good
corporate citizenship and the Company's ESG
strategy.

To review any statutory reporting relating
to sustainability initiatives e.g, Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR)
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(13) To review and evaluate the ESG risks identified by
the Company and to collaborate with the Board
and its Committees to monitor and establish the
mitigation plan for such risks.

(14) Toundertake self-evaluation of its own functioning
and identification of areas for improvement; and

(15) To perform such other functions or duties as may
be required under the relevant provisions of SEBI
SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act read with
rules made thereunder and as may be specifically
delegated to the Committee by the Board from
time to time

Meeting and Attendance

During the year 2022-23, three (3) meetings of the Risk
Management Committee was held on May 18, 2022;
October 21,2022 and February 4, 2023. The attendance
for the same is provided in Table 1.

The Audit Committee also periodically reviews the risk
identification and its mitigation.
Social Responsibility

Corporate (“CSR")

Committee
Composition

The Company has constituted the CSR Committee as
required under Section 135 of the Act, read with rule
made therein.

The Committee at present, comprises of 9 (nine)
members out of which 5 (five) are independent
directors viz. Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Mrs. Kanchan U.
Chitale, Dr. Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi
and Mr. Anami N. Roy and 2 (two) non-independent
and non-executive director viz. Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria
(Chairperson of the Committee), Mr. Saurabh S.
Dhanorkar and other 2 (two) members are Mr. Prakash
P. Chhabria and Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Executive Directors
of the Company.

Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director ceased to
be member of the Corporate Social Responsibility
committee w.ef June 1, 2022, consequent to his
superannuation.

Mr. Anil V. Whabi was inducted as the member
of the corporate social responsibility committee
w.ef Junel, 2022.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year
During the year 2022-23, 4 (four) meetings of CSR

Committee were held i.e. on May 18, 2022; July 22, 2022;
October 21,2022 and February 2, 2023.



The details of attendance of CSR meetings by the
Directors during the year is provided in Table 1.

Brief description of terms of reference Terms of
reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee are as follows:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall
formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual
action plan in pursuance of its CSR policy, which shall
include the following, namely:-

(@) the list of CSR projects or programmes that are
approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects
specified in Schedule VII of the Act;

(b) the manner of execution of such projects or
programmes as specified in sub-rule (1) of rule 4;

() the modalities of utilization of funds and
implementation schedules for the projects or
programmes;

(d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the
projects or programmes; and

(e) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for
the projects undertaken by the company

(f) the CSR Committee/Board shall ensure that the
administrative overheads shall not exceed five
percent of total CSR expenditure of the company
for the financial year

(g) monitor and ensure that the surplus arising out of
the CSR projects or programs or activities shall not
form part of the business profits of a Company.

(i) identify need of impact assessment, if applicable,
for the activities undertaken by the Company.

(j) review and comply with the requirements of the
provisions of the Act, CSR Rules and periodical
disclosure requirements.

Share Transfer Committee
Composition

The Committee at present, comprises of 8 (eight)
members out of which 5 (five) are independent
directors viz. Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale (Chairperson of
the Committee), Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Dr. Deepak R.
Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathiand Mr. Anami N. Roy and 1
(one) non-independent and non-executive director viz.
Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar and other 2 (two) members
are Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria and Mr. Anil V. Whabi,
Executive Directors of the Company.
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Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director ceased to be
member of the Share Transfer committee w.e.f. June 1,
2022, consequent to his superannuation.

Mr. Anil V. Whabi was inducted as the member of the
share transfer committee w.e.f. June 1, 2022.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

Brief description of terms of reference

- Consider and approve the transfer and
transmission of securities i.e. shares, debentures
and other security documents;

- Consider and approve issue of duplicate share
certificates;

- Consider and approve split, consolidation of
share/debenture certificates and issue fresh share
certificates and debenture certificates;

- Consider any other assignment as directed by the
Board,;

- Consider and approve dematerialization and
rematerialization of securities; and

- To take necessary actions on the matters
delegated by the Board from time to time.

Meetings and attendance during the year

During the year 2022-23, 36 (thirty six) meetings of
Share Transfer Committee were held i.e. on April 11,
2022; May 5, 2022; May 30, 2022; June 10, 2022; June 20,
2022; June 28, 2022; June 30, 2022; July 11, 2022; July
20, 2022; July 21, 2022; July 30, 2022; August 10, 2022;
August 11, 2022; August 20, 2022; August 30, 2022;
September 10, 2022; September 20, 2022; October 12,
2022; October 20, 2022; October 31, 2022; November
10, 2022; November 11, 2022; November 19, 2022;
November 21, 2022; November 30, 2022; December 10,
2022;December 20, 2022; December 30, 2022; January
10, 2023; January 20, 2023; January 30, 2023; February
10,2023; February 20, 2023; February 28, 2023; March 10,
2023; and March 20, 2023.

The details of attendance of Share Transfer Committee
meetings by the Directors during the year is given in
Table 1.

Finance Committee
Composition

The Finance Committee consists of 9 (nine) directors
out of which 5 (five) are independent directors viz.
Ms. Bhumika L. Batra, Mrs. Kanchan U. Chitale, Dr.
Deepak R. Parikh, Mr. Pradeep R. Rathi and Mr. Anami
N.Roy and1(one) non-independent and non-executive
director viz.Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar and other 2 (two)
members are Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria (Chairman of the
Committee) and Mr. Anil V. Whabi, Executive Directors
of the Company.
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Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director ceased to be
member of the Finance Committee w.e.f.June 1, 2022,
conseqguent to his superannuation

Mr. Anil V. Whabi was inducted as the member of the
finance committee w.e.f. June 1, 2022.

Mr. Ashutosh Kulkarni, Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the committee.

Brief description of terms of reference

- To consider and review various financial proposals
for the financial investments, borrowings and
give recommendations to the Audit Committee/
Board; and

- To take necessary actions on matters delegated

by the Board from time to time.

Meetings and Attendance

No meeting of the Finance Committee was held
during the year 2022-2023.

General body meetings:

Annual Report 2022-23

Independent Directors’ Meeting

The Independent Directors had a separate meeting
on March 10, 2023 without the attendance of the Non-
Independent Directors and the members from the
Management. All the Independent Directors were
present at the meeting.

During the said meeting Independent Directors:

a. Reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

b. Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of
the Company, taking into account the views of
the Managing Director and Executive Directors.

c. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of
the flow of information between the Company'’s
Management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

a) The location and time where last three annual general meetings were held

Year 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

Date of AGM  September 19, 2020 September 22,2021 August 30, 2022

Time 11.00 a.m. 4,00 p.m. 4.00 p.m.

Place Through Video Conferencing Through Video Conferencing Through Video Conferencing
of AGM (Deemed Venue Registered  (Deemed Venue Registered  (Deemed Venue Registered

Office of the Company)

Office of the Company)

Office of the Company)

b) The details of special resolutions passed in the previous three annual general meetings

Date of AGM Item of special resolution

19.09.2020

To give approval for issuing offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to debt securities as defined

under the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended from
time to time, including Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) for a sum not exceeding
72,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Fifty crore only) on a private placement basis in one
or more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution within
the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the members, from time to time.

22.09.2021

a. To accord consent to the Board for payment of commission to the directors other than

managing director or executive directors of the company not exceeding one percent of
the net profit of the Company calculated under provisions of Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with a cap of ¥4,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Crore Only) for each financial year

commencing from 1t April, 2020.

b. To give approval for issuing offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to debt securities as defined
under the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended from
time to time, including Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs") for a sum not exceeding
¥2,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Fifty crore only) on a private placement basis in one
or more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution within
the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the members, from time to time.
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Date of AGM Item of special resolution

30.08.2022 To give approval for issuing offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to debt securities as defined
under the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended
from time to time, including Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs") for a sum not exceeding ¥
2,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Fifty crore only) on a private placement basis in one or
more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution within
the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the members, from time to time.

All resolutions were passed by requisite majority.

Any Special Resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting pattern

No special resolution was passed during the year under review through postal ballot.

Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise and details of voting pattern

No postal ballot conducted during the year under review.

Whether any Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:

No Special Resolution is proposed through postal ballot.

Procedure for postal ballot

No Special Resolution is proposed through postal ballot.

Means of communication:

The website of the Company www.finolexpipes.com acts as the primary source of information regarding the
operations of the Company.

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company were published in leading newspapers in India viz.
Financial Express and Loksatta.

The results are displayed on the Company's website www.finolexpipes.com. The presentations if any made
to the institutional investors / analysts are also displayed on the website. A Fact sheet providing a gist of the
quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company is displayed on the Company’s website. Further, the
Financial Results and various compliance reports / information in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI
Listing Regulations as amended from time to time are made available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited (www.bseindia.com) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (www.nseindia.com).
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General shareholder information:

A Annual general meeting
date, time and venue

Date: August 28, 2023
Time: 04.00 p.m(IST)

Venue: In view of relaxation provide by the regulators the Company is conducting
meeting through VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA General Circular No. 10/2022 dated
28 December, 2022 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated
January 5, 2023. The deemed venue of the ensuing annual general meeting is
address of Registered Office of the Company. For details of registered office address
please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

B Financial year April 1, to March 31 (tentative)
Quarter ending June 30, 2023 Second fortnight of July 2023
Half year ending September 30, 2023 Second fortnight of October, 2023
Quarter ending December 31,2023 Second fortnight of January 2024
Year ending March 31, 2024 Second fortnight of May 2024
Annual General Meeting for the year Annual General Meeting by end of
ending March 31,2024 September, 2024.
C Dividend Payment date September 11, 2023
Book closure period August 22, 2023 to August 28, 2023
E  The name and address of Equity Shares
each stock exchange(s) National Stock Exchange of India BSE Limited
at which the Company’s Limited Registered Office:
securities are listed and a 5, Exchange Plaza Floor 25
confirmation about payment  Bandra-Kurla Complex P.J. Towers
of the listing fees Bandra (East), Dalal Street
Mumbai 400051 Mumbai 400 001
The Company has paid all due annual listing fees to all Stock Exchanges where
shares are listed.
F  Stock Code: NSE : Equity- FINPIPE
BSE: Equity- 500940/FINOLEXIND
ISIN : INET183A01024
G  Market Price data of Equity Month NSE BSE
Shares- High, Low during
each month in last financial High ) Low %) High ) Low (?)
year 2022-2023 Apr-22 171.40 15310 171.40 153.00
May-22 158.25 125.00 159.00 128.00
Jun-22 168.90 129.20 164.60 129.20
Jul-22 141.45 129.70 142.70 129.10
Aug-22 152.50 132.00 152.65 133.35
Sep-22 155.10 121.50 154.95 135.70
Oct-22 146.75 130.00 146.75 131.00
Nov-22 165.00 13315 165.30 13315
Dec-22 195.00 156.75 194.95 156.90
Jan-23 192.00 162.50 192.10 162.75
Feb-23 183.90 16515 183.90 165.35
Mar-23 176.95 158.00 177.10 158.00
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Performance in comparison with broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index, Nifty etc.
Finolex share price movement v/s BSE Sensex
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e Finolex Industries

Nifty

In case the securities are
suspended from trading,
the Directors Report shall
explain the reasons thereof.

No securities are suspended from trading

Registrar to an issue and
share transfer agent

KFin Technologies Limited (RTA)

Registered with SEBI

Registration no. INROOO000221

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana India - 500 032

Share transfer system

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities can be
transferred only in dematerialized form w.ef. April 1, 2019, Further w.e.f. 24" January,
2022 transmission or transposition of securities held in physical shall be effected only

in dematerialised form.
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L  Distribution of shareholding  category Total | % of total Total % of
as on 31+ March, 2023 Investors B Shares total D
A B C D E
Below 5000 2,40,347 99.15 8,38,25,606 13.51
Between 5001 and 10000 1,215 0.50 86,62,358 1.40
Between 10001 and 20000 416 017 58,42,577 0.94
Between 20001 and 30000 124 0.05 31,15,951 0.50
Between 30001 and 40000 50 0.02 1792,486 0.29
Between 40001 and 50000 41 0.02 18,95,318 0.31
Between 50001 and 100000 65 0.03 46,56,292 0.75
Above 100001 153 0.06 51,06,86,317 82.31
Total 2,42,41 100 | 62,04,76,905 100
M Dematerialization of shares  pepository/ Physical No. of shares | % of total shares
and liquidity as on 31** March, NSDL 339712511 5475
2023
CDSL 26,15,34,099 4215
Physical 1,92,30,295 310
Total 62,04,76,905 100
Shares are regularly traded on BSE and NSE.
N  Outstanding GDR,ADR or No such issue made by the Company.
warrants or convertible
instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity
O Commodity price risk or The details are included in this report under point no. 6 under the heading ‘Other
foreign exchange risk and Disclosure’
hedging activities
P  Plant locations . PVC&PVC Pipes Plant:

Ranpar — Pawas Road

District Ratnagiri 415 616 Maharashtra

. PVC Pipes and Fittings Plants:

1. Gat No.399, Urse, Taluka Maval, District — Pune 410 506, Maharashtra
2. D1/10 MIDC, Chinchwad, Pune 411019 Maharashtra

. PVC Pipes Plant:

Village Masar, Taluka Padra, District Vadodara 391 421, Gujarat

. Fittings Plant:

Gat no. 464, village Badhalwadi, Taluka Maval — 410507 , near Talegaon,

district Pune, Maharashtra

Q Address for investor

correspondence

KFIN Technologies Limited

Unit: Finolex Industries Limited

Selenium Building, Tower-B,

Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,

Hyderabad, Rangareddy,
Telangana India - 500 032

WhatsApp: +91-910 009 4099 Toll Free: 1-800-309-4001
Email ID: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: https:/Mww.kfintech.com Corporate Registry (RIS)
Website Link: https://ris.kfintech.com
Investor Support Centre Link: https:/ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/isc

R

List of all credit ratings
obtained by the Company

. Shortterm - CRISIL/INDIA Ratings

CRISIL Al+/ IND A1+

. Longterm - CRISIL/INDIA Ratings
CRISIL AA+/Stable / IND AA+/ Stable

During the year under review, the long term - CRISIL / India Ratings was upgraded

from AA to AA+ (Stable)
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Disclosure required

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict
with the interests of the listed entity at large

No such transactions

Details of non-compliance by the listed entity,
penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any
statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years

No such cases

Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/
whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access to the audit
committee

Vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy is in place. None of
the employees are restricted from the access to the Audit
Committee.

Details of compliance with  mandatory
requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory
requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has adopted following non-mandatory
requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il of the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

a. The Company has an Executive Chairman.

b. During 2022-23, there was no audit qualification in the
Auditors’ Report on the Company’s Financial Statement.

c. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are different persons.

d. The internal auditor is a permanent invitee to the audit
committee and regularly attends the meetings of the
Audit Committee.

Web link where policy for determining ‘material’
subsidiaries is disclosed

https://Mmww.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12929/policy_
for_determining_materiality_of_disclosure.pdf

Web link where policy on dealing with related
party transactions is disclosed

https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12932/
related_party_transactions_policy.pdf

Disclosure of commodity price risks and

commodity hedging activities

The details are included in this report under point no. 6
under the heading ‘Other Disclosure’.

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement.

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement during 2022-
23.

Certificate from a company secretary in practice
that none of the directors on the board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as directors
of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice vide
dated May 22,2023 is enclosed with this report.

Where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of any commmittee of the Board
which is mandatory required, in the relevant
financial year.

There are no such instances where the Board had not
accepted any recommendation of any committee of the
Board during the financial year 2022-23.
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Disclosure required

K | Total fees for all services paid by the Company
and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis,
to the statutory auditor and all entities in the
network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part.

The Company does not have any subsidiary company. Total
fees for all services paid to the statutory auditors are given
in note no. 32 of notes to accounts under heading Auditors’
Remuneration.

L Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Details of complaints during the year 2022-23:

Particulars Number of
Complaints
Number of complaints filed during the Nil

financial year

Number of complaints disposed of during Nil
the financial year

Number of complaints pending as on end of Nil
the financial year

M | Disclosure by Company and its subsidiaries of
‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested
by name and amount..

The Company has not provided any loans and advances in
the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors
are interested.

Equity Shares lying in the Suspense Account

In compliance with Para F of Schedule V to the SEBI
Listing Regulations, we confirm that no shares of the
Company are lying in the Suspense Account, during
the period under review.

Related Party Disclosures

In terms of Para A of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Related Party Disclosure is given in
note no. 37 of notes to accounts.

There were no materially significant related party
transactions with the Company’s Promoters, Directors,
Management or their relatives, which could have had
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.
The Company does not have any subsidiary but has
associate companies. Transactions with related parties
entered into by the Company are in the normal course
of business and at an arm’s length basis. The details
of the transactions are periodically placed before the
Audit Committee for review and approval. Members
may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of
related party transactions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a
policy to regulate transactions between the Company
and its Related Parties, in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
and the Rules framed thereunder including the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The Related Party Transactions
policy has been placed on the Company's website
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12932/
related_party_transactions_policy.pdf
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Dividend Distribution Policy

As per Regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations, the
Company hasformulated a Dividend Distribution Policy
which has been uploaded on the Company’s website
https://www.finolexpipes.com/site/assetsfiles/12927/
dividend_distribution_policy.pdf

Other Disclosures:
1) Accounting Treatment

The Company has complied with all applicable
Accounting Standards in the preparation of
financial statements pursuant to Schedule
[l of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no
audit qualifications in the Company’s financial
statements for the year under review.

2) Compliance with Regulations of capital
market

The Company has complied with the
requirements of the Regulatory Authorities on
Capital Markets. There are no instances of non-
compliance by the Company on any matters
related to capital markets. No penalty or strictures
have been imposed on the Company by the
Regulatory Authorities or any statutory authority,
on any matter related to capital markets, during
last three years.

3) Whistle Blower Policy

In line with the best Corporate Governance
practices, the Company has put in place a system
through which the Directors and employees may
report concerns about unethical behavior, actual
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4)

5)

6)

or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's
Code of Conduct and Ethics without fear of
reprisal. The Company has put in place a process
by which employees have direct access to the
Audit Committee Chairperson.

The Whistle-blower Policy has been displayed on
the Company’s notice board and is also uploaded
on the Company's website https:/Avww.
finolexpipes.com/site/assets/files/12934/whistle_
blower_policy-1.pdf

Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer’s certificate

The Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have furnished a compliance
certificate to the Board of Directors under
Regulation17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy
on material subsidiaries. The policy is available on
the Company's website https:/Awww.finolexpipes.
com/site/assets/files/12930/policy_on_material_
subsidiary-1.pdf

Disclosure of commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities

For the PVC Pipes and PVC industry, the prices
and costs are linked to and are dependent on:

Statutory
Reports

Financial
Statements

Corporate
Overview

i. Same underlying commmodity (crude oil) and

ii. Demand supply for each component in the
value chain.

Due to strong interdependence, any major
change in the price of one input or output, affects
the price of the rest of the components in the
value chain, albeit with a short time lag. Due
to this, margins are only temporarily affected
whether positively or negatively, until the price
reaches an equilibrium. Generally, over a period
of time, the impact of this price movement gets
compensated, and results in normal margins. The
commodity price movements are a temporary
risk which can result in margin risk but do not
pose a material risk to financial health of the
Company. Hence, Company does not resort to
any commodity hedging. Further, though hedges
are available and actively traded for underlying
commodity (crude oil) but the price of all inputs
are not linearly related to price of crude and
hedges on all inputs are not easily available.

Exposure of the Company to commodity
and commodity risks faced by the Company
throughout the year:

a. Total exposure of the Company to
commodities and intermediates ¥3,815 Crore

b. Exposure of the Company to major
commodities and intermediates:

Commodity Name / Exposure Exposure % of such exposure hedged through
Intermediate Name  towards the towards the commodity derivatives
particular particular pomestic market International market  Total

commodity commodity

(R in Crores) (Quantity in MTs) OTC Exchange orc Exchange
EDC 475.39 119,958 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Ethylene 34314 37,634 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
VCM 504.03 69,028 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
pvC* 2,271.02 2,39,638 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Coal 152.98 1,66,406 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Naphtha 65.92 10,851 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
LPG 249 335 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total exposure of 3814.97 6,43,850

the Company to
commodities and
intermediates

*includes inter-divisional Transfer - 212,740 MT
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c. Commodity risks faced by the Company
during the year and how they have been
managed.

The Company is affected by the volatility
of prices of certain commmodity chemicals
(Ethylene and PVC) and intermediates (EDC
and VCM). Its operating activities involve the
ongoing purchase of Vinyl Chloride Monomer
('VCM'), Ethylene and Ethylene Dichloride
(‘EDC'), all being petrochemical products for
manufacturing of PVC and pipes & fittings
and therefore require a continuous supply of
these materials. Prices of PVC manufactured
by the Company are monitored by Company
management and are adjusted to respond to
change in import parity price of PVC in Indian
market. Market price of input and output,
generally get adjusted over a period of time.
Accordingly, the Company is exposed to the
variation in prices over short term period.

Foreign exchange risk and hedging:

PVC pricing is on import parity and import parity value
of sales of the Company exceeds the USD payableson a
six monthly rolling basis due to which a natural hedge
exists and hence the Company does not generally
need to resort to hedging by way of forward contracts,
options, etc.

Compliance or otherwise of any requirement
of the Corporate Governance Report

The Company has complied with the requirements of
Corporate Governance and has made disclosures to the
extent required and applicable to it, as stipulated in the
SEBI Listing Regulations, the same are listed below:

. The discretionary requirements of modified
opinion(s) in the audit report, separate posts of
the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer,
reporting of the internal auditor directly to the
Audit Committee of Part E of Schedule Il have
been adopted.

. Sub-paras 2 to 10 of Para C and Para D of Schedule V;
. Regulations 17 to 27; and
. Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) and (t).

Practicing Company Secretary’s Corporate
Governance Certificate

The Company has obtained a certificate from M/s.
SVD & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
confirming compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in Para E of Schedule V to the
SEBI Listing Regulations is annexed to this report.
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Non-compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2)
to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015:

There is no non-compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Part C of Schedule V of SEBI

Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Company’s Code of Conduct provides guidelines to
be followed by allmembers of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management to ensure the highest standards
of professional conduct. Members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for
the year ended 31t March, 2023 on behalf of themselves
and to the best of their knowledge and also on behalf
of all the employees reporting to them. The said Code
can be viewed on the Company's website https:/Awww.
finolexpipes.com/investors/policies-code-of-conduct/

A declaration signed by the Managing Director & Chief
Executive Director of the Company to this effect is
given below:

Declaration signed by the Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer stating that the
members of board of directors and senior
management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct of board
of directors and senior management

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Para
D of the Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations,
| hereby declare that the Company has adopted a
Code of Conduct and Ethics for all Board Members
and Senior Management of the Company. The Code is
available on the Company’s website.

| further declare that the Company has in respect
of the financial year ended March 31, 2023, received
from all the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company, an affirmation of
compliance with the Code, as applicable to them.

For Finolex Industries Limited
Anil V. Whabi

Managing Director
(DIN: 00142052)

Ajit Venkataraman
Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 22,2023
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY'’S CERTIFICATE
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Finolex Industries Limited,

Gat N0.399, Village Urse, Taluka Maval,
District Pune - 410506.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Finolex Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), having CIN- L40108PN1981PLCO24153 and
having registered office at Gat No.399, Village Urse, Taluka Maval, District Pune - 410506, produced before us by
the Company on the e-mail for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V Para-C Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board .of India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any

such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Original date of appointment
1. Mr. Prakash Pralhad Chhabria 00016017 March 13,1992

2. Ms. Bhumika Batra 03502004 September 20, 2019
3. Mrs. Ritu Prakash Chhalbria 00062144 March 21, 2015

4, Mrs. Kanchan Uday Chitale 00007267 April 1,2019

5. Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti * 09594036 Junel, 2022

6. Mr. Saurabh Sarvottarm Dhanorkar 000Mn322 August 11, 2017

7. Mr. Sanjay Shankar Math # 01874086 February 4, 2012

8. Dr. Deepak Rasiklal Parikh 06504537 September 20, 2019
o. Mr. Pradeep Ramwilas Rathi 00018577 September 20, 2019
10. Mr. Anami Narayan Prema Roy 01361110 September 20, 2019
1. Mr. Anil Vithaldas Whabi * 00142052 December 1, 2021
Note:

% Mr. Saumya Chakrabarti was appointed as Director - Technical w.e.f. June 0], 2022
# Mr. Sanajay Shankar Math ceased as Managing Director w.e.f. June 01, 2022.
*Mr. Anil Vithaldas Whabi was appointed as Managing Director w.e.f. June 01, 2022.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SVD & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sridhar Mudaliar
Partner

FCS No: 6156

CP No: 2664

Peer Review No: P2013MH075200
UDIN: FOO6156E000341447

Place: Pune

Date: May 22,2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Finolex Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial

Statements

Opinion

1) We have audited the accompanying standalone
financial statements of Finolex Industries
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2)  In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of the audit
report of the auditor of Finolex Industries Limited
Employees' Welfare Trust (‘Welfare Trust) as
referred to in paragraph 15 below, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2023, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3)  We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the
ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
together with the audit evidence obtained by
the auditors of the Welfare Trust, in terms of
their audit report referred to in paragraph 15 of
the Other Matters section below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

4) Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgment, and based on the
consideration of the audit report of the auditors of
Welfare Trust as referred to in paragraph 15 below,
were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

5)  We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventory

Our audit procedures related to valuation of
inventory included, but were not limited, to the

At the balance sheet date 31 March 2023, the Company following:

held inventories comprising of raw materials and
work-in-progress
aggregating to ¥ 673.15 crores as disclosed in note 8
to the accompanying standalone financial statements
of the Company. Such inventories are carried at cost
or net realisable value whichever is lower, as per the
accounting policy disclosed in note 2.7 to the aforesaid

components, finished goods,

standalone financial statements.

Cost of inventory comprise of cost of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

« Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s
accounting policy and valuation method of
inventory in accordance with Ind AS 2.

« Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls (including IT
automated controls) around purchase of
inventory, valuation of inventory, computation
of overhead, and determination of net realizable
value of inventory items.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Determination of cost of conversion includes costs
directly related to production of units and also includes
a systematic allocation of various fixed and variable
production overheads to convert raw material into
finished goods. Fixed production overheads are
allocated to the costs of conversion based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities and variable
production overheads are allocated to each unit of
production based on the actual use of the production
facilities, in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 2,
Inventories (Ind AS 2'), which involves management
judgement and estimation.

Further, at the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Company also assesses whether
the carrying value of inventory is in excess of amounts
expected to be realised from their sale or use and in
such cases inventories are written down to their net
realisable value in accordance with Ind AS 2.

Considering the abovementioned complexities and
materiality of amounts and management judgement
involved, valuation of inventory matter is considered to
be a key audit matter for the current year audit.

o Discussed with management the rationale
supporting assumptions and estimates used
in carrying out the inventory valuation and
corroborated the same to our understanding of
the business.

« Understood and assessed the management
process of determining overhead absorption
rates applied by verifying the appropriateness
of underlying variables used such as cost data,
normal production capacity, actual production
data, bill of materials and stage of production.

« Verified the expenses considered as cost of
conversionincluding estimatesforapportionment
of such conversion cost to different classes of
finished goods and work in progress, and ensured
arithmetical accuracy of such workings.

o« Performed substantive testing for samples of
raw materials purchase transactions recorded
during the year, and purchase transactions
recorded before and after year end, to ensure
such purchases are booked accurately and in
the correct period, by verifying the underlying
documents for such selected samples, which
included contracts, purchase orders, invoices,
shipping documents such as lorry receipts, etc.

o« Obtained understanding of management
process for identification of slow moving, non-
moving or obsolete inventories and ensured that
the same is consistently applied. Tested ageing of
inventory items obtained through system reports,
as applicable.

o« Recomputed the net realisable value of the
finished goods on a sample basis and ensured
the inventory is carried at lower of cost or net
realizable value as per Ind AS 2.

o Performed analytical procedures on current year
cost of goods sold based on product-wise gross
profit margin analysis, and where appropriate,
conducted further enquiries and testing.

o Assessed that the disclosures made in the
accompanying standalone financial statements
is in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

than the Financial

Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6)

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone
financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is
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Responsibilities  of

materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance.

Management and

Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

7)

152

The  accompanying  standalone  financial
statements have been approved by the
Company’'s Board of Directors. The Company's
Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free frorm material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Annual Report 2022-23

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements

10)

1)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually orin the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control;

. Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's



12)

13)

14)

ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
Companyandits Welfare Trust or the business
activities within the Company to express an
opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of financial
statements of the Company of which we are
the independent auditors. For the Welfare
Trust included in the financial statements,
which have been audited by the otherauditor,
such other auditor remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public
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disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

15)

We did not audit the financial statements of the
Welfare Trust included in the standalone financial
statements of the Company whose financial
statements reflects total assets and net assets of
X 4369 crore and X 43.21 crores respectively as
at 31 March 2023, and the total revenues of X Nil
crores, total net profit after tax of X 3.94 crores,
total comprehensive income of X 394 crores,
and cash flows (net) of  0.02 crores respectively
for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the standalone financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by
the another auditor whose reports have been
furnished to us by the management and our
opinion on the standalone financial statements in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the Welfare Trust and
our report in terms of sub section 3 of section
143 of the Act in so far as